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healthcare and educational facilities, lodging establishments and other customers who prepare
meals away from home. Its family of products also includes equipment and supplies for the
foodservice and hospitality industries. With industry dynamics constantly changing, SYSCO is
continually reinvesting in its business to nourish customer satisfaction and shareholder value.
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Percent Change

July 1, 2006

July 2, 2005

July 3, 2004
(53 Weeks)

2006-05

2005-04

$ 32,628,438

$ 30,281,914

$ 29,335,403

8%

3%

1,394,946

1,525,436

1,475,144

(9)
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Earnings before cumulative effect
of accounting change (2)

846,040

961,457

907,214

(12)
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Net earnings (1) (2)

855,325

961,457

907,214

(11)

6

Diluted earnings per share before
cumulative effect of accounting change (2)

1.35

1.47

1.37

(8)

7

Diluted earnings per share (2)

1.36

1.47

1.37

(7)

7

Dividends declared per share

0.66

0.58

0.50

14

16

Shareholders’ equity per share (2)

4.93

4.39

4.03

12

9

530,086

32

(26)

(5)

(4)

(Dollars in thousands, except for share data)

Sales
Earnings before income taxes and
cumulative effect of accounting change (2)

$

Capital expenditures
Return on average shareholders’ equity

(2)

514,751
30%

$

390,203

$

35%

39%

628,800,647

653,157,117

661,919,234

(4)

(1)

16,479,800

16,790,200

16,454,300

(2)

2

Number of employees

49,600

47,500

47,800

4

(1)

Number of shareholders of record

14,282

15,083

15,337

(5)

(2)

Diluted average shares outstanding
Number of shares repurchased

(1)
(2)

Fiscal 2006 net earnings reflect an increase to earnings of $9,285,000 for a change in accounting.
Fiscal 2006 results include $105,810,000, net of tax, in incremental share-based compensation cost as a result
of adopting FASB Statement No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” Prior period results have not been restated.
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Certifications: The most recent
certifications by the Company's
chief executive officer and chief
financial officer pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 are filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission as
exhibits to the Company's Form
10-K. The Company has also filed
with the New York Stock Exchange
the most recent Annual CEO
Certification, without qualification,
as required by Section 303A.12(a)
of the New York Stock Exchange
Listed Company Manual.

The company consistently has paid quarterly cash dividends on its common stock and
has increased the dividend 37 times in its 36 years as a public company. The current
quarterly cash dividend is $0.17 per share.
DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN WITH OPTIONAL CASH PURCHASE FEATURE

SYSCO’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan provides a convenient way for shareholders of
record to reinvest quarterly cash dividends in SYSCO shares automatically, with no
service charge or brokerage commissions.
The Plan also permits registered shareholders to invest additional money to purchase
shares. In addition, certificates may be deposited directly into a Plan account for safekeeping and may be sold directly through the Plan for a modest fee.
Shareholders desiring information about the Dividend Reinvestment Plan with Optional
Cash Purchase Feature may obtain a brochure and enrollment form by contacting
the Transfer Agent and Registrar, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company at
1-888-225-5799.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements made herein are forward-looking statements under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. They include statements about anticipated
sales volumes, industry growth and increased market share, SYSCO’s long-term growth
objectives with respect to sales, earnings, return on equity, long-term debt and capitalization, long-term debt to capitalization ratios, anticipated capital expenditures, ability
to meet future cash requirements and remain profitable, timing and expected benefits of
the National Supply Chain project and related regional redistribution centers, and implementation, timing and anticipated benefits of fold-outs and acquisitions.
These statements are based on management’s current expectations and estimates;
actual results may differ materially, due in part to the risk factors discussed above.
Decisions to pursue fold-outs and acquisitions or to construct redistribution facilities and
expenditures for such could vary depending upon construction schedules and the timing
of other purchases, such as fleet and equipment, while redistribution facility, fold-out
and acquisition timing and results could be impacted by competitive conditions, labor
issues and other matters. The ability to pursue acquisitions also depends upon the availability and suitability of potential candidates and management’s allocation of capital.
Industry growth may be affected by general economic conditions. SYSCO’s ability to
achieve anticipated sales volumes and its long-term growth objectives, increase market
share, meet future cash requirements and remain profitable could be affected by competitive price pressures, availability of supplies, work stoppages, success or failure of
consolidated buying plan initiatives, successful integration of acquired companies, conditions in the economy and the industry and internal factors such as the ability to control
expenses. The ability to meet long-term debt to capitalization target ratios also may be
affected by cash flow, including amounts spent on share repurchases and acquisitions
and internal growth.
For a discussion of additional risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
to differ from those contained in the forward-looking statements, see the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 1, 2006.
FORM 10-K AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A copy of the fiscal 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the financial statements and financial statement schedules, as well as copies of other financial reports
and company literature, may be obtained without charge upon written request to the
Investor Relations Department, SYSCO Corporation, at the corporate offices listed
above, or by calling 1-800-337-9726. This information also may be found on our web
site at http://www.sysco.com.

“ Business review sessions have proven highly productive.
In fiscal 2006, we exceeded our goal and conducted
approximately 39,000 such reviews and, on average,
they resulted in a mid-teen sales percentage increase to
the customers involved.”

– RICHARD J. SCHNIEDE R S ,
CHAIRMAN, CEO AND PRESID E N T

Suzanne Spack,
Territory Sales Manager,
Sysco Food Services of Detroit

At SYSCO, the company’s mission remains
the same – “Helping our Customers Succeed.”
An important tool we use to help customers
realize success is the Business Review. The
review enables customers to explore a full
array of profit-bolstering initiatives from menu
re-engineering to improved purchasing practices
to refined employee-training strategies. As a
result, customers gain new perspectives on
their business and a heightened capacity to
transform old challenges into previously
unexplored opportunities.
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DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

in dollars

Richard J. Schnieders

Nourishing Value
To Our Shareholders:
FISCAL 2006 WAS A YEAR OF MIXED RESULTS FOR SYSCO. For the

OUR HARD WORK AND INVESTMENTS IN 2006 HAVE BUILT A

year we experienced sales growth of 7.8 percent over fiscal 2005.
This represented a considerable step up from the 3.2 percent rate of
sales growth we saw last year. Our programs for business review,
business development and growing the number of customer contact
personnel all contributed to meeting our goal of high single-digit to
low double-digit sales increases. Higher gasoline prices throughout
the year lowered consumer spending at restaurants and our ability to
show good sales increases is a real testament to the hard work and
effort of our associates. Unfortunately, higher expenses prevented us
from translating those sales gains into significantly higher earnings.
We are looking forward to fiscal 2007 when we expect our expenses
to be much more comparable.

STRONG FOUNDATION FOR GROWTH IN 2007. At SYSCO, our focus

NET EARNINGS FOR FISCAL 2006 WERE $855.3 MILLION OR $1.36
PER DILUTED SHARE, (after the cumulative effect of an accounting

change recorded during the first quarter of fiscal 2006) compared
to $961.5 million last year. For the year, share-based compensation
expense impacted earnings by $118 million, or $.17 per share, higher
fuel costs amounted to $48.6 million, interest expense was $34.1
million greater, and pension costs were $23.6 million higher. These
all resulted in a very strong expense headwind throughout the year.
Cash provided by operations was over $1.1 billion and was used for
capital expenditures, the payment of dividends and share repurchases.
Return on average shareholders’ equity was 30 percent.
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is on helping our customers succeed. Our business review process
epitomizes this thinking. During the year we were gratified to see
our business review process help our customers grow their sales and
strengthen their relationships with us. The review process has proven
to be a beneficial enhancement to the way we do business with our
customers. Business reviews have helped us better understand our
customers’ needs, while at the same time showing our customers
how we can help them with product selection, menu design and profitability and many of the other myriad things it takes to run a successful
restaurant. Further, the review process is not a one time benefit. We
have found that customers who come in for a second or third review
understand the process better and we have a greater understanding
of their needs. As a result, we anticipate that the business review process will benefit our customers and SYSCO for a long time to come.
OUR CUSTOMER CONTACT GROUP CONTINUES TO GROW. Our people

and their ability to connect with our customers are the crucial first
step in the foodservice chain. We will continue to grow the number
of people who have direct contact with our customers and potential
customers. During 2006 we grew our total customer contact personnel by 6.2 percent, meeting our goal of 6 percent growth. For fiscal
year 2007, we are planning to add another 7 percent to our marketing
associates, business review managers and business development

Fiscal 2006 was a year of mixed results, although our investments in our business have built a strong
foundation for growth in 2007. Our business review process is helping our customers grow their
sales and strengthen their relationships with us, allowing us to add more customer contact associates.
Our National Supply Chain Initiative is beginning to deliver on its potential and we are re-examining
our SYSCO brand products to focus on those that can truly provide value to customers. As this
dynamic business continues to grow, we have numerous opportunities to expand through fold-outs
and acquisitions as well.

managers. As a typical marketing associate takes between 18 – 24
months to become fully integrated into the company, we anticipate
that we will begin to see the benefits of this investment in human
capital during 2007 and beyond.
THE NATIONAL SUPPLY CHAIN INITIATIVE IS STARTING TO DELIVER
ON ITS POTENTIAL. During 2006 our first redistribution center (RDC)

completed its rollout to 14 operating companies in the Northeast. Our
rollout of all anticipated products from the RDC was slowed during the
year as we made operational and design adjustments which we felt
were better done early in the process before we built more redistribution centers. It was a case of “go slow now so we can go fast later.”
Land has been purchased for our second RDC in Florida and a third in
Indiana. As we gain scale and scope on this project, we believe that
it will significantly lower our overall costs to the benefit of both our
customers and shareholders.
SYSCO BRANDS WILL BE AN AREA OF FOCUS IN 2007. We have begun
a process of systematically looking at our current lineup of SYSCO
brand products. Our goal is to determine where SYSCO brands can
truly be value-added products. We will strengthen those product
areas where we can offer a unique value proposition that can save a
customer time or labor or can represent a higher standard of quality.
At the same time, we will be re-examining those products that may
be more commodity in nature to see if they can be purchased more
efficiently utilizing national brands. The result will be a stronger, more
focused SYSCO brand.

WE WILL CONTINUE TO EXPAND THROUGH FOLD-OUTS AND
ACQUISITIONS. Fold-outs are new operating companies on the
geographic edge of an existing facility. They are an important component in our expansion plans. During fiscal year 2006 we opened a
fold-out in the Gulf Coast region of Alabama and in August 2006 we
began shipping from our new facility near Raleigh, North Carolina.
Our plans call for two new fold-outs in 2007. We also look to fill out
our geographic coverage through appropriate acquisitions. During
2006 we acquired a broadline distributor, five specialty produce
companies and a specialty meat company. We continue to seek companies to acquire, both in the broadline and specialty areas.
THE FOODSERVICE BUSINESS CONTINUES TO BE VIBRANT AND
INNOVATIVE. Our customers, the restaurants and foodservice opera-

tors of the United States and Canada, continue to change and respond
to the varied tastes and demands of the consumer. This means our
business is never static and always interesting. Eating away from
home today offers a world of possibilities for the consumer, ranging
from low cost options to fine dining, from the domestic to the exotic.
It is both our privilege and our pleasure to serve this industry.

Richard J. Schnieders
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
October 2, 2006
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SYSCO shares in the growth and success of customers as they
build their businesses through the Business Review program.
A Business Review includes an intense three-to-four-hour meeting in
a non-sales environment that involves analyzing the customer’s entire
menu, providing suggestions to re-engineer their menu, and offering
insights on promotions and other tools to help them attract more
dining patrons and grow their sales. Customer response has been
extremely positive, with approximately 39,000 Business Reviews
conducted during FY 2006. Results for SYSCO have been impressive, as well. The customer/distributor relationship has improved
and customers consistently purchase more product lines, generating
mid-teens sales increases, on average, in that customer’s account.
The process recently has been expanded to focus on new potential
customers through the Business Development function, where it is
expected to be successful in helping SYSCO add new customers.

ADDING NEW CUSTOMER CONTACT PERSONNEL MEANS
BETTER SERVICE FOR CUSTOMERS.

More than 600 new customer contact associates were hired during
fiscal 2006, representing a 6.2 percent increase and meeting SYSCO’s
goal. The company’s entire customer contact force numbers approximately 10,500, the largest in the foodservice distribution industry.
This is nearly twice as many as its next largest competitor and gives
SYSCO an advantageous market reach. The addition of more customer
contact associates, who produced an increased number of Business
Reviews, led in turn to greater marketing associate-served sales. The
marketing associate retention rate also has been increasing since
1995, moving from 73 percent to 84 percent in FY 2006. The retention
of marketing associates is important, since there is a strong correlation between retention and profitable accounts.
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BETTER DATA AND DATA-MINING CAPABILITIES GIVE
SYSCO BETTER UNDERSTANDING OF CUSTOMERS’ NEEDS.

As technology advances provide more and better data to understand
customers’ needs, SYSCO has the capability to gain a greater depth of
knowledge about a customer’s wants, needs and desires. This allows
the company to more easily pinpoint the customer’s expectations.
With that base of knowledge, the C.A.R.E.S. initiative (Customers Are
Really Everything to SYSCO) sets basic standards for meeting customers’ expectations. SYSCO applies the information gained to move a
step closer to meeting customers’ total needs, truly differentiating
itself from competitors and further cementing relationships with customers. Through the use of customer analytics programs, the company
has proven the business case for additional value-added services that
were instrumental in laying the foundation for the iCare initiative.
This innovative program offers customers access to a variety of
services that can assist them in operating their businesses more
efficiently and profitably. For example, through iCare, customers have
access to such tools as menu development and design; advertising
and marketing strategies and promotional materials that increase
customer traffic. They may even gain access to lending institutions to
expand or remodel their locations, and to payroll solutions and health
insurance. These and a host of other services that otherwise may not
be readily available to them are designed to help SYSCO’s customers
manage and grow their businesses.
The C.A.R.E.S. and iCare programs have been well-received and
continue to contribute significantly to customers’ businesses as well
as SYSCO’s.

“ I found our session with the merchandisers and specialists very helpful and
beneficial. I especially liked the new ideas your Protein Specialist showed
me, particularly the rack of lamb and the cooked roast beef which I have
successfully added to my menu with rave reviews. I am also able to add
some of the great seafood items shown to me by the Frozen & Seafood
Merchandiser and plan on focusing on the take-out part of my business
thanks to the Food Service Supplies Specialist.”
– JOHN KOUDIS, OWNER,
JOHNNY BISTRO RESTAURANT,
MARKHAM, ONTARIO, CANADA

Terry Walton,>
Frozen & Seafood Merchandiser
Sysco Food Services,
Central Ontario
< Jeff Huggins,
Protein Specialist
Sysco Food Services,
Central Ontario

< Shelly Saunders,
Food Service Supplies Specialist
Sysco Food Services,
Central Ontario
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Rick Dachenhausen, >
District Sales Manager,
Sysco Food Services of Seattle

< Stephanie Allen,
Co-founder,
Dream Dinners
Catherine Kayser, >
President,
Sysco Food Services of Seattle

“ SYSCO has been the catalyst for our growth. Together we have created a new industry
and, because of our partnership, continue to be leaders in our concept. Specifically,
SYSCO’s specialty meat companies have designed signature protein items to meet our
recipe specifications and have improved the quality and consistency of our dinners at
a national level. Because of this partnership, not only are our franchise owners more
profitable, our guests are taking home top quality dinners that they couldn’t purchase
anywhere else. We are helping to provide two million servings of a home cooked dinner
every month, because of SYSCO’s outstanding products and service.”
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– STEPHANIE ALLEN, CO-FOUNDER, DREAM DINNERS,
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON
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SYSCO SYSTEMS CREATE EFFICIE N C I E S

16%
12%
Committed to outstanding service, SYSCO has long
been reputed for excellence in operational measures.

Pieces per stop Pieces per trip
Approximate increase FY 2001 – FY 2006

In addition to customer information regarding ordering and purchasing
patterns, SYSCO’s technology systems are continually being upgraded
and enhanced to make it easier for the customer to place an order.
Once the order has been placed, the warehousing, selection, loading and distribution of the products becomes critical. The SYSCO
Warehouse Management System (SWMS) tracks products from the
minute they touch the dock and throughout the entire receiving, storage, selection and delivery processes. Storing products as efficiently
as possible can create substantial savings by delaying the need to
expand or construct facilities.

With nearly 9,000 vehicles on the road every day, SYSCO operates
the largest private fleet in the United States, according to Transport
Topics. The company’s triple-compartmented vehicles are temperature-controlled appropriately for dry, refrigerated and frozen foods and
can store anything from dry commodities to fresh produce or frozen
bakery items and even ice cream. The SYSCO Transportation System
determines the most efficient routing and tracks the trucks throughout
each day. If a customer calls to verify when the order will arrive, the
truck’s location can be pinpointed and the customer can be given an
estimated time of arrival.

Each evening when order selectors arrive to “pick” products for the
next day’s orders, they position a bar code scanner to their wrist.
This scanner is connected to a small printing device worn on the belt
and has an attachment to the index finger that allows the selector to
touch the bar code on a carton to verify that the correct product has
been chosen. This system, called the SYSCO Order Selector (SOS), has
significantly reduced selection errors from one in every 300 to 400
selections to one in 800 to 900, improving efficiency and trimming
restocking costs while improving service to customers.

All of these systems have allowed SYSCO to continue to create efficiencies, which are measured in hundreds of ways. In the distribution
area, the number of pieces delivered to each location, the number of
pieces delivered per mile, the number of pieces delivered per trip and
the number of product lines delivered to each location are just a few of
the many metrics tracked on a weekly basis. At broadline operations
during the past five years, pieces per stop have risen about 16 percent,
pieces per mile have increased approximately 8 percent, pieces per
trip have grown approximately 12 percent and the number of product
lines per stop has risen about 17 percent.

SYSCO’s first operating company warehouse automation, called a
Mini Load, has recently been installed and is being tested in the
Raleigh, N.C. operating company. It replaces the need for forklifts or
stock selector equipment to put away or replenish product and is safer
than the older “man-up” machines. It greatly increases storage capabilities and product selectors will be able to increase their productivity
several fold, since the system reduces the product pick path and the
handling of small quantity pallets.
The SYSCO Loader System (SLS) uses the same device, which is
programmed to confirm the products on the orders before they are
loaded, then produces a map of the order’s location in the truck. This
allows the driver to be more efficient as the products are delivered
to customers, since he or she may go directly to the product without
unnecessary searching through the trailer.

SYSCO’S EMERGING CHAIN INITIATIVE
IS A PARTICULAR FOCUS.

This initiative is targeted toward the top 200-400 chains that are not
part of SYSCO’s SYGMA chain restaurant distribution customer base.
Often, such establishments begin their foodservice life as a onerestaurant operation. They become successful in that location, then
open several more in the same city. After a period of even more
success, they may populate a new region and continue to grow into a
network of locations across the nation. SYSCO has now concentrated
its focus on the emerging chains, dedicating a group of associates and
the resources necessary to satisfy the needs of those customers and
build enduring relationships with them.
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“ The fold-out strategy has been meaningful to our success. By positioning our operations as close to customers as possible, we can respond
quickly to their needs. It also reduces fuel usage since we are driving
fewer miles.”
– KENNETH F. SPITLER, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT;
P R E S I D E N T, N O RTH AMERICAN FOODSERVICE OPERATIONS, SYSCO

Knoxville, Tennessee
Raleigh, North Carolina

������

Geneva, Alabama

Fold-outs and acquisitions continue to be growth drivers for SYSCO.
In fiscal 1996, SYSCO introduced a program of building new facilities
in a market where SYSCO had established a presence with a threshold of approximately $100 million to $125 million in sales to that
market but was serving customers from a distant SYSCO operation.
To date, 16 broadline fold-out facilities have been completed across
the U.S. and fold-out operations were opened in Geneva, Alabama
in fiscal 2006 and in Selma (Raleigh), North Carolina subsequent
to the fiscal year-end. The Gulf Coast Alabama operation supplies
foodservice operations in southern Alabama and the northern Gulf
Coast area, while the North Carolina facility serves customers in the
Raleigh market and surrounding communities. Construction currently
is underway on a fold-out located in Knoxville, Tennessee, with an
anticipated opening in late summer 2007. Future target locations
include southern California, Longview, Texas and New York; SYSCO’s
goal is to complete three fold-outs per year.
One of the primary benefits of expanding in such a manner is to
position operations as close to the customer base as possible,
so that customers’ needs may be addressed quickly. Being closer
to customers also means SYSCO drives fewer miles, a benefit to
reducing fuel usage. Fold-outs often are easier to assimilate than
acquisitions, since many of the associates hired for a new fold-out
may have been employed in other SYSCO companies and are familiar with the company’s culture. In addition, the technology systems
put in place are SYSCO-proven, and the facility is built or modified to
SYSCO’s specifications.
SYSCO continues to expand through acquisitions, as well, with an
objective of acquisitions contributing an average of three percent per
year to sales. During fiscal 2006, acquisitions contributed 1.4 percent
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to sales growth and included one broadline distributor, five specialty
produce distributors and one specialty meat purveyor. Western Foods
was the second largest independently owned foodservice distributor
in Arkansas and complements SYSCO’s Little �������
Rock, Arkansas operation. A family-owned broadline foodservice supplier, the company
supplies customers extending from Arkansas to Texas, Missouri,
Oklahoma, Tennessee, Mississippi, and Kansas.
SYSCO’s FreshPoint subsidiary’s five acquisitions geographically
expanded the company’s reach in Florida, Texas, Oklahoma and in the
Northeast. They included A-One-A Produce & Dairy, Inc.; Incredible
Fresh Produce; City Produce, Inc. and a related group of companies;
Fowler & Huntting Company, Inc. and Thomas Brothers Produce, Inc.
A-One-A and Incredible Fresh Produce supply customers throughout
south and southwestern Florida, broadening FreshPoint’s reach in
those markets. The City Produce organization was the largest independent produce distributor in the Austin, San Antonio, Corpus Christi
and Harlingen, Texas foodservice markets. Fowler & Huntting, headquartered in Hartford, Connecticut, provides a full line of fresh fruit
and vegetables to customers throughout Connecticut, Rhode Island,
western Massachusetts, southern Vermont and eastern New York,
while Thomas Brothers Produce was the largest independent produce
distributor in the state of Oklahoma.
The company also expanded its specialty meat company strategy
through the acquisition of Desert Meats & Provisions of Las Vegas.
Desert Meats is supporting SYSCO’s broadline distribution efforts
through Sysco Food Services of Las Vegas, while leveraging the
company’s current Newport Meat distribution capabilities in that
market area.

Nourishing
Restaurant
Customers

Tim Margitish, (center) co-owner of Pat O’Brien’s restaurant
in St. Claire Shores, Michigan, reviews new ideas for his
restaurant with Stephanie Kibby, Marketing Associate (left)
and Chris Sarniak, District Sales Manager, in Sysco Food Services
of Detroit’s Business Development Center.

9

Whether it’s a small boutique hotel or a large national
chain, SYSCO’s hotel customers expect timely, dependable service and outstanding products to offer their
customers memorable experiences.

Nourishing
Hotel
Customers
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“ In our traditional supply chain, 90% of supplier shipments to operating companies
arrive within one day of the expected date, which is generally considered good service.
Loads from the Redistribution Center arrive virtually 100% on-time, positively
impacting inventory investment and end-customer service levels.”

�������

– WILLIAM B. DAY, VICE PRESIDENT,
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT, SYSCO

The National Supply Chain Initiative will optimize SYSCO’s
supply chain and position the company well ahead of competitors.
The three projects that comprise the National Supply Chain Initiative
include:
• A network of seven to nine planned redistribution centers
• The Demand Planning and Inventory Management System (DPR)
to manage inventory
• The Transportation Planning and Execution System (TP&E), which
is revamping all inbound transportation planning and execution
throughout the organization
During fiscal 2006, SYSCO achieved a number of accomplishments
related to these projects. The redistribution network is critical in creating an efficient and effective supply chain. The first redistribution
center (RDC) – in Front Royal, Virginia – began shipping to operating
companies in February 2005 and has made substantial progress to
date. The ramp-up phase continued until November 2005, when a hold
was placed on new supplier volume in order to fine-tune operations
and make systems adjustments. With the improvements that were
made, existing supplier volume began ramping up again in February
2006, and by June the facility was able to begin adding new suppliers.
Currently, approximately 850,000 cases per week are flowing through
the Northeast RDC.
Land has been purchased in Alachua, Florida for the second RDC that
will redistribute to the five Florida broadline companies. In addition, a
location has been selected and land purchased for the Midwest RDC
in Hamlet, Indiana.
As of September 15, the DPR System has been installed in 25 broadline operating companies. This system offers SYSCO significantly
better capability in predicting customer and consumer demand,

allowing SYSCO to more effectively manage and replenish inventory. Inventory levels at the Northeast operating companies and the
Northeast RDC have been reduced to the amount of total average
inventory levels in fiscal 2004, and the company believes at least a 15
percent reduction in inventory system-wide may be possible once full
implementation has occurred.
The TP&E System currently has been implemented in 50 operating
companies. This system is designed to enable SYSCO to control its
cost of freight through the synergy of freight purchasing power, to
balance the lanes of freight from one area of the country to another,
and to increase visibility of the entire transportation network. The
new structure will give the company the opportunity to reduce the
number of inbound carriers while creating a more reliable supply
chain structure.
SYSCO anticipates being able to optimize benefits throughout its
supply chain – for customers, suppliers/processors and for SYSCO.
Customers are able to access a greater variety of products and
experience improved service levels, as well as eventual reductions
in incremental costs from producer to customer. Suppliers/processors
are able to receive consolidated forecasts and orders, ship more fullpallet and full-truckload shipments, manage fewer ship-to destinations, invoices and payments, and, with better demand information,
can more accurately schedule production. SYSCO is able to maintain
a smaller inventory “cushion,” gain more cost-efficient transportation
and reduce costs by delaying the construction of new warehouses and
the expansion of existing facilities. These changes are far-reaching
and already are affecting the entire supply chain while also positioning SYSCO for future growth.
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“ I have dealt with Sysco Food Services for over 15 years, in two separate lines of business.
While at first I resisted due to the sheer size of the operation, I was eventually amazed at
the high level of customer services. In both multi-account and single-account situations
I have truly been satisfied with the attention to detail and willingness to work towards
win/win situations. The quality of their products, number of items available, customer
service and pricing are clearly, to me, the best in the industry. I cannot imagine serving
our residents without this partnership.”

�������

– JOHN EDWARDS, DIRECTOR OF DINING SERVICES,
MARY’S WOODS AT MARYLHURST, LAKE OSWEGO, OREGON

SYSCO Brand initiatives highlight value, variety and food safety.
The SYSCO Brand includes approximately 36,000 products that are
manufactured for SYSCO according to specifications that have been
developed by the company’s 180-strong quality assurance team. These
professionals are in the manufacturing/processing plants and out in
the fields the world over, qualifying those sources and assuring that
the products they produce for SYSCO measure up to the standards the
company expects for quality, safety and consistency. These detailed,
written qualifications meet, and often exceed, U.S. government
grading standards and inspection guidelines established by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture, the U.S. Department of Commerce and
other regulatory authorities.
The SYSCO brand has been well accepted and is well respected in the
foodservice industry. One very apparent value that is becoming more
and more important to customers is labor saving products. With that
in mind, SYSCO is transitioning and managing the product mix to convert existing products and develop new items that customers perceive
as providing the most value. The process will involve strengthening
the family of truly value-added products like individually portioned
strip steaks, while trimming certain commodity items, such as flour.
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SYSCO has a long and successful tenure in serving the healthcare
market, both acute care and long-term care. Growth is continuing
in the retirement and long-term care segment as the baby boomer
population ages. Government projections indicate that the number
of seniors in this group should double to 72 million by the year 2017.
Retirement facilities are in demand, are becoming more upscale, and
are offering more amenities, such as gourmet restaurants that cater
to the desires of a growing population of seniors.
SYSCO continues to enjoy solid success in the healthcare segment,
both in terms of customers that are growing by acquiring other longterm care facilities, as well as those that are growing by building
new properties. In addition to regular food and beverage products,
many items have been developed specifically for healthcare applications – convenience entrees, food thickeners, fortified juices and
pureed products, as well as sugar-free, fat-free, low fat and low
sodium choices.

Nourishing
Healthcare
Customers

Justin Hiraki, Director of Program Sales, Sysco Food Services of Seattle and Patrick
Hogan, Healthcare Manager, Sysco Food Services of Portland, part of SYSCO’s
Northwest Healthcare Marketing team, (left and right in background) discuss trends
in the retirement foodservice market. In the foreground residents of Mary’s Woods, an
upscale retirement complex in Lake Oswego, Oregon, enjoy a gourmet meal at one of
the facility’s well-appointed restaurants.
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Nourishing
Educational
Customers

Students at New Mexico State University like Luis Alberto Sandoval-Mejia enjoy New Mexico’s
world renowned agricultural products grown by local farmers and distributed by SYSCO. In
addition, SYSCO’s relationship with the School of Hotel, Restaurant and Tourism Management
gives culinary students the opportunity to work with the freshest products available – from the
farmers’ fields right to the classroom.
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“ SYSCO’s Born in New Mexico program in conjunction with the New Mexico
Department of Agriculture makes sure that New Mexico farmers can compete with
larger corporate producers and that the people of New Mexico can get the freshest, best
vegetables from their local stores and restaurants. SYSCO continues to be the leader in
New Mexico’s foodservice industry through this and other exciting programs.”
– JANET GREEN, DIRECTOR, SCHOOL OF HOTEL, RESTA U R A N T,
AND TOURISM MANAGEMENT, NEW MEXICO STATE UNIV E R S I T Y

Today, more and more consumers are conscious of eating healthy
as a permanent lifestyle and SYSCO has many alternatives to offer.
Whether it’s schools, colleges, healthcare facilities or white-tablecloth restaurants, SYSCO can help customers capture more dining
traffic. Schools and colleges represent approximately five percent of
SYSCO’s sales. Many college students, in particular, have embraced
healthy eating habits and SYSCO has various programs and brands to
address their desires.
Several SYSCO operating companies are participating in unique
programs that support local farmers and give them an avenue to
market their products more widely. “Born in New Mexico,” Sysco Food
Services of New Mexico’s way of implementing this concept, allows
customers to purchase and feature products grown and produced from
family farms and local producers throughout New Mexico. Developed
in conjunction with the New Mexico Department of Agriculture, the
program includes products such as fresh fruits, vegetables, pinto
beans, pecans, pistachio nuts, salsa, fruit preserves, vegetable dips,
condiments, lamb and goat meat.
Organic products also are gaining in popularity and SYSCO‘s Natural
Organics produce is grown, shipped and processed by supplier

partners who have been certified through the National Organic
Program (NOP) under the auspices of the U.S. Department of
Agriculture. SYSCO’s quality assurance professionals then verify
annually through food safety audits that the products come from
approved and certified organic sources.
ChefEx, one relatively recent program, is gaining momentum and
becoming another tool for chefs who want truly unique, premium
quality artisan products. Through ChefEx, these chefs may connect
directly with the producers of such products. Orders are shipped
directly to the customer from the producer, with SYSCO serving as
the ordering point. Such customers typically would include chefs from
white-tablecloth or boutique restaurants, upscale clubs, hotels, convention centers, special events, or chefs whose locations are outside
the normal delivery zone of the specialty distributors. A wide range of
more than 850 products are available from more than 100 suppliers,
and products cover the entire range of product categories – from dairy
and protein products to vegetables, culinary tools and apparel.
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ELEVEN-YEAR SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND RELATED INFORMATION

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

$ 32,628,438

$ 30,281,914

$ 29,335,403

$ 26,140,337

$ 23,350,504

26,337,107
4,796,301
109,100
(9,016)
31,233,492
1,394,946
548,906

24,498,200
4,194,184
75,000
(10,906)
28,756,478
1,525,436
563,979

23,661,514
4,141,230
69,880
(12,365)
27,860,259
1,475,144
567,930

20,979,556
3,836,507
72,234
(8,347)
24,879,950
1,260,387
482,099

18,722,163
3,467,379
62,897
(2,805)
22,249,634
1,100,870
421,083

(Dollars in thousands except for per share data)

Results of Operations
Sales
Costs and expenses
Cost of sales
Operating expenses
Interest expense
Other, net
Total costs and expenses
Earnings before income taxes
Income taxes
Earnings before cumulative effect
of accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change
Net earnings
Effective income tax rate
Per Common Share Data (1)
Diluted earnings per share:
Earnings before accounting change
Cumulative effect of accounting change
Net earnings
Dividends declared
Shareholders’ equity
Diluted average shares outstanding
Performance Measurements
Pretax return on sales
Return on average shareholders’ equity
Return on average total capital
(equity plus long-term debt)
Financial Position
Current ratio
Working capital
Other assets
Plant and equipment (net)
Total assets
Long-term debt
Shareholders’ equity
Other Data
Dividends declared
Capital expenditures
Number of employees
Shareholder Data
Closing price of common share at year end (1)
Price/earnings ratio at year end - diluted (1)
Market price per common share-high/low (1)
Number of shareholders of record at year end

$

846,040
9,285
855,325
$
39.35%

$

1.35
0.01
1.36
0.66
4.93
628,800,647

$

1.47
—
1.47
0.58
4.39
653,157,117

907,214
—
907,214
$
38.50%

$

1.37
—
1.37
0.50
4.03
661,919,234

778,288
—
778,288
$
38.25 %

$

1.18
—
1.18
0.42
3.41
661,535,382

$

679,787
—
679,787
38.25%

1.01
—
1.01
0.34
3.26
673,445,783

4.28%
30%

5.04%
35%

5.03%
39%

4.82%
36%

4.71%
31%

19%

23%

25%

23%

21%

1.36
$ 1,173,291
2,127,431
2,464,900
8,992,025
1,627,127
3,052,284

$

1.16
544,216
1,997,815
2,268,301
8,267,902
956,177
2,758,839

$

1.23
724,777
1,829,412
2,166,809
7,847,632
1,231,493
2,564,506

$

1.34
928,405
1,384,327
1,922,660
6,936,521
1,249,467
2,197,531

1.52
$ 1,082,925
1,138,682
1,697,782
5,989,753
1,176,307
2,132,519

$

408,264
514,751
49,600

$

368,792
390,203
47,500

$

321,353
530,086
47,800

$

273,852
435,637
47,400

$

225,530
416,393
46,800

$

30.56
23
37-29
14,282

$

36.25
25
38-29
15,083

$

34.80
25
41-29
15,337

$

29.55
25
33-21
15,533

$

27.22
27
30-22
15,510

$

$

(1) The data presented reflects the 2-for-1 stock splits of December 15, 2000 and March 20, 1998.
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961,457
—
961,457
$
36.97%

$

$

$

2001

2000

1999

$ 21,784,497

$ 19,303,268

$ 17,422,815

$ 15,327,536

$ 14,454,589

$ 13,395,130

17,513,138
3,232,827
71,776
101
20,817,842
966,655
369,746

15,649,551
2,843,755
70,832
1,522
18,565,660
737,608
283,979

14,207,860
2,547,266
72,839
963
16,828,928
593,887
231,616

12,499,636
2,236,932
58,422
53
14,795,043
532,493
207,672

11,835,959
2,076,335
46,502
(162)
13,958,634
495,955
193,422

10,983,796
1,917,376
41,019
(1,004)
12,941,187
453,943
177,038

$

596,909
—
596,909
38.25%

$

0.88
—
0.88
0.27
3.16
677,949,351

$

$

453,629
(8,041)
445,588
38.50%

$

0.68
(0.01)
0.67
0.23
2.60
669,555,856

$

1998

362,271
—
362,271
$
39.00%

$

0.54
—
0.54
0.20
2.11
673,593,338

1997

1-Year
Growth
Rates
2006

324,821
(28,053)
296,768
39.00%

$

0.47
(0.04)
0.43
0.17
1.98
686,880,362

$

1996

302,533
—
302,533
$
39.00%

$

0.43
—
0.43
0.15
1.99
712,167,188

276,905
—
276,905
39.00%

$

0.37
—
0.37
0.13
2.01
739,430,592

4.44%
31%

3.82%
29%

3.41%
27%

3.47%
22%

3.43%
21%

3.39%
20%

21%

17%

16%

14%

15%

14%

1.37
772,770
960,475
1,516,778
5,352,987
961,421
2,100,535

$

1.47
840,608
747,463
1,340,226
4,730,145
1,023,642
1,721,584

$

1.66
948,252
460,146
1,227,669
4,081,205
997,717
1,394,221

$

1.61
825,727
449,068
1,151,054
3,780,189
867,017
1,326,639

$

1.72
821,955
413,762
1,058,432
3,433,823
685,620
1,374,612

$

1.81
855,887
412,436
990,642
3,319,943
581,734
1,451,224

$

180,702
341,138
43,000

$

152,427
266,413
40,400

$

129,516
286,687
35,100

$

115,218
259,353
33,400

$

101,980
210,868
32,000

$

91,044
235,891
30,600

$

27.15
31
30-19
15,493

$

21.07
31
22-13
15,207

$

15.38
28
16-10
15,485

$

12.75
30
14-9
16,142

$

9.25
22
10-7
17,890

$

8.57
23
9-7
19,160

$

$

$

$

$

$

5-Year
10-Year
20-Year
Compound Compound Compound
Growth
Growth
Growth
Rates
Rates
Rates
2002-2006 1997-2006 1987-2006

8%

8%

(9)

8

12

14

(12)

7

12

14

(11)

7

12

14

(8)

9

14

19

(7)
14
12

9
20
9

14
18
9

19
26
15

11

8

8

11

9%

12%
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PART I
ITEM 1. Business
Overview

Sysco Corporation, acting through its subsidiaries and divisions (collectively referred to as ‘‘SYSCO’’ or the ‘‘company’’), is the
largest North American distributor of food and related products primarily to the foodservice or ‘‘food-prepared-away-from-home’’
industry. Founded in 1969, SYSCO provides its products and services to approximately 394,000 customers, including restaurants,
healthcare and educational facilities, lodging establishments and other foodservice customers.
SYSCO, which was formed when the stockholders of nine companies exchanged their stock for SYSCO common stock, commenced
operations in March 1970. Since its formation, the company has grown from $115 million to over $32 billion in annual sales, both
through internal expansion of existing operations and through acquisitions. Through the end of fiscal 2006, SYSCO had acquired
137 companies or divisions of companies.
During fiscal 2006, SYSCO completed the following acquisitions:
) Desert Meats & Provisions, Inc., the largest independent specialty meat distributor in the Las Vegas and southern Nevada
foodservice markets;
) Thomas Brothers Produce, Inc., the largest independent produce distributor in the state of Oklahoma;
) City Produce, Inc. and a related group of companies, which together comprise the largest independent produce distributor in the
Austin, San Antonio, Corpus Christi and Harlingen, Texas foodservice markets;
) Incredible Fresh Produce, a distributor of fresh produce servicing southwest Florida;
) A-One-A Produce & Dairy, Inc., the largest fresh produce distributor in South Florida;
) Western Foods, Inc., a broadline foodservice distributor located in Little Rock, Arkansas; and
) The Fowler & Huntting Company, Inc., a full-line fresh fruit and vegetable distributor headquartered in Hartford, Connecticut.
SYSCO is organized under the laws of Delaware. The address and telephone number of the company’s executive offices are 1390
Enclave Parkway, Houston, Texas 77077-2099, (281) 584-1390. This annual report on Form 10-K, as well as all other reports filed or
furnished by SYSCO pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, are available free of charge on SYSCO’s
website at www.sysco.com as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
Operating Segments

SYSCO provides food and related products to the foodservice or ‘‘food-prepared-away-from-home’’ industry. Under the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 131, ‘‘Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information,’’ the company has aggregated its operating companies into a number of segments, of which only Broadline and SYGMA
are reportable segments as defined in SFAS No. 131. Broadline operating companies distribute a full line of food products and a wide
variety of non-food products to both our traditional and chain restaurant customers. SYGMA operating companies distribute a full line of
food products and a wide variety of non-food products to chain restaurant customer locations. ‘‘Other’’ financial information is
attributable to the company’s other segments, including the company’s specialty produce, custom-cut meat and lodging industry
products segments. The company’s specialty produce companies distribute fresh produce and, on a limited basis, other foodservice
products. Specialty meat companies distribute custom-cut fresh steaks, other meat, seafood and poultry. Our lodging industry products
company distributes personal care guest amenities, equipment, housekeeping supplies, room accessories and textiles to the lodging
industry. Selected financial data for each of the company’s reportable segments as well as financial information concerning geographic
areas can be found in Note 17, Business Segment Information, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.

1

Customers and Products

The foodservice industry consists of two major customer types — ‘‘traditional’’ and ‘‘chain restaurant.’’ Traditional foodservice
customers include restaurants, hospitals, schools, hotels and industrial caterers. SYSCO’s chain restaurant customers include regional
and national hamburger, sandwich, pizza, chicken, steak and other chain operations.
Services to the company’s traditional foodservice and chain restaurant customers are supported by similar physical facilities,
vehicles, material handling equipment and techniques, and administrative and operating staffs.
Products distributed by the company include a full line of frozen foods, such as meats, fully prepared entrees, fruits, vegetables
and desserts; a full line of canned and dry foods; fresh meats; imported specialties; and fresh produce. The company also supplies a
wide variety of non-food items, including: paper products such as disposable napkins, plates and cups; tableware such as china and
silverware; cookware such as pots, pans and utensils; restaurant and kitchen equipment and supplies; and cleaning supplies. SYSCO’s
operating companies distribute nationally-branded merchandise, as well as products packaged under SYSCO’s private brands.
The company believes that prompt and accurate delivery of orders, close contact with customers and the ability to provide a full
array of products and services to assist customers in their foodservice operations are of primary importance in the marketing and
distribution of products to traditional customers. SYSCO’s operating companies offer daily delivery to certain customer locations and
have the capability of delivering special orders on short notice. Through the more than 13,900 sales and marketing representatives and
support staff of SYSCO and its operating companies, SYSCO stays informed of the needs of its customers and acquaints them with new
products and services. SYSCO’s operating companies also provide ancillary services relating to foodservice distribution, such as
providing customers with product usage reports and other data, menu-planning advice, food safety training and assistance in inventory
control, as well as access to various third party services designed to add value to our customers’ businesses.
No single customer accounted for 10% or more of SYSCO’s total sales for its fiscal year ended July 1, 2006.
SYSCO’s sales to chain restaurant customers consist of a variety of food products. The company believes that consistent product
quality and timely and accurate service are important factors in the selection of a chain restaurant supplier. One chain restaurant
customer (Wendy’s International, Inc.) accounted for 5% of SYSCO’s sales for its fiscal year ended July 1, 2006. Although this customer
represents approximately 37% of the SYGMA segment sales, the company does not believe that the loss of this customer would have a
material adverse effect on SYSCO as a whole.
Based upon available information, the company estimates that sales by type of customer during the past three fiscal years were as
follows:
Type of Customer

2006

2005

2004

Restaurants **************************************************************** 63% 64% 64%
Hospitals and nursing homes *************************************************** 10
10
10
Schools and colleges *********************************************************
5
5
5
Hotels and motels ***********************************************************
6
6
6
Other ********************************************************************* 16
15
15
Totals ****************************************************************** 100% 100% 100%
Sources of Supply

SYSCO purchases from thousands of suppliers, none of which individually accounts for more than 10% of the company’s
purchases. These suppliers consist generally of large corporations selling brand name and private label merchandise and independent
regional brand and private label processors and packers. Generally, purchasing is carried out through centrally developed purchasing
programs and direct purchasing programs established by the company’s various operating companies. The company continually develops
relationships with suppliers but has no material long-term purchase commitments with any supplier.
In the second quarter of fiscal 2002, SYSCO began a project to restructure its supply chain (National Supply Chain project). This
project is intended to increase profitability by lowering aggregate inventory levels, operating costs, and future facility expansion needs
at SYSCO’s broadline operating companies while providing greater value to our suppliers and customers.
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The National Supply Chain project involved the creation of the Baugh Supply Chain Cooperative, Inc. (BSCC) which administers a
consolidated product procurement program designed to develop, obtain and ensure consistent quality food and non-food products. The
program covers the purchasing and marketing of SYSCO Brand merchandise as well as products from a number of national brand
suppliers, encompassing substantially all product lines. The operating companies can choose to purchase product from the suppliers
participating in the cooperative’s programs or from other suppliers, although SYSCO Brand products are only available to the operating
companies through the cooperative’s programs.
The National Supply Chain project has three major supply change initiatives actively underway. The first initiative involves the
construction and operation of regional distribution centers which will aggregate inventory demand to optimize the supply chain activities
for certain products for all SYSCO broadline operating companies in the region. The company expects to build from seven to nine
regional distribution centers (RDCs). The first of these centers, the Northeast RDC located in Front Royal, Virginia, opened during the
third quarter of fiscal 2005. SYSCO has purchased the sites for two additional RDCs. The second initiative is the national transportation
management initiative which provides the capability to view and manage all of SYSCO’s inbound freight, both to RDCs and the
operating companies, as a network and not as individual locations. The third initiative relates to inventory management software that
helps SYSCO forecast inventory demand and manage inventories more effectively.
Working Capital Practices

SYSCO’s growth is funded through a combination of cash flow from operations, commercial paper issuances and long-term
borrowings. See the discussion in Liquidity and Capital Resources in Management’s Discussion and Analysis in Item 7 regarding the
company’s liquidity, financial position and sources and uses of funds.
Credit terms extended by SYSCO to its customers can vary from cash on delivery to 30 days or more based on SYSCO’s
assessment of the customers’ credit risk. SYSCO monitors the customers’ accounts and will suspend shipments to customers if
necessary.
A majority of SYSCO’s sales orders are filled within 24 hours of when the customers’ orders are placed. SYSCO will generally
maintain inventory on hand to be able to meet customer demand. The level of inventory on hand will vary by product depending on
product shelf-life, supplier order fulfillment lead times and customer demand. SYSCO also makes purchases of product based on supply
or pricing opportunities.
SYSCO takes advantage of suppliers’ cash discounts where appropriate and otherwise generally receives payment terms from its
suppliers ranging from weekly to 30 days or more.
Corporate Headquarters’ Services

SYSCO’s corporate staff makes available a number of services to the company’s operating companies. Members of the corporate
staff possess experience and expertise in, among other areas, accounting and finance, cash management, information technology,
employee benefits, engineering and insurance. The corporate office makes available legal, marketing, payroll, human resources,
information technology and tax compliance services. The corporate office also makes available warehousing and distribution services,
which provide assistance in space utilization, energy conservation, fleet management and work flow.
Capital Improvements

To maximize productivity and customer service, the company continues to construct and modernize its distribution facilities. During
fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, approximately $514,751,000, $390,203,000 and $530,086,000, respectively, were invested in facility
expansions, fleet additions and other capital asset enhancements. The company estimates its capital expenditures in fiscal 2007 should
be in the range of $575,000,000 to $625,000,000. During the three years ended July 1, 2006, capital expenditures were financed
primarily by internally generated funds, the company’s commercial paper program and bank and other borrowings. The company expects
to finance its fiscal 2007 capital expenditures from the same sources.
Employees

As of July 1, 2006, SYSCO and its operating companies had approximately 49,600 full-time employees, approximately 18% of
whom were represented by unions, primarily the International Brotherhood of Teamsters. Contract negotiations are handled by each
individual operating company. Collective bargaining agreements covering approximately 23% of the company’s union employees expire
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during fiscal 2007. SYSCO considers its labor relations to be satisfactory. During fiscal 2006, the number of customer contact associates
increased 6% over the levels at the end of fiscal 2005. The company intends to continue increasing the number of customer contact
associates in fiscal 2007.
Competition

The business of SYSCO is competitive with numerous companies engaged in foodservice distribution. Foodservice operators may
also choose to purchase products directly from retail outlets. While competition is encountered primarily from local and regional
distributors, a few companies compete with SYSCO on a national basis. The company believes that the principal competitive factors in
the foodservice industry are effective customer contacts, the ability to deliver a wide range of quality products and related services on a
timely and dependable basis and competitive prices. The company estimates that it serves about 14% of an approximately $232 billion
annual market that includes the North American foodservice and hotel amenity, furniture and textile markets. SYSCO believes, based
upon industry trade data, that its sales to the North American ‘‘food-prepared-away-from-home’’ industry were the highest of any
foodservice distributor during fiscal 2006. While adequate industry statistics are not available, the company believes that in most
instances its local operations are among the leading distributors of food and related non-food products to foodservice customers in their
respective trading areas.
Government Regulation

As a marketer and distributor of food products, SYSCO is subject to the U.S. Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and regulations
promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (‘‘FDA’’) and the Canadian Food and Drugs Act and the regulations
thereunder.
The FDA regulates manufacturing and holding requirements for foods through its manufacturing practice regulations, specifies the
standards of identity for certain foods and prescribes the format and content of certain information required to appear on food product
labels. For certain product lines, SYSCO is also subject to the Federal Meat Inspection Act, the Poultry Products Inspection Act, the
Perishable Agricultural Commodities Act, the Packers and Stockyard Act and regulations promulgated thereunder by the
U.S. Department of Agriculture (‘‘USDA’’). The USDA imposes standards for product quality and sanitation including the inspection and
labeling of meat and poultry products and the grading and commercial acceptance of produce shipments from the company’s suppliers.
SYSCO is also subject to the Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act of 2002, which imposes certain
registration and record keeping requirements on facilities that manufacture, process, pack or hold food for human or animal
consumption.
In Canada, the Canadian Food Inspection Agency administers and enforces the food safety and nutritional quality standards
established by Health Canada under the Canadian Food and Drugs Act and under other related federal legislation, including the Canada
Agricultural Products Act, the Meat Inspection Act, the Fish Inspection Act and the Consumer Packaging and Labeling Act (as it relates
to food). These laws regulate the processing, storing, grading, packaging, marking, transporting and inspection of certain SYSCO product
lines as well as the packaging, labeling, sale, importation and advertising of pre-packaged and certain other products.
The company and its products are also subject to state, provincial and local regulation through such measures as the licensing of
its facilities; enforcement by state, provincial and local health agencies of state, provincial and local standards for the company’s
products; and regulation of the company’s trade practices in connection with the sale of its products. SYSCO’s facilities are subject to
inspections and regulations issued pursuant to the U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Act by the U.S. Department of Labor, together
with similar occupational health and safety laws in each Canadian province. These regulations require the company to comply with
certain manufacturing, health and safety standards to protect its employees from accidents and to establish hazard communication
programs to transmit information on the hazards of certain chemicals present in products distributed by the company.
The company also is subject to regulation by numerous U.S. and Canadian federal, state, provincial and local regulatory agencies,
including, but not limited to, the U.S. Department of Labor and each Canadian provincial ministry of labour, which set employment
practice standards for workers, and the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Canadian Transportation Agency, which regulate
transportation of perishable and hazardous materials and waste, and similar state, provincial and local agencies.
Most of the company’s distribution facilities have ammonia-based refrigeration systems and tanks for the storage of diesel fuel
and other petroleum products which are subject to laws regulating such systems and storage tanks. Other U.S. and Canadian federal,
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state, provincial and local provisions relating to the protection of the environment or the discharge of materials do not materially impact
the company’s use or operation of its facilities.
Compliance with these laws has not had and is not anticipated to have a material effect on the capital expenditures, earnings or
competitive position of SYSCO.
General

SYSCO has numerous trademarks which are of significant importance to the company. The loss of the SYSCO˛ trademark would
have a material adverse effect on SYSCO’s results of operations.
SYSCO is not engaged in material research and development activities relating to the development of new products or the
improvement of existing products.
The company’s sales do not generally fluctuate significantly on a seasonal basis; therefore, the business of the company is not
deemed to be seasonal.
As of July 1, 2006, SYSCO and its operating companies operated 188 facilities throughout the United States and Canada, of which
171 were principal distribution facilities.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Low Margin Business; Inflation and Economic Sensitivity

The foodservice distribution industry is characterized by relatively high inventory turnover with relatively low profit margins. SYSCO
makes a significant portion of its sales at prices that are based on the cost of products it sells plus a percentage markup. As a result,
SYSCO’s profit levels may be negatively impacted during periods of product cost deflation, even though SYSCO’s gross profit
percentage may remain relatively constant. Prolonged periods of product cost inflation also may have a negative impact on the
company’s profit margins and earnings to the extent such product cost increases are not passed on to customers due to resistance to
higher prices and the timing needed to pass on such increases. The foodservice industry is sensitive to national and regional economic
conditions. Inflation, fuel costs and other factors affecting consumer confidence and the frequency and amount spent by consumers for
food prepared away from home may negatively impact SYSCO’s sales and operating results. SYSCO’s operating results are also
sensitive to, and may be adversely affected by, other factors, including difficulties collecting accounts receivable, competitive price
pressures, severe weather conditions and unexpected increases in fuel or other transportation-related costs. Although these factors
have not had a material adverse impact on SYSCO’s past operations, there can be no assurance that one or more of these factors will
not adversely affect future operating results.
Increased Fuel Costs

Increased fuel costs have recently had a negative impact on the company’s results of operations. The high cost of fuel can
negatively impact consumer confidence and discretionary spending and thus reduce the frequency and amount spent by consumers for
food prepared away from home. The high cost of fuel can also increase the price paid by SYSCO for products as well as the costs
incurred by SYSCO to deliver products to its customers. These factors in turn negatively impact SYSCO’s sales, margins, operating
expenses and operating results.
Interruption of Supplies and Increases in Product Costs

SYSCO obtains substantially all of its foodservice and related products from third party suppliers. For the most part, SYSCO does
not have long-term contracts with its suppliers committing them to provide products to SYSCO. Although SYSCO’s purchasing volume
can provide leverage when dealing with suppliers, suppliers may not provide the foodservice products and supplies needed by SYSCO in
the quantities and at the prices requested. Because SYSCO does not control the actual production of the products it sells, it also is
subject to delays caused by interruption in production and increases in product costs based on conditions outside its control. These
conditions include work slowdowns, work interruptions, strikes or other job actions by employees of suppliers, weather, crop conditions,
transportation interruptions, unavailability of fuel or increases in fuel costs, competitive demands and natural disasters or other
catastrophic events (including, but not limited to, the outbreak of avian flu or similar food-borne illnesses in the United States and
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Canada). SYSCO’s inability to obtain adequate supplies of its foodservice and related products as a result of any of the foregoing
factors or otherwise could mean that SYSCO could not fulfill its obligations to customers, and customers may turn to other distributors.
Baugh Supply Chain Cooperative Structure

The National Supply Chain project involved the creation of BSCC which administers a consolidated product procurement program
to develop, obtain and ensure consistent quality food and non-food products. BSCC is a cooperative for income tax purposes. SYSCO
believes that the cooperative entity is appropriate for BSCC based on the business operations of this affiliate and on the legal structure
applied. However, if the application of the cooperative structure was to be disallowed by any federal, state or local tax authority,
SYSCO could be required to accelerate the payment of a portion or all of its income tax liabilities that it otherwise has deferred until
future periods and be liable for interest on such amounts. Amounts included as deferred income tax liabilities related to BSCC deferred
supply chain distributions were $924,902,000 as of July 1, 2006. If SYSCO was required to accelerate a significant portion of these
deferred tax liabilities, the company may be required to raise additional capital through debt financing or the issuance of equity or it
may be required to forego or defer planned capital expenditures or share repurchases or a combination thereof and may be required to
pay interest on amounts deferred.
Leverage and Debt Service

Because a substantial part of SYSCO’s growth historically has been the result of acquisitions and capital expansion, SYSCO’s
continued growth depends, in large part, on its ability to continue this expansion. As a result, its inability to finance acquisitions and
capital expenditures through borrowed funds could restrict its ability to expand. Moreover, any default under the documents governing
the indebtedness of SYSCO could have a significant adverse effect on the company’s cash flows, as well as the market value of
SYSCO’s common stock. Further, SYSCO’s leveraged position may also increase its vulnerability to competitive pressures.
Product Liability Claims

SYSCO, like any other seller of food, faces the risk of exposure to product liability claims in the event that the use of products sold
by the company causes injury or illness. With respect to product liability claims, SYSCO believes it has sufficient primary or excess
umbrella liability insurance. However, this insurance may not continue to be available at a reasonable cost, or, if available, may not be
adequate to cover all of SYSCO’s liabilities. SYSCO generally seeks contractual indemnification and insurance coverage from parties
supplying its products, but this indemnification or insurance coverage is limited, as a practical matter, to the creditworthiness of the
indemnifying party and the insured limits of any insurance provided by suppliers. If SYSCO does not have adequate insurance or
contractual indemnification available, product liability relating to defective products could materially reduce SYSCO’s net earnings and
earnings per share.
Reputation and Media Exposure

Maintaining a good reputation is critical to SYSCO’s business, particularly to selling SYSCO Brand products. Anything that
damages that reputation (whether or not justified), including adverse publicity about the quality, safety or integrity of the company’s
products, could quickly affect its revenues and profits. Reports, whether true or not, of food-borne illnesses (such as e-coli, avian flu,
bovine spongiform encephalopathy, hepatitis A, trichinosis or salmonella) and injuries caused by food tampering could also severely
injure the company’s reputation. If patrons of the company’s restaurant customers become ill from food-borne illnesses, the customers
could be forced to temporarily close restaurant locations and SYSCO’s sales would be correspondingly decreased. In addition, instances
of food-borne illnesses or food tampering or other health concerns, even those unrelated to the use of SYSCO products, can result in
negative publicity about the food service distribution industry and cause our sales to decrease dramatically.
Labor Relations and Availability of Qualified Labor

As of July 1, 2006, approximately 8,800 employees at 55 operating companies were members of 61 different local unions
associated with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters and other labor organizations. In fiscal 2007, 16 agreements covering
approximately 2,000 employees will expire. Failure of the operating companies to effectively renegotiate these contracts could result in
work stoppages. Although SYSCO’s operating subsidiaries have not experienced any significant labor disputes or work stoppages to
date, and SYSCO believes they have satisfactory relationships with their unions, a work stoppage due to failure of multiple operating
subsidiaries to renegotiate union contracts could have a material adverse effect on SYSCO.
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SYSCO’s operations rely heavily on its employees, particularly drivers, and any shortage of qualified labor could significantly affect
the company’s business. Our recruiting and retention efforts and efforts to increase productivity gains may not be successful and there
may be a shortage of qualified drivers in future periods. Any such shortage would decrease SYSCO’s ability to effectively serve its
customers. Such a shortage would also likely lead to higher wages for employees and a corresponding reduction in the company’s
revenue and earnings.
Charter and Preferred Stock

Under its Restated Certificate of Incorporation, SYSCO’s Board of Directors is authorized to issue up to 1.5 million shares of
preferred stock without stockholder approval. Issuance of these shares could make it more difficult for anyone to acquire SYSCO
without approval of the Board of Directors, depending on the rights and preferences of the stock issued. In addition, if anyone attempts
to acquire SYSCO without approval of the Board of Directors of SYSCO, the existence of this undesignated preferred stock could allow
the Board of Directors to adopt a shareholder rights plan without obtaining stockholder approval, which could result in substantial
dilution to a potential acquiror. As a result, hostile takeover attempts that might result in an acquisition of SYSCO that could otherwise
have been financially beneficial to SYSCO’s stockholders could be deterred.
Tax Audit

As of July 1, 2006, the company’s 2003 and 2004 federal income tax returns were under audit by the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS). The company believes that it has appropriate support for the positions taken on these tax returns and has recorded a liability for
its best estimate of the probable loss on certain of these positions. However, if the IRS disagrees with the positions taken by the
company on its tax returns, SYSCO could have additional tax liability, including interest and penalties. If material, payment of such
amounts upon final adjudication of any disputes could have an adverse effect on the company’s financial results and cash flows.
Reliance on Technology

SYSCO’s ability to decrease costs and increase profits, as well as its ability to serve customers most effectively, depends on the
reliability of its technology network. The company uses software and other technology systems to load trucks in the most efficient
manner to optimize the use of storage space and minimize the time spent at each stop. Any disruption to these computer systems could
adversely impact SYSCO’s customer service, decrease the volume of its business and result in increased costs. While SYSCO has
invested and continues to invest in technology security initiatives and disaster recovery plans, these measures cannot fully insulate the
company from technology disruption that could result in adverse effects on operations and profits.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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Item 2. Properties
The table below shows the number of distribution facilities and self-serve centers occupied by SYSCO in each state or province
and the aggregate cubic footage devoted to cold and dry storage as of July 1, 2006.
Location

Alabama******************************************************
Alaska *******************************************************
Arizona*******************************************************
Arkansas *****************************************************
California *****************************************************
Colorado******************************************************
Connecticut ***************************************************
District of Columbia *********************************************
Florida *******************************************************
Georgia ******************************************************
Hawaii *******************************************************
Idaho ********************************************************
Illinois *******************************************************
Indiana*******************************************************
Iowa ********************************************************
Kansas *******************************************************
Kentucky *****************************************************
Louisiana *****************************************************
Maine *******************************************************
Maryland *****************************************************
Massachusetts *************************************************
Michigan *****************************************************
Minnesota ****************************************************
Mississippi ****************************************************
Missouri******************************************************
Montana *****************************************************
Nebraska *****************************************************
Nevada ******************************************************
New Jersey ***************************************************
New Mexico **************************************************
New York*****************************************************
North Carolina *************************************************
North Dakota **************************************************
Ohio*********************************************************
Oklahoma *****************************************************
Oregon *******************************************************
Pennsylvania***************************************************
South Carolina *************************************************
South Dakota **************************************************
Tennessee ****************************************************
Texas ********************************************************
Utah*********************************************************
Virginia ******************************************************
Washington ***************************************************
Wisconsin ****************************************************
Alberta, Canada ************************************************
British Columbia, Canada *****************************************
Manitoba, Canada **********************************************
New Brunswick, Canada ******************************************
Newfoundland, Canada*******************************************
Nova Scotia, Canada ********************************************
Ontario, Canada ************************************************
Quebec, Canada ************************************************
Saskatchewan, Canada *******************************************
Total ******************************************************

* Segments served include Broadline (BL), SYGMA (S) and Other (O).
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Number of
Facilities
and Centers

Cold Storage
(Thousands
Cubic Feet)

Dry Storage
(Thousands
Cubic Feet)

3
1
1
2
19
4
2
1
17
6
1
2
6
2
1
1
1
1
1
5
2
4
2
1
2
1
1
3
4
1
5
6
1
9
4
3
4
1
1
4
17
1
3
1
3
2
8
1
2
2
1
9
1
1
188

5,086
1,067
2,901
2,549
27,309
6,304
5,619
335
26,657
5,654
—
2,023
5,916
3,905
2,300
4,003
2,330
3,265
1,507
8,826
5,605
5,501
4,299
2,125
2,182
3,288
1,712
2,980
4,135
2,921
7,433
5,440
821
8,963
3,747
3,980
6,780
2,271
2
6,630
20,059
3,600
13,162
4,004
7,128
4,090
3,896
1,135
1,172
744
735
8,621
716
1,271
268,704

6,443
645
3,190
2,958
34,157
6,399
4,115
30
27,877
14,937
258
2,366
10,492
1,822
2,935
3,894
2,648
2,994
2,121
8,896
7,798
9,569
4,247
2,690
2,709
2,538
2,108
4,486
10,753
3,029
10,436
11,478
1,188
13,933
4,148
3,791
8,286
2,362
123
9,517
24,105
3,690
10,091
2,950
5,902
3,982
4,649
860
1,031
669
704
9,123
1,209
750
324,081

Segments
Served*

BL
BL
BL
BL,O
BL, S,
BL, S,
BL, O
O
BL, S,
BL, S,
O
BL
BL, S,
BL, O
BL
BL
BL
BL
BL
BL, O
BL, S
BL, S,
BL
BL
BL, S
BL
BL
BL, O
BL, O
BL
BL
BL, S,
BL
BL, S,
BL, S,
BL, S,
BL, S
BL
BL
BL, O
BL, S,
BL
BL
BL
BL
BL
BL, O
BL
BL
BL
BL
BL, S,
BL
BL

O
O
O
O
O

O

O
O
O
O

O

O

SYSCO owns approximately 464,285,000 cubic feet of its distribution facilities and self-serve centers (or 78.3% of the total cubic
feet), and the remainder is occupied under leases expiring at various dates from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2041, exclusive of renewal options.
Certain of the facilities owned by the company are either subject to mortgage indebtedness or industrial revenue bond financing
arrangements totaling $15,789,000 at July 1, 2006. Such mortgage indebtedness and industrial revenue bond financing arrangements
mature at various dates through fiscal 2026.
The company owns its approximately 175,000 square foot headquarters office complex in Houston, Texas and leases approximately
218,000 square feet of additional office space in Houston, Texas. The company began the expansion of its headquarters office complex
in fiscal 2006, the first phase of which is expected to be completed in the fall of 2006. Upon completion of the first phase of the
expansion, the company’s headquarters office complex will be approximately 325,000 and 150,000 owned and leased square feet,
respectively.
Facilities in Riviera Beach, Florida; Albuquerque, New Mexico; and Columbia, South Carolina (which in the aggregate accounted for
approximately 2.6% of fiscal 2006 sales) are operating near capacity and the company is currently constructing expansions or
replacements for these distribution facilities. The company has also announced plans to construct new distribution facilities in Knoxville,
Tennessee and Longview, Texas. The company expects its second regional redistribution facility, to be located in Alachua, Florida, and
will be operational in fiscal 2008. The company has also purchased the site of its third regional distribution facility to be built in Hamlet,
Indiana.
As of July 1, 2006, SYSCO’s fleet of approximately 8,900 delivery vehicles consisted of tractor and trailer combinations, vans and
panel trucks, most of which are either wholly or partially refrigerated for the transportation of frozen or perishable foods. The company
owns approximately 87% of these vehicles and leases the remainder.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
SYSCO is engaged in various legal proceedings which have arisen in the normal course of business but have not been fully
adjudicated. These proceedings, in the opinion of management, will not have a material adverse effect upon the consolidated financial
position or results of operations of the company when ultimately concluded.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
The principal market for SYSCO’s Common Stock (SYY) is the New York Stock Exchange. The table below sets forth the high and
low sales prices per share for SYSCO’s Common Stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape and the cash
dividends declared for the periods indicated.
Common Stock Prices
High
Low

Fiscal 2005:
First Quarter ******************************************************* $36.00
Second Quarter ***************************************************** 38.43
Third Quarter******************************************************* 37.83
Fourth Quarter ****************************************************** 38.04
Fiscal 2006:
First Quarter ******************************************************* $37.30
Second Quarter ***************************************************** 33.59
Third Quarter******************************************************* 32.72
Fourth Quarter ****************************************************** 32.15

Dividends
Declared
Per Share

$29.48
29.71
32.57
34.23

$0.13
0.15
0.15
0.15

$30.96
29.98
29.11
29.11

$0.15
0.17
0.17
0.17

The number of record owners of SYSCO’s Common Stock as of August 26, 2006 was 14,091.
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On March 31, 2006, a total of 35,522 dividend access shares, convertible on a one-for-one basis into SYSCO shares, were released
by a Canadian subsidiary of the company to the former shareholders of North Douglas Distributors, Ltd. n/k/a North Douglas Sysco Food
Services, Inc. pursuant to the terms of an earnout agreement executed in connection with Sysco Holdings of BC, Inc.’s acquisition of
North Douglas Distributors, Ltd. in December 2000.
The above issuance was made pursuant to the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended.
SYSCO made the following share repurchases during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006:

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Period

Month #1
April 2 — April 29*************************
Month #2
April 30 — May 27 ************************
Month #3
May 28 — July 1 *************************
Total *************************************
(1)

(a) Total Number
of Shares Purchased(1)

(b) Average Price
Paid Per Share

(c) Total Number
of Shares
Purchased
as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs

420,141

$ 31.59

418,000

19,448,900

133,354

30.04

110,000

19,338,900

12,131
565,626

30.36
$ 31.20

—
528,000

19,338,900
19,338,900

(d) Maximum Number
of Shares That May Yet
be Purchased Under
the Plans or Programs

The total number of shares purchased includes 2,141, 23,354 and 12,131 shares tendered by individuals in connection with stock
option exercises in Month #1, Month #2 and Month #3, respectively.

On February 18, 2005, the company announced that the Board of Directors approved the repurchase of 20,000,000 shares. On
November 10, 2005, the company announced that the Board of Directors approved the repurchase of an additional 20,000,000 shares
upon the completion of the February 2005 program. Pursuant to these repurchase programs, shares may be acquired in the open market
or in privately negotiated transactions at the company’s discretion, subject to market conditions and other factors. In July 2004, the
Board of Directors authorized the company to enter into agreements from time to time to extend its ongoing repurchase program to
include repurchases during company announced ‘‘blackout periods’’ of such securities in compliance with Rule 10b5-1 promulgated
under the Exchange Act.
On March 6, 2006, the company entered into a stock purchase plan with Wells Fargo Securities, LLC to purchase up to
1,500,000 shares of SYSCO common stock as authorized under the February 2005 and November 2005 repurchase programs pursuant to
Rules 10b5-1 and 10b-18 under the Exchange Act. A total of 902,000 shares were purchased between March 6, 2006 and May 2, 2006,
including during company ‘‘blackout’’ periods. By its terms, the agreement terminated on May 2, 2006.
From July 2, 2006 through August, 26, 2006, an additional 673,400 shares were purchased. As of August 26, 2006, no shares
remained available for repurchase under the February 2005 repurchase program, and there were 18,665,500 shares remaining available
for repurchase under the November 2005 repurchase program.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Fiscal Year
2004
2005
(53 Weeks)
2003(3)
(In thousands except for share data)

2006(1,2)

2002

Sales ********************************************
Earnings before income taxes **************************
Income taxes **************************************

$32,628,438
1,394,946
548,906

$30,281,914
1,525,436
563,979

$29,335,403
1,475,144
567,930

$26,140,337
1,260,387
482,099

$23,350,504
1,100,870
421,083

Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change ******
Cumulative effect of accounting change ******************

846,040
9,285

961,457
—

907,214
—

778,288
—

679,787
—

Net earnings***************************************

$

855,325

Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change:
Basic earnings per share**************************** $
1.36
Diluted earnings per share **************************
1.35
Net earnings:
Basic earnings per share**************************** $
1.38
Diluted earnings per share **************************
1.36
Dividends declared per share **************************
0.66
Total assets *************************************** $ 8,992,025
Capital expenditures *********************************
514,751
Current maturities of long-term debt ********************* $ 106,265
Long-term debt *************************************
1,627,127

$

961,457

$

907,214

$

778,288

$

679,787

$

1.51
1.47

$

1.41
1.37

$

1.20
1.18

$

1.03
1.01

1.51
1.47
0.58
$ 8,267,902
390,203
$ 410,933
956,177

$

1.41
1.37
0.50
$ 7,847,632
530,086
$ 162,833
1,231,493

$

1.20
1.18
0.42
$ 6,936,521
435,637
$
20,947
1,249,467

$

1.03
1.01
0.34
$ 5,989,753
416,393
$
13,754
1,176,307

$

Total long-term debt *********************************
Shareholders’ equity *********************************

1,733,392
3,052,284

1,367,110
2,758,839

1,394,326
2,564,506

1,270,414
2,197,531

1,190,061
2,132,519

Total capitalization **********************************

$ 4,785,676

$ 4,125,949

$ 3,958,832

$ 3,467,945

$ 3,322,580

Ratio of long-term debt to capitalization ******************
(1)

(2)

(3)

36.2%

33.1%

35.2%

36.6%

35.8%

In fiscal 2006, SYSCO recorded a one-time, after-tax, non-cash increase to earnings of $9,285,000 as a result of changing the
measurement date of its pension and other postretirement benefit plans from fiscal year-end to May 31st which represents a
change in accounting. The pro forma effects of retroactive application of the change in the measurement date for fiscal 2005,
2004, 2003 and 2002 are not material.
SYSCO adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R), ‘‘Share-Based Payment’’ effective at the beginning of fiscal 2006. As a result, the
results of operations include incremental share-based compensation cost over what would have been recorded had the company
continued to account for share-based compensation under APB No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.’’
SYSCO adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142, ‘‘Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’’ effective at the beginning
of fiscal 2003. As a result, the amortization of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives was discontinued.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Highlights

Sales increased 7.8% in fiscal 2006 over the prior year. Gross margins as a percentage of sales were 19.28% for fiscal 2006, or
0.18% greater as a percentage of sales than the prior year. Operating expenses as a percentage of sales for fiscal 2006 increased from
the prior year, primarily due to incremental share-based compensation expense; increased fuel costs and increased pension costs,
partially offset by lower management performance-based incentive compensation. Interest expense increased in fiscal 2006 over the
prior year due to a combination of increased borrowing rates and increased borrowing levels. The increase in the effective tax rate for
fiscal 2006 was due to the combination of the adoption of SFAS 123(R), coupled with the impact of certain tax benefits recorded in
fiscal 2005. Primarily as a result of these factors, net earnings before the cumulative effect of accounting change for fiscal 2006
decreased 12.0% over the prior year.
The Northeast Redistribution Center (Northeast RDC) began operations in the third quarter of fiscal 2005; therefore, the net impact
of the National Supply Chain project in fiscal 2006 includes both expenses incurred by the project as well as certain direct benefits.
Current direct benefits have been realized in the areas of cost of sales and operating expenses. Management estimates that expenses
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and direct benefits related to the National Supply Chain project had a net negative impact on earnings before income taxes of
approximately $40,000,000 during fiscal 2006.
In fiscal 2006, SYSCO adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 123(R), ‘‘Share-Based Payment,’’ (SFAS 123(R)) utilizing the
modified-prospective transition method under which prior period results have not been restated. The results of operations for fiscal
2006 include incremental share-based compensation cost over what would have been recorded had the company continued to account
for share-based compensation under APB 25 of $118,038,000 ($105,810,000, net of tax).
SYSCO adopted accounting pronouncement EITF 04-13 ‘‘Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventory With the Same
Counterparty,’’ (EITF 04-13) at the beginning of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The accounting standard requires certain transactions,
where inventory is purchased by SYSCO from a customer and then resold at a later date to the same customer (as defined), to be
presented in the income statement on a net basis. The impact of adopting this new standard resulted in sales being reduced by
$99,803,000. Cost of sales were also reduced by the same amount and thus net earnings are unaffected by the adoption of this
standard. SYSCO adopted this accounting pronouncement beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 and will apply it to similar
transactions prospectively. Prior year’s sales and cost of sales have not been restated. Therefore, the calculation of sales growth and
the comparison of gross margins, operating expenses and earnings as a percentage of sales between the two years are affected.
In the first quarter of fiscal 2006, SYSCO recorded a cumulative effect of a change in accounting, due to a change in the
measurement date for pension and other postretirement benefit plans to assist the company in meeting accelerated SEC filing dates,
which increased net earnings for fiscal 2006 by $9,285,000, net of tax.
General economic conditions, including fuel costs and their impact on consumer spending, can have an impact on SYSCO’s sales
growth. Management believes that SYSCO’s continued focus on customer account penetration through the use of business reviews
with customers, increases in the number of customer contact personnel and efforts of the company’s marketing associates overcame
these economic conditions and contributed to the company’s sales growth in fiscal 2006. These economic conditions may continue to be
a factor to SYSCO’s sales growth in future periods.
Overview

SYSCO distributes food and related products to restaurants, healthcare and educational facilities, lodging establishments and other
foodservice customers. SYSCO’s operations are located throughout the United States and Canada and include broadline companies,
specialty produce companies, custom-cut meat operations, hotel supply operations, and SYGMA, the company’s chain restaurant
distribution subsidiary.
The company estimates that it serves about 14% of an approximately $232 billion annual market that includes the North American
foodservice and hotel amenity, furniture and textile markets. According to industry sources, the foodservice, or food-prepared-awayfrom-home, market represents approximately one-half of the total dollars spent on food purchases made at the consumer level. This
share grew from about 37% in 1972 to about 50% in 1998 and has not changed materially since that time.
General economic conditions and consumer confidence can affect the frequency of purchases and amounts spent by consumers for
food-prepared-away-from-home and in turn can impact SYSCO’s sales. SYSCO historically has grown at a faster rate than the overall
industry and has grown its market share in this fragmented industry.
The company intends to continue to expand its market share and grow earnings through strategies which include:
) Sales growth: The company plans to grow sales by gaining an increased share of products purchased by existing customers,
development of new customers, the use of foldouts (new operating companies created in established markets previously served
by other SYSCO operating companies) and a disciplined acquisition program. The company uses market information to estimate
the potential sales and profitability of new and existing customers. Marketing resources, SYSCO Brand products and valueadded services provided by SYSCO can be custom-tailored to the purchasing needs of customers. Additionally, the investment of
resources in any particular account can be made in proportion to the account’s potential profitability.
) Brand management: SYSCO Brand products are manufactured by suppliers to meet the company’s product specifications using
strict quality assurance standards. Management believes that SYSCO Brand products provide a greater value to customers and
differentiate the company from its competitors. Management also believes that SYSCO Brand products generally provide higher
profitability than national brand products.
12

) Productivity gains: The company’s investment in warehousing and transportation technology and the implementation of best
business practices allows SYSCO to leverage operating expenses relative to sales growth.
) Sales force effectiveness: The company invests in the development and expansion of its customer contact resources by hiring
additional customer contact personnel through targeted recruiting, hiring and promotion practices, effective use of training
programs and improved compensation systems. Expanded business review and business development functions allow the sales
force to strengthen customer relationships and increase sales.
) Supply chain management: The company’s National Supply Chain project and related organization is being developed to reduce
total supply chain costs, operating costs and working capital requirements of the company.
National Supply Chain Project

The company’s National Supply Chain project is intended to optimize the supply chain activities for products for SYSCO’s operating
companies in each respective region and is expected to result in increased sales and profitability. In addition, it will lower inventory,
operating costs, working capital requirements and future facility expansion needs at SYSCO’s operating companies while providing
greater value to our suppliers and customers. The company expects to build from seven to nine regional distribution centers in the
United States. The first of these centers, the Northeast RDC located in Front Royal, Virginia, opened during the third quarter of fiscal
2005.
During fiscal 2006 management identified a number of operational changes that they believed would make the Northeast RDC
more efficient and held case volumes constant while these changes were being implemented. Additional case volume began to flow
through the Northeast RDC after implementing these changes and case volumes continued to increase at a controlled and measured
pace. Management continues to believe that the long-term economic objectives of the project will be achieved. The long-term benefits
expected to be realized from the National Supply Chain project will be reflected in the sales, cost of sales, operating expenses and
interest expense line items in the Results of Operations statement.
In January 2006, SYSCO completed the purchase of land in Alachua, Florida for the future site of its second RDC, which will
service the company’s five broadline operating companies in Florida. This facility is expected to be operational in fiscal 2008. The
company has also purchased the site for construction of a third RDC in Hamlet, Indiana.
Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the components of the Results of Operations expressed as a percentage of sales for the periods
indicated:
2006

Sales *****************************************************************
Costs and Expenses
Cost of sales *********************************************************
Operating expenses ****************************************************
Interest expense ******************************************************
Other, net ***********************************************************

2005

2004

100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
80.7
14.7
0.3
0.0

80.9
13.9
0.2
0.0

80.7
14.1
0.2
0.0

Total costs and expenses **************************************************

95.7

95.0

95.0

Earnings before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change *************
Income taxes ***********************************************************

4.3
1.7

5.0
1.8

5.0
1.9

Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change ***************************
Cumulative effect of accounting change ***************************************

2.6
—

3.2
—

3.1
—

Net earnings ***********************************************************

2.6%

3.2%

3.1%
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The following table sets forth the change in the components of the Results of Operations expressed as a percentage increase or
decrease over the prior year:
2006

2005

Sales*************************************************************************
Costs and Expenses
Cost of sales *****************************************************************
Operating expenses ************************************************************
Interest expense **************************************************************
Other, net *******************************************************************

7.5
14.4
45.5
(17.3)

3.5
1.3
7.3
(11.8)

Total costs and expenses **********************************************************

8.6

3.2

Earnings before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change *********************
Income taxes *******************************************************************

(8.6)
(2.7)

3.4
(0.7)

Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change ***********************************
Cumulative effect of accounting change ***********************************************

(12.0)
—

6.0
—

Net earnings *******************************************************************

(11.0)%

6.0%

(9.9)%
(8.2)

7.1%
7.3

(8.6)
(7.5)
(2.3)
(3.7)

7.1
7.3
(1.0)
(1.3)

Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change:
Basic earnings per share **********************************************************
Diluted earnings per share *********************************************************
Net earnings:
Basic earnings per share **********************************************************
Diluted earnings per share *********************************************************
Average shares outstanding ********************************************************
Diluted shares outstanding*********************************************************

7.8%

3.2%

Sales

Sales for fiscal 2006 were 7.8% greater than fiscal 2005. Acquisitions contributed 1.4% to the overall sales growth rate for fiscal
2006 and 0.8% for fiscal 2005. The adoption of EITF 04-13 at the beginning of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 reduced sales growth in
fiscal 2006 by 0.3%, or $99,803,000. Sales for fiscal 2005 were 3.2% greater than fiscal 2004, or 5.3% greater after adjusting for the
additional week in fiscal 2004. Because the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 contained an additional week as compared to fiscal 2005,
sales growth for fiscal years 2005 and 2004 are not directly comparable. In order to provide a more comparable picture of sales growth,
management believes that it is appropriate to adjust the sales figures for fiscal 2004 by the estimated impact of the additional week.
As a result, sales for fiscal 2004 presented in the table below are adjusted by one-fourteenth of total sales for the fourth quarter. Set
forth below is a reconciliation of actual sales growth to adjusted sales growth for the periods presented:

Sales for the fiscal year***************************
Estimated sales for the additional week ***************
Adjusted sales **********************************
Actual percentage increase ************************
Adjusted percentage increase***********************

2006
(52 Weeks)

2005
(52 Weeks)

2004
(53 Weeks)

$32,628,438,000
—
$32,628,438,000

$30,281,914,000
—
$30,281,914,000

$29,335,403,000
581,358,000
$28,754,045,000

7.8%
7.8%

3.2%
5.3%

12.2%
10.0%

SYSCO generally expects to pass product cost increases to its customers; however, the actual amount of inflation reflected as
sales price increases is difficult to quantify. Estimated product cost increases were 0.6% during fiscal 2006 as compared to 3.5% during
fiscal 2005.
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SYSCO’s continued focus on customer account penetration through the use of business reviews with customers, increases in the
number of customer contact personnel and efforts of the company’s marketing associates contributed to the sales growth in fiscal 2006.
The number of customer contact personnel has increased approximately 6% since the end of fiscal 2005.
Management believes that prolonged periods of rising product costs together with general economic conditions, including the
impact of increased fuel costs on consumer spending, contributed to the softness in the foodservice market and thus a slowing of
SYSCO’s sales growth beginning in the latter half of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 and continuing into the first half of fiscal 2005.
After adjusting for the additional week in fiscal 2004, sales growth remained relatively stable over the course of fiscal 2005.
Management believes that the declining rate of product cost increases over the course of fiscal 2005 has lessened the overall gross
margin pressures experienced during the year and has contributed to the underlying unit growth in the latter half of fiscal 2005 and all
of fiscal 2006. Additionally, management believes that the continued focus on the company’s business review process has contributed
to unit sales growth.
Industry sources estimate the total foodservice market experienced real sales growth of approximately 1.9% in calendar year 2005
and 2.3% in calendar year 2004.
A comparison of the sales mix in the principal product categories during the last three years is presented below:
2006

Fresh and frozen meats *******************************************************
Canned and dry products ******************************************************
Frozen fruits, vegetables, bakery and other *****************************************
Poultry ********************************************************************
Dairy products **************************************************************
Fresh produce **************************************************************
Paper and disposables ********************************************************
Seafood *******************************************************************
Beverage products ***********************************************************
Equipment and smallwares*****************************************************
Janitorial products ***********************************************************
Medical supplies ************************************************************

2005

2004

19% 19% 19%
18
18
18
14
14
14
10
11
11
9
9
9
9
8
8
8
8
8
5
5
5
3
3
3
2
2
2
2
2
2
1
1
1
100% 100% 100%

A comparison of sales by type of customer during the last three years is presented below:
2006

Restaurants ****************************************************************
Hospitals and nursing homes ***************************************************
Schools and colleges *********************************************************
Hotels and motels ***********************************************************
All other ******************************************************************

2005

2004

63% 64% 64%
10
10
10
5
5
5
6
6
6
16
15
15
100% 100% 100%

Gross Margins

Gross margins as a percentage of sales were 19.3% for fiscal 2006, as compared to 19.1% for fiscal 2005. The adoption of
EITF 04-13 contributed 0.06% to the increase in gross margins as a percentage of sales in fiscal 2006. Management believes that the
remaining gross margin increase was aided by several factors, including low product cost inflation and effective merchandising.
Estimated product cost increases, an internal measure of inflation, were 0.6% during fiscal 2006, as compared to 3.5% during
fiscal 2005. SYSCO generally expects to pass product cost increases to its customers; however, during periods of rapidly increasing
product costs, price increases to customers generally lag. This lag impacted gross margins in fiscal 2005 as discussed below.
Conversely, in fiscal 2006, the moderation of product cost increases allowed SYSCO to be more effective in managing pricing to its
customers. This was achieved by maintaining stable pricing and avoiding the absorption of significant product cost increases before
pricing to customers was adjusted. The benefits realized by the National Supply Chain project and better leveraging of our purchasing
power resulted in lower overall product costs.
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Gross margins as a percentage of sales were 19.1% for fiscal 2005, as compared to 19.3% for fiscal 2004. Management believes
that this gross margin decline was caused by several factors, including product cost increases, changes in segment mix, customer mix
and pricing pressure. The decline in gross margins as a percentage of sales slowed during the course of fiscal 2005 due in part to a
lessening of the rate of product cost increases during the fiscal year. Product cost increases in most of the product categories had the
impact of reducing gross margins as a percentage of sales. The gross margin reduction is generally due to two reasons: i) the resulting
higher sales dollar base impacts the comparison of the ratio between the two years and ii) price increases passed on to customers lag
behind the product cost increases incurred from vendors. In periods of rising product costs, even when gross margin dollars are
maintained or slightly increased, the resulting gross margin percentage of sales ratio will be lower than the prior year due to the higher
sales dollar base.
During periods of rapidly increasing product costs like those experienced in fiscal 2005, price increases to customers generally lag.
In the case of marketing associate served customers, marketing associates will generally encounter resistance and may not be able to
immediately raise prices. In the case of multi-unit customers, prices are agreed to contractually. The contracted prices are fixed for
periods of up to 30 days and thus price increases to these customers will also lag. The contracted prices are frequently also fee-based
which results in the same gross margin dollars with a higher sales price and therefore a lower gross margin as a percentage of sales.
Changes in segment mix also contributed to the decline in gross margins in fiscal 2005 when compared to the prior year. Sales at
the SYGMA segment, which traditionally have lower margins than Broadline segment sales, grew faster than sales at the Broadline
segment. Changes in customer mix also contributed to the decline in gross margins in fiscal 2005 when compared to the prior year.
Multi-unit customer sales in the Broadline segment, which traditionally yield lower gross margins and lower expenses than marketing
associate-served customer sales, grew faster, and thus represented a greater percentage of total sales in fiscal 2005 than in fiscal
2004. Management also believes that competitive pricing pressures contributed to the decline in gross margins.
Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include the costs of warehousing and delivering products as well as selling, administrative and occupancy
expenses. Changes in the percentage relationship of operating expenses to sales result from an interplay of several factors, including
improved efficiencies, customer mix, and product cost increases which result in increases in sales prices.
Operating expenses as a percentage of sales were 14.7% for fiscal 2006, as compared to 13.9% for fiscal 2005. The increase in
operating expenses as a percentage of sales included incremental share-based compensation, increased fuel costs, increased pension
costs and increased expenses associated with the National Supply Chain project, partially offset by reduced management performance
based incentive bonuses.
Operating expenses for fiscal 2006 include incremental share-based compensation cost of $118,038,000 resulting from the
adoption of SFAS 123(R) (See Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8). Fuel costs increased $48,600,000 fiscal 2006
over the prior year. Net pension costs increased $23,734,000 in fiscal 2006 over the prior year. Operating expenses were reduced by the
recognition of a gain of $9,702,000 in fiscal 2006 to adjust the carrying value of life insurance assets to their cash surrender value, as
compared to a gain of $13,803,000 in fiscal 2005. Management performance based incentive bonuses were reduced by $27,270,000 in
fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005.
Management estimates that expenses and direct benefits related to the National Supply Chain project had a net negative impact
on earnings before income taxes of approximately $40,000,000 during fiscal 2006. Direct benefits from the National Supply Chain
project in fiscal 2006 were primarily realized in reduced cost of sales. The long-term benefits expected to be realized from the National
Supply Chain project will be reflected in the sales, cost of sales, operating expenses and interest expense line items in the Results of
Operations statement.
Operating expenses as a percentage of sales were 13.9% for fiscal 2005, as compared to 14.1% for fiscal 2004. The decrease in
operating expenses as a percentage of sales was aided by improved operating efficiencies. For example, the Broadline segment
continues to demonstrate improving trends in key expense metrics, including miles driven per trip, pieces per stop and pieces per error.
Increases in product costs and the resulting increased average sales price per item also favorably impacted expenses as a percentage
of sales as operating costs increased at a lower rate than sales.
Operating expenses for fiscal 2005 were negatively impacted by increased costs to deliver product to customers due to increased
fuel costs of approximately $31,000,000 over the prior year. Operating expenses related to the National Supply Chain project were
$46,450,000 in fiscal 2005, as compared to $29,333,000 in fiscal 2004. Also included in operating expenses was the recognition of a
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gain of $13,803,000 in fiscal 2005 to adjust the carrying value of life insurance assets to their cash surrender value, as compared to a
gain of $19,124,000 in fiscal 2004. Operating expenses were reduced by a reduction of management performance based incentive
bonuses of $26,989,000 and a decrease in net pension cost of $7,374,000 in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004.
In order to partially manage the volatility and uncertainty of fuel costs, SYSCO from time to time will enter into forward purchase
commitments for a portion of SYSCO’s projected monthly diesel fuel requirements. Forward diesel fuel purchase commitments
outstanding as of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005, respectively, were not material.
Net pension costs for fiscal 2007 are expected to decrease $53,900,000 from fiscal 2006 due primarily to an increase in the
discount rate utilized to determine net pension costs.
Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense of $34,100,000 in fiscal 2006 over fiscal 2005 was due to a combination of increased borrowing
rates and increased borrowing levels.
In fiscal 2006, commercial paper and short-term bank borrowing rates increased over the prior year. Effective borrowing rates on
long-term debt also increased over the comparable prior year period. In fiscal 2005, effective borrowing rates on long-term debt were
lowered through the use of fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps.
Higher overall borrowing levels are a result of the level of share repurchases, increased working capital requirements driven
primarily by sales growth and continued capital investments in the form of additions to plant and equipment and acquisitions of new
businesses.
The increase in interest expense of $5,120,000 in fiscal 2005 over fiscal 2004, was due to increased borrowing interest rates. The
increase in the company’s overall borrowing interest rates was primarily due to an increase in the percentage of the company’s debt
with fixed interest rates in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004. In fiscal 2004, the company’s debt portfolio included a larger
percentage of floating rate debt in the form of either commercial paper issuances or fixed rate debt converted to floating through
interest rate swap agreements. In addition, market interest rates increased during fiscal 2005.
Other, Net

Changes between the years result from fluctuations in miscellaneous activities, primarily gains and losses on the sale of surplus
facilities.
Income Taxes

The effective tax rate was 39.35% in fiscal 2006, 36.97% in fiscal 2005 and 38.50% in fiscal 2004.
The increase in the effective tax rate for fiscal 2006 was a combination of the adoption of SFAS 123(R), which is discussed in
Note 13, Share-Based Compensation, and Note 14, Income Taxes, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, and certain tax
benefits recorded in fiscal 2005. SYSCO recorded a tax benefit of $12,228,000, or 10.4% of the $118,038,000 in incremental sharebased compensation expense recorded in fiscal 2006, as a result of the adoption of SFAS 123(R).
The income tax expense in fiscal 2005 was reduced by tax benefits totaling $19,500,000 primarily related to the reversal of a tax
contingency accrual and to the reversal of valuation allowances previously recorded on certain state net operating loss carryforwards.
Net Earnings

Net earnings decreased 11.0% in fiscal 2006 over the prior year. The decrease was due primarily to the factors discussed above.
In addition, in the first quarter of fiscal 2006, SYSCO recorded a cumulative effect of a change in accounting due to a change in the
measurement date for pension and other postretirement benefits, which increased net earnings for fiscal 2006 by $9,285,000, net of
tax.
The increases in net earnings in fiscal 2005 over fiscal 2004 were due to the factors discussed above. In addition, the comparison
of fiscal 2005’s net earnings to fiscal 2004 was negatively impacted by the additional 53rd week in fiscal 2004.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share decreased 8.6% and 7.5%, respectively, in fiscal 2006 over the prior year.
These decreases were due primarily to the result of factors discussed above, partially offset by a net reduction in shares outstanding.
The net reduction in average shares outstanding used to calculate basic earnings per share is primarily due to share repurchases. The
net reduction in diluted shares outstanding is primarily due to share repurchases, the exclusion of certain options from the diluted share
calculation due to their anti-dilutive effect and a modification of the treasury stock method calculation utilized to compute the dilutive
effect of stock options as a result of the adoption of SFAS 123(R). This modification results in lower diluted shares outstanding than
would have been calculated had compensation cost not been recorded for stock options and stock issuances under the Employees’
Stock Purchase Plan.
Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share increased 7.1% and 7.3%, respectively, in fiscal 2005 over prior year. The
increases in earnings per share were the result of factors discussed above, as well as a net reduction of shares outstanding due
primarily to share repurchases.
Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity

The return on average shareholders’ equity was approximately 30% in fiscal 2006, 35% in fiscal 2005 and 39% in fiscal 2004. The
lower return in fiscal 2006 was impacted by the reduction in earnings resulting from the adoption of SFAS 123(R) as discussed above.
The higher return in fiscal 2004 was primarily due to the impact of minimum pension liability adjustments to shareholders’ equity. Since
its inception, SYSCO has averaged approximately 20% return on average shareholders’ equity.
Segment Results

The following table sets forth the change in the selected financial data of each of the company’s reportable segments expressed
as a percentage increase over the prior year and should be read in conjunction with Business Segment Information in Note 17 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8:
2006
Sales

Broadline ***************************************************
SYGMA ****************************************************
Other ******************************************************

2005

Earnings
Before Taxes

5.8%
10.8
23.4

1.9%
(55.4)
28.6

Earnings
Before Taxes

Sales

1.7%
10.4
8.4

5.0%
(28.1)
11.7

The following table sets forth sales and earnings before taxes of each of the company’s reportable segments expressed as a
percentage of the respective consolidated total and should be read in conjunction with Business Segment Information in Note 17 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8:
2006
Sales

Broadline ***********************************
SYGMA ************************************
Other **************************************
Intersegment sales ****************************
Unallocated corporate expenses ******************
Total***************************************

78.7%
13.3
9.2
(1.2)
—
100.0%

2005

Earnings
Before Taxes

110.8%
0.6
7.9
—
(19.3)
100.0%

Sales

80.1%
12.9
8.1
(1.1)
—
100.0%

2004

Earnings
Before Taxes

99.4%
1.2
5.6
—
(6.2)
100.0%

Sales

81.3%
12.1
7.7
(1.1)
—
100.0%

Earnings
Before Taxes

97.9%
1.7
5.2
—
(4.8)
100.0%

The company does not allocate share-based compensation related to stock option grants, issuances of stock pursuant to the
Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan and restricted stock grants to non-employee directors and corporate officers. The increase in
unallocated corporate expenses as a percentage of consolidated earnings before taxes in fiscal 2006 over fiscal 2005 is primarily
attributable to these items. See further discussion of Share-Based Compensation in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8.
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Broadline Segment

Sales for fiscal 2006 were 5.8% greater than fiscal 2005. The adoption of EITF 04-13 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 reduced
sales growth in fiscal 2006 by 0.2%, or $57,211,000. Sales for fiscal 2005 were 1.7% greater than fiscal 2004. Acquisitions contributed
0.1% to the overall sales growth rate for both fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005. Management believes that SYSCO’s continued focus on
customer account penetration through the use of business reviews with customers, increases in the number of customer contact
personnel and efforts of the company’s marketing associates contributed to the sales growth in fiscal 2006.
The fiscal 2005 sales growth was primarily due to increased sales to marketing associate-served customers and multi-unit
customers, including increased sales of SYSCO Brand products and increases in both sales prices and unit volumes. The comparison of
fiscal 2005 sales to fiscal 2004 is negatively impacted by the additional week in fiscal 2004.
The decrease of Broadline segment sales as a percentage of total SYSCO sales in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 was due primarily to
strong sales growth in the SYGMA and other segments outpacing the Broadline sales growth, as well as the contributions to sales
growth from the acquisitions of specialty meat, specialty produce and SYGMA operations during fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005.
Marketing associate-served sales as a percentage of Broadline sales in the U.S. remained the same at 54.0% in fiscal 2006 and
2005. SYSCO Brand sales as a percentage of Broadline sales in the U.S. decreased to 55.4% for fiscal 2006 as compared to 57.4% in
fiscal 2005.
The increase in earnings before income taxes for fiscal 2006 were primarily due to increases in sales partially offset by higher
fuel costs and the continued investment in the National Supply Chain project.
The increase in earnings before income taxes for fiscal 2005 was primarily due to increases in sales and increased operating
efficiencies aided by lower expenses as a percentage of sales. Factors contributing to the lower expenses as a percentage of sales
were reduced performance based management incentive compensation and decreased net periodic pension costs, which overcame
higher fuel costs and increased expenditures related to the National Supply Chain project. The comparison of fiscal 2005’s earnings
before income taxes to fiscal 2004 was also negatively impacted by the additional 53rd week in fiscal 2004.
SYGMA Segment

Sales for fiscal 2006 were 10.8% greater than fiscal 2005. The adoption of EITF 04-13 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 reduced
sales growth in fiscal 2006 by 1.1%, or $42,560,000. Sales for fiscal 2005 were 10.4% greater than fiscal 2004. Acquisitions contributed
0.5% to the overall sales growth rate for fiscal 2006 and 2.6% for fiscal 2005. Fiscal 2006 growth was due primarily to sales to new
customers and sales growth in SYGMA’s existing customer base related to new locations added by those customers, each of which
temporarily increases SYGMA’s cost to service the customers. In addition, certain customers were transferred from Broadline operations
to be serviced by SYGMA operations, contributing to the sales increase.
Fiscal 2005 sales growth was due primarily to sales to new customers, sales growth in SYGMA’s existing customer base related
to new locations added by those customers, as well as increases in sales to existing locations, price increases resulting primarily from
higher product costs and sales from acquisitions. The comparison of fiscal 2005 sales to fiscal 2004 is negatively impacted by the
additional week in fiscal 2004.
The decrease in earnings before income taxes in fiscal 2006 was due to several factors. Certain of SYGMA’s customers have
experienced a slowdown in their business. This in turn results in lower cases per delivery and therefore reduced gross margin dollars
per stop. In addition, SYGMA has experienced increased fuel costs, startup costs related to new facilities, costs incurred on information
systems projects and increased workers compensation costs.
The decrease in earnings before income taxes in fiscal 2005 was due to several factors. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004
and the first quarter of fiscal 2005, SYGMA discontinued servicing a portion of its largest customer’s locations due to that customer’s
geographic supply chain realignment. SYGMA offset these lost sales by obtaining sales from additional locations from this customer
and obtaining new business from other customers. In many cases, this new business is being served out of different SYGMA locations
than those that originally served the discontinued business. SYGMA opened a new facility to serve a portion of the new business which
it began serving in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. As a result, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 and throughout fiscal 2005,
SYGMA’s operating profits have been impacted by increased operating expenses as it transitioned its operations to serve the new
business it has acquired. In addition, SYGMA’s gross margins as a percentage of sales in fiscal 2005 have declined from the
comparable period in fiscal 2004 due to product cost increases and lower agreed upon pricing with its customers.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

SYSCO provides marketing and distribution services to foodservice customers primarily throughout the United States and Canada.
The company intends to continue to expand its market share through profitable sales growth, foldouts and acquisitions. The company
also strives to increase the effectiveness of its customer contact personnel and its consolidated buying programs, as well as the
productivity of its warehousing and distribution activities. These objectives require continuing investment. SYSCO’s resources include
cash provided by operations and access to capital from financial markets.
SYSCO’s operations historically have produced significant cash flow. Cash generated from operations is first allocated to working
capital requirements; investments in facilities, fleet and other equipment required to meet customers’ needs; cash dividends; and
acquisitions compatible with the company’s overall growth strategy. Any remaining cash generated from operations may, at the
discretion of management, be applied toward a portion of the cost of the share repurchase program, while the remainder of the cost
may be financed with additional long-term debt. SYSCO’s share repurchase program is used primarily to offset shares issued under
various employee benefit and compensation plans, for acquisitions, to reduce shares outstanding (which may have the net effect of
increasing earnings per share) and to aid in managing the ratio of long-term debt to total capitalization. Management targets a longterm debt to total capitalization ratio between 35% and 40%. The ratio may exceed the target range from time to time, due to
borrowings incurred in order to fund acquisitions and internal growth opportunities, and due to fluctuations in the timing and amount of
share repurchases. The ratio also may fall below the target range due to strong cash flow from operations and fluctuations in the timing
and amount of share repurchases. This ratio was 36.2% and 33.1% at July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005, respectively. For purposes of
calculating this ratio, long-term debt includes both the current maturities and long-term portion.
Operating Activities

Cash flow from operations in fiscal 2006 was negatively impacted by an increase in inventory balances of $119,392,000 and an
increase in accounts receivable balances of $162,586,000, partially offset by an increase in accounts payable balances of $49,775,000.
Cash flow from operations in fiscal 2005 was negatively impacted by an increase in inventory balances of $35,014,000 and an increase
in accounts receivable balances of $72,829,000, partially offset by an increase in accounts payable balances of $28,080,000. Cash flow
from operations in fiscal 2004 was negatively impacted by an increase in inventory balances of $162,502,000 and an increase in
accounts receivable balances of $177,058,000, partially offset by an increase in accounts payable balances of $95,874,000.
The increases in accounts receivable and inventory balances were primarily a result of sales growth. Accounts payable balances
are impacted by many factors, including changes in product mix, cash discount terms and changes in payment terms with vendors due
to the use of more efficient electronic payment methods.
Also impacting cash flow from operations was an increase in accrued expenses of $29,161,000 in fiscal 2006, a decrease in
accrued expenses of $52,423,000 in fiscal 2005 and an increase in accrued expenses of $26,687,000 in fiscal 2004. The increase in
accrued expenses for fiscal 2006, was related to various miscellaneous accruals while the changes in accrued expenses for fiscal 2005
and 2004 were primarily due to the amount of accrued incentive bonuses related to those years.
Also impacting cash flow from operations was an increase in other long term liabilities and prepaid pension cost of $75,382,000 in
fiscal 2006, and decreases of $86,338,000 in fiscal 2005 and $35,056,000 in fiscal 2004. The increases in other long-term liabilities and
prepaid pension cost in fiscal 2006 are primarily due to the amount of net pension cost recognized exceeding the amount of pension
contribution during the year. The decreases in other long-term liabilities and prepaid pension cost in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 are
primarily due to the amount of pension contributions exceeding the net pension cost recognized in each year. The company’s
contributions to its defined benefit plans were $73,764,000, $220,361,000 and $165,512,000 during fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal
2004, respectively. Included in the amounts contributed in fiscal 2006 was $66,000,000 voluntarily contributed to the qualified pension
plan representing the maximum tax deductible amount. Included in the amount contributed for fiscal 2005 was $134,000,000 voluntarily
contributed to the qualified pension plan in the fourth quarter in addition to the $80,000,000 which was contributed during the year. The
decision to increase the contributions to the Retirement Plan in fiscal 2005 was primarily due to the decrease in the discount rate used
to measure the year-end obligation, which increased the pension obligation and negatively impacted the fiscal 2005 year-end pension
funded status prior to the additional $134,000,000 contribution. The company expects to contribute approximately $90,000,000 to its
defined benefit plans in fiscal 2007.
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One of the factors increasing the amount of taxes paid in fiscal 2006 as compared to the amounts paid in fiscal 2005 was the
amount of deductible pension contributions made during the year. As discussed above, the company’s pension contributions were
substantially lower in fiscal 2006 than in the preceding fiscal years.
The amount of taxes paid in fiscal 2004 was reduced by $70,615,000 as the result of the utilization of a U.S. federal net operating
loss carryforward. This net operating loss carryforward was generated in fiscal 2003 primarily as a result of the deferral of supply chain
distributions.
Investing Activities

Fiscal 2006 capital expenditures included the construction of fold-out facilities in Springfield, Illinois; Geneva, Alabama; and
Knoxville, Tennessee, replacement or significant expansion of facilities in Raleigh, North Carolina; Columbus, Ohio; Albuquerque, New
Mexico; and Denver, Colorado, and continuing work on the corporate headquarters expansion.
Fiscal 2005 capital expenditures included the construction of fold-out facilities in Spokane, Washington and Geneva, Alabama,
replacement or significant expansion of facilities in Baltimore, Maryland; Cleveland, Ohio; Denver, Colorado; Milwaukee, Wisconsin;
Miami, Florida; and Hartford, Connecticut, and the completion of the Northeast Redistribution Center in Front Royal, Virginia.
Fiscal 2004 capital expenditures included the construction of fold-out facilities in Oxnard, California and Fargo, North Dakota,
replacement or significant expansion of facilities in Billings, Montana; Cleveland, Ohio; Jacksonville, Florida; Miami, Florida; and
San Antonio, Texas, and the Northeast Redistribution Center in Front Royal, Virginia, as well as continued expenditures related to the
National Supply Chain project.
Total capital expenditures in fiscal 2007 are expected to be in the range of $575,000,000 to $625,000,000. Fiscal 2007 expenditures
will include the continuation of the fold-out program; facility, fleet and other equipment replacements and expansions; the corporate
office expansion; the company’s National Supply Chain project; and investments in technology.
During fiscal 2006, SYSCO acquired for cash one broadline foodservice operation, one custom meat-cutting operation and five
specialty produce distributors. During fiscal 2005, SYSCO acquired for cash one broadline foodservice operation, four custom meatcutting operations, and two specialty produce distributors. During fiscal 2004, SYSCO acquired for cash certain assets of two broadline
foodservice operations, a specialty produce distributor, and one quickservice operation.
Financing Activities

The company routinely engages in Board-approved share repurchase programs. The number of shares acquired and their cost
during the past three fiscal years was 16,479,800 shares for $544,131,000 in fiscal 2006, 16,790,200 shares for $597,660,000 in fiscal
2005, and 16,454,300 shares for $608,506,000 in fiscal 2004. An additional 673,400 shares have been purchased at a cost of
$20,191,000 through August 26, 2006, resulting in 18,665,500 shares remaining available for repurchase as authorized by the Board as
of that date.
The company made four regular quarterly dividend payments during each of fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004. SYSCO began
paying the current quarterly dividend rate of $0.17 per share in January 2006, an increase from the $0.15 per share that became
effective in January 2005. In May 2006, SYSCO declared its regular quarterly dividend for the first quarter of fiscal 2007 of $0.17 per
share, which was paid in July 2006. In September 2006, SYSCO also declared its regular quarterly dividend for the second quarter of
fiscal 2007 of $0.17 per share, payable in October 2006.
In November 2000, the company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a shelf registration statement covering
30,000,000 shares of common stock to be offered from time to time in connection with acquisitions. As of August 26, 2006,
29,477,835 shares remained available for issuance under this registration statement.
In March 2004, SYSCO issued 4.60% notes totaling $200,000,000 due March 15, 2014 in a private offering. Proceeds from the
notes were utilized to retire outstanding commercial paper.
In June 2005, SYSCO repaid the 6.5% senior notes totaling $150,000,000 at maturity utilizing a combination of cash flow from
operations and commercial paper issuances. In July 2005, SYSCO repaid the 4.75% senior notes totaling $200,000,000 at maturity also
utilizing a combination of cash flow from operations and commercial paper issuances.
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In April 2005, SYSCO filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a shelf registration statement covering $1,500,000,000 in
debt securities. The registration statement was declared effective in May 2005. In September 2005, SYSCO issued 5.375% senior notes
totaling $500,000,000 due on September 21, 2035, under its April 2005 shelf registration. These notes, which were priced at 99.911%
of par, are unsecured, are not subject to any sinking fund requirement and include a redemption provision which allows SYSCO to retire
the notes at any time prior to maturity at the greater of par plus accrued interest or an amount designed to ensure that the noteholders
are not penalized by the early redemption. Proceeds from the notes were utilized to retire commercial paper issuances outstanding as of
September 2005.
In March 2005, SYSCO entered into a forward-starting interest rate swap with a notional amount of $350,000,000 as a cash flow
hedge of the variability in the cash outflows of interest payments on the forecasted debt issuance due to changes in the benchmark
interest rate. The fair value of the swap as of July 2, 2005 was ($32,584,000), which is reflected in Accrued expenses on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, with the corresponding amount reflected as a loss, net of tax, in Other comprehensive income (loss). In
September 2005, in conjunction with the issuance of the 5.375% senior notes described above, SYSCO settled the $350,000,000
notional amount forward-starting interest rate swap. Upon termination, SYSCO paid cash of $21,196,000, which represented the fair
value liability associated with the swap agreement at the time of termination. This amount is being amortized as interest expense over
the 30-year term of the debt, and the unamortized balance is reflected as a loss, net of tax, in Other comprehensive income (loss).
In May 2006, SYSCO repaid at maturity the 7.0% senior notes totaling $200,000,000 utilizing a combination of cash flow from
operations and commercial paper issuances.
SYSCO has uncommitted bank lines of credit, which provided for unsecured borrowings for working capital of up to $145,000,000,
of which $29,300,000 was outstanding as of July 1, 2006 and $13,400,000 was outstanding as of August 26, 2006.
In November 2005, SYSCO and one of its subsidiaries, SYSCO International, Co., entered into a new revolving credit facility to
support the company’s U.S. and Canadian commercial paper programs. The facility, which was increased to $750,000,000 in March
2006, may be increased up to $1,000,000,000 at the option of the company, and terminates on November 4, 2010, subject to extension.
The facility replaced the previous $450,000,000 (U.S. dollar) and $100,000,000 (Canadian dollar) revolving credit agreements in the U.S.
and Canada, respectively, both of which were terminated.
In April 2006, SYSCO initiated a new commercial paper program allowing the company to issue short-term unsecured notes in
aggregate not to exceed $1.3 billion. This new commercial paper program replaced notes that were issued under SYSCO’s previous
commercial paper program as they matured and became due and payable.
During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, aggregate outstanding commercial paper issuances and short-term bank borrowings ranged
from approximately $126,846,000 to $774,530,000, $28,560,000 to $253,384,000, and $73,102,000 to $478,114,000, respectively.
Outstanding commercial paper issuances were $399,568,000 as of July 1, 2006 and $464,917,000 as of August 26, 2006.
Total debt at July 1, 2006 was $1,762,692,000, of which approximately 75% was at fixed rates averaging 6.0% and the remainder
was at floating rates averaging 5.2%. Included in current maturities of long-term debt at July 1, 2006 are the 7.25% senior notes
totaling $100,000,000, which mature in April 2007. It is the company’s intention to fund the repayment of these notes at maturity
through issuances of commercial paper, senior notes or a combination thereof.
As part of normal business activities, SYSCO issues letters of credit through major banking institutions as required by certain
vendor and insurance agreements. As of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005, letters of credit outstanding were $60,000,000 and $76,817,000,
respectively.
SYSCO’s affiliate, BSCC, is a cooperative for income tax purposes. SYSCO believes that the cooperative entity is appropriate for
BSCC based on the business operations of this affiliate and on the legal structure applied. However, if the application of the
cooperative structure was to be disallowed by any federal, state or local tax authority, SYSCO could be required to accelerate the
payment of a portion or all of its income tax liabilities that it otherwise has deferred until future periods and be liable for interest on
such amounts. Amounts included as deferred income tax liabilities related to BSCC deferred supply chain distributions were
$924,902,000 as of July 1, 2006. If SYSCO was required to accelerate a significant portion of these deferred tax liabilities, the company
may be required to raise additional capital through debt financing or the issuance of equity or it may be required to forego or defer
planned capital expenditures or share repurchases or a combination thereof and may be required to pay interest on amounts deferred.
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In summary, management believes that the company’s cash flows from operations, as well as the availability of additional capital
under its existing commercial paper programs, bank lines of credit, debt shelf registration and its ability to access capital from financial
markets in the future, will be sufficient to meet its cash requirements while maintaining proper liquidity for normal operating purposes.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business with customers, vendors and others, SYSCO has entered into off-balance sheet arrangements,
such as letters of credit, which totaled $60,000,000 as of July 1, 2006. Additionally, other than normal long-term non-capitalized leases
included in the Contractual Obligations table below, the company does not have any material off-balance sheet financing arrangements.
None of these off-balance sheet arrangements either has, or is likely to have, a material effect on SYSCO’s current or future financial
condition, results of operations, liquidity or capital resources.
Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth certain information concerning SYSCO’s obligations and commitments to make contractual future
payments:
Payments Due by Period
Less Than
1 Year

Total

Recorded Contractual Obligations:
Short-term debt and commercial paper********* $ 428,868
Long-term debt ************************** 1,305,415
Capital lease obligations *******************
28,409
Deferred compensation(1) ******************
116,236
SERP and other postretirement plans(2) ********
211,691
Unrecorded Contractual Obligations:
Interest payments related to debt(3)*********** 1,293,133
Long-term non-capitalized leases *************
331,278
Purchase obligations(4) ******************** 1,050,109
Total contractual cash obligations ************ $4,765,139

$

29,300
102,269
3,996
6,641
9,356

67,874
56,499
810,903
$1,086,838

1-3 Years
(In thousands)

$

More Than
5 Years

3-5 Years

—
3,852
1,706
9,556
25,104

$399,568
7,403
1,388
9,159
37,413

$

—
1,191,891
21,319
90,880
139,818

123,760
86,803
74,613
$325,394

123,760
58,995
66,185
$703,871

977,739
128,981
98,408
$2,649,036

(1)

The estimate of the timing of future payments under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan involves the use of certain
assumptions, including retirement ages and payout periods.

(2)

Includes estimated contributions to the unfunded SERP and other postretirement benefit plans made in amounts needed to fund
benefit payments for vested participants in these plans through fiscal 2015, based on actuarial assumptions.

(3)

Includes payments on floating rate debt based on rates as of July 1, 2006, assuming amount remains unchanged until maturity,
and payments on fixed rate debt based on maturity dates.

(4)

For purposes of this table, purchase obligations include agreements for purchases of product in the normal course of business, for
which all significant terms have been confirmed. Such amounts included in the table above are based on estimates. Purchase
obligations also includes amounts committed with a third party to provide hardware and hardware hosting services (See
discussion under Note 16, Commitments and Contingencies, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8).
Purchase obligations exclude full requirements electricity contracts where no stated minimum purchase volume is required.

Certain acquisitions involve contingent consideration, typically payable only in the event that certain operating results are attained
or certain outstanding contingencies are resolved. Aggregate contingent consideration amounts outstanding as of July 1, 2006 included
$147,572,000 in cash. This amount is not included in the table above.
No obligations were included in the table above for the qualified retirement plan because as of July 1, 2006, SYSCO does not have
a minimum funding requirements under ERISA guidelines for this plan due to its previous voluntary contributions.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, sales and expenses in the accompanying financial
statements. Significant accounting policies employed by SYSCO are presented in the notes to the financial statements.
Critical accounting policies are those that are most important to the portrayal of the company’s financial condition and results of
operations. These policies require management’s most subjective or complex judgments, often employing the use of estimates about
the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Senior management has reviewed with the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors the development and selection of the critical accounting estimates and this related disclosure. SYSCO’s most critical
accounting policies pertain to the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, self-insurance programs, pension plans, income taxes,
vendor consideration, accounting for business combinations and share-based compensation.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

SYSCO evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable and determines the appropriate reserve for doubtful accounts based on a
combination of factors. In circumstances where the company is aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its financial obligation,
a specific allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded to reduce the receivable to the net amount reasonably expected to be collected.
In addition, allowances are recorded for all other receivables based on analysis of historical trends of write-offs and recoveries. The
company utilizes specific criteria to determine uncollectible receivables to be written off, including bankruptcy, accounts referred to
outside parties for collection and accounts past due over specified periods. If the financial condition of SYSCO’s customers were to
deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.
Self-Insurance Program

SYSCO maintains a self-insurance program covering portions of workers’ compensation, group medical, general liability and vehicle
liability costs. The amounts in excess of the self-insured levels are fully insured by third party insurers. Liabilities associated with these
risks are estimated in part by considering historical claims experience, medical cost trends, demographic factors, severity factors and
other actuarial assumptions. Projections of future loss expenses are inherently uncertain because of the random nature of insurance
claims occurrences and could be significantly affected if future occurrences and claims differ from these assumptions and historical
trends. In an attempt to mitigate the risks of workers’ compensation, vehicle and general liability claims, safety procedures and
awareness programs have been implemented.
Pension Plans

Amounts related to defined benefit plans recognized in the financial statements are determined on an actuarial basis. Three of the
more critical assumptions in the actuarial calculations are the discount rate for determining the current value of plan benefits, the
assumption for the rate of increase in future compensation levels and the expected rate of return on plan assets.
The measurement date for the pension and other postretirement benefit plans is fiscal year end for fiscal years 2005 and prior.
Beginning in fiscal 2006, the measurement date is May 31st which represents a change in accounting. The one-month acceleration of
the measurement date allows additional time for management to evaluate and report the actuarial pension measurements in the yearend financial statements and disclosures within the accelerated filing deadlines of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
cumulative effect of this change in accounting resulted in an increase to earnings in the first quarter of fiscal 2006 of $9,285,000, net of
tax.
For guidance in determining the discount rate, SYSCO calculates the implied rate of return on a hypothetical portfolio of highquality fixed-income investments for which the timing and amount of cash outflows approximates the estimated payouts of the pension
plan. The discount rate assumption is reviewed annually and revised as deemed appropriate. The discount rate assumption utilized
impacts the recorded amount of net pension costs. The discount rate utilized to determine net pension costs for fiscal 2006 decreased
0.65% to 5.60% from the discount rate utilized to determine net pension costs for fiscal 2005 of 6.25%. This 0.65% decrease in the
discount rate increased SYSCO’s net pension costs for fiscal 2006 by approximately $29,300,000. The discount rate for determining
fiscal 2007 net pension costs, which was determined as of the May 31, 2006 measurement date, increased 1.13% to 6.73%. This
1.13% increase will decrease SYSCO’s net pension costs for fiscal 2007 by an estimated $53,079,000.
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SYSCO looks to actual plan experience in determining the rates of increase in compensation levels. SYSCO used a plan specific
age-related set of rates for the qualified pension plan (Retirement Plan), which are equivalent to a single rate of 6.17% and 5.89%,
respectively, as of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005. The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan assumes annual salary increases of 10%
through fiscal 2007 and 7% thereafter as of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005.
The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of the Retirement Plan was 9.00% for fiscal 2006 and 2005. The expectations
of future returns are derived from a mathematical asset model that incorporates assumptions as to the various asset class returns,
reflecting a combination of rigorous historical performance analysis and the forward-looking views of the financial markets regarding
the yield on long-term bonds and the historical returns of the major stock markets. Although not determinative of future returns, the
effective annual rate of return on plan assets, developed using geometric/compound averaging, was approximately 10.3%, 8.4%, 4.0%
and 5.9% over the 20-year, 10-year, 5-year and 1-year periods ended December 31, 2005, respectively. In addition, in nine of the last
15 years, the actual return on plan assets has exceeded 9.00%. The rate of return assumption is reviewed annually and revised as
deemed appropriate.
The expected return on plan assets impacts the recorded amount of net pension costs. A 1.0% increase (decrease) in the assumed
rate of return for fiscal 2007 would decrease (increase) SYSCO’s net pension costs for fiscal 2007 by approximately $12,972,000.
Minimum pension liability adjustments result when the accumulated benefit obligation exceeds the fair value of plan assets and
are recorded so that the recorded pension liability is at a minimum equal to the unfunded accumulated benefit obligation. Minimum
pension liability adjustments are non-cash adjustments that are reflected as an increase (or decrease) in the pension liability and an
offsetting charge (or benefit) to shareholders’ equity, net of tax, through accumulated other comprehensive loss (or income). Amounts
reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss related to minimum pension liability, were charges, net of tax, of
$11,106,000 as of July 1, 2006, and $54,286,000 as of July 2, 2005.
Changes in the assumptions, including changes to the discount rate discussed above, together with the normal growth of the plan,
the impact of actuarial losses from prior periods and the timing and amount of contributions, increased net pension costs $23,700,000 in
fiscal 2006 and is expected to decrease net pension costs in fiscal 2007 by approximately $53,900,000.
The company made cash contributions to its pension plans of $73,764,000 and $220,361,000 in fiscal years 2006 and 2005,
respectively, including voluntary contributions to the Retirement Plan of $66,000,000 and $214,000,000 in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005,
respectively. In fiscal 2006, the company’s voluntary contribution to the Retirement Plan represented the maximum tax-deductible
amount. In fiscal 2005, the company made a voluntary contribution of $134,000,000 in the fourth quarter in addition to the $80,000,000
which was contributed during the year. The decision to increase the contributions to the Retirement Plan in fiscal 2005 was primarily
due to the decrease in the discount rate used to measure the year-end obligation, which increased the pension obligation and
negatively impacted the fiscal 2005 year-end pension funded status prior to the additional $134,000,000 contribution. In fiscal 2007, as
in the previous years, contributions to the Retirement Plan will not be required to meet ERISA minimum funding requirements but the
company anticipates that it will make voluntary contributions of approximately $80,000,000, which is not greater than the estimated
maximum amount that will be tax deductible in fiscal 2007. The estimated fiscal 2007 contributions to fund benefit payments for the
SERP and other post-retirement plans together are approximately $10,000,000.
Income Taxes

The determination of the company’s provision for income taxes requires significant judgment, the use of estimates and the
interpretation and application of complex tax laws. The company’s provision for income taxes reflects a combination of income earned
and taxed in the various U.S. federal and state, as well as Canadian federal and provincial jurisdictions. Jurisdictional tax law changes,
increases or decreases in permanent differences between book and tax items, accruals or adjustments of accruals for tax contingencies
or valuation allowances, and the company’s change in the mix of earnings from these taxing jurisdictions all affect the overall effective
tax rate.
In evaluating the exposures connected with the various tax filing positions, the company establishes an accrual when, despite
management’s belief that the company’s tax return positions are supportable, management believes that certain positions may be
successfully challenged and a loss is probable. When facts and circumstances change, these accruals are adjusted.
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Vendor Consideration

SYSCO recognizes consideration received from vendors when the services performed in connection with the monies received are
completed and when the related product has been sold by SYSCO. There are several types of cash consideration received from vendors.
In many instances, the vendor consideration is in the form of a specified amount per case or per pound. In these instances, SYSCO will
recognize the vendor consideration as a reduction of cost of sales when the product is sold. In the situations where the vendor
consideration is not related directly to specific product purchases, SYSCO will recognize these as a reduction of cost of sales when the
earnings process is complete, the related service is performed and the amounts realized. In certain of these latter instances, the vendor
consideration represents a reimbursement of a specific incremental identifiable cost incurred by SYSCO. In these cases, SYSCO
classifies the consideration as a reduction of those costs with any excess funds classified as a reduction of cost of sales and recognizes
these in the period in which the costs are incurred and related services performed.
Accounting for Business Combinations

Goodwill and intangible assets represent the excess of consideration paid over the fair value of tangible net assets acquired.
Certain assumptions and estimates are employed in determining the fair value of assets acquired, including goodwill and other
intangible assets, as well as determining the allocation of goodwill to the appropriate reporting unit. In addition, SYSCO assesses the
recoverability of these intangibles by determining whether the fair values of the applicable reporting units exceed their carrying values.
The evaluation of fair value requires the use of projections, estimates and assumptions as to the future performance of the operations
in performing a discounted cash flow analysis, as well as assumptions regarding sales and earnings multiples that would be applied in
comparable acquisitions in the industry. Actual results could differ from these assumptions and projections, resulting in the company
revising its assumptions and, if required, recognizing an impairment loss.
Share-Based Compensation

SYSCO provides compensation benefits to employees and non-employee directors under several share-based payment
arrangements including various employee stock option plans, the Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan, the Management Incentive Plans and
the Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan.
Prior to July 3, 2005, SYSCO accounted for its stock option plans and the Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan using the intrinsic value
method of accounting provided under APB Opinion No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,’’ (APB 25) and related
interpretations, as permitted by FASB Statement No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ (SFAS 123) under which no
compensation expense was recognized for stock option grants and issuances of stock pursuant to the Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan.
However, share-based compensation expense was recognized in periods prior to fiscal 2006 (and continues to be recognized) for stock
issuances pursuant to the Management Incentive Plans and stock grants to non-employee directors. Share-based compensation was
included as a pro forma disclosure in the financial statement footnotes and continues to be provided for periods prior to fiscal 2006.
Effective July 3, 2005, SYSCO adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) using the modified-prospective
transition method. Under this transition method, compensation cost recognized in fiscal 2006 includes: a) compensation cost for all
share-based payments granted through July 2, 2005, but for which the requisite service period had not been completed as of July 2,
2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, and b) compensation cost for
all share-based payments granted subsequent to July 2, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 123(R). Results for prior periods have not been restated.
As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R) on July 3, 2005, SYSCO’s earnings before income taxes and net earnings for fiscal 2006 were
$118,038,000 and $105,810,000 lower, respectively, than if the company had continued to account for share-based compensation under
APB 25. Basic and diluted earnings per share before the cumulative effect of the accounting change for fiscal 2006 were both $0.17
lower than if the company had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25.
As of July 1, 2006, there was $112,111,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to share-based compensation
arrangements. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.72 years.
The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Expected
volatility is based on historical volatility of SYSCO’s stock, implied volatilities from traded options on SYSCO’s stock and other factors.
SYSCO utilizes historical data to estimate option exercise and employee termination behavior within the valuation model; separate
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groups of employees that have similar historical exercise behavior are considered separately for valuation purposes. The risk-free rate
for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.
The fair value of the stock issued under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is calculated as the difference between the stock price
and the employee purchase price. The fair value of the stock issued under the Management Incentive Plans is based on the stock price
less a 12% discount for post-vesting restrictions. The discount for post-vesting restrictions is estimated based on restricted stock
studies and by calculating the cost of a hypothetical protective put option over the restriction period.
The compensation cost related to these share-based awards is recognized over the requisite service period. The requisite service
period is generally the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award.
The compensation cost related to stock issuances resulting from awards under the Management Incentive Plans is accrued over
the fiscal year to which the incentive bonus relates. The compensation cost related to stock issuances resulting from employee
purchases of stock under the Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan is recognized during the quarter in which the employee payroll
withholdings are made.
Certain of SYSCO’s option awards are generally subject to graded vesting over a service period. In those cases, SYSCO will
recognize compensation cost on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. In other cases, certain of
SYSCO’s option awards provide for graded vesting over a service period but include a performance-based provision allowing for the
vesting to accelerate. In these cases, if it is probable that the performance condition will be met, SYSCO recognizes compensation cost
on a straight-line basis over the shorter performance period; otherwise, it recognizes compensation cost over the probable longer
service period.
In addition, certain of SYSCO’s options provide that if the optionee retires at certain age and years of service thresholds, the
options continue to vest as if the optionee continued to be an employee. In these cases, for awards granted prior to July 2, 2005,
SYSCO will recognize the compensation cost for such awards over the service period and accelerate any remaining unrecognized
compensation cost when the employee retires. For awards granted subsequent to July 3, 2005, SYSCO will recognize compensation
cost for such awards over the period from the date of grant to the date the employee first becomes eligible to retire with his options
continuing to vest after retirement.
New Accounting Standards

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Staff Position No. FTB 85-4-1, ‘‘Accounting for Life Settlement
Contracts by Third-Party Investors’’ (FSP FTB 85-4-1), in March 2006 which allows an investor to account for its investments in a life
settlement contract using either the investment method or the fair value method. The investment method requires the initial investment
to be recognized at the transaction price, while the fair value method requires the initial investment to be recognized at its transaction
price and remeasured to fair value each subsequent reporting period. This standard was adopted by the FASB to address volatility
concerns when underlying investments are maintained in the stock market. The election of the investment method or fair value method
is irrevocable and should be made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Previously, only the fair value method was available. FSP FTB
85-4-1 is effective for SYSCO in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. Prospective application is required for all new investments in life
settlement contracts, and a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings should be made at the date of adoption to recognize the
impact on existing life settlement contract investments. SYSCO will adopt FSP FTB 85-4-1 in the first quarter of fiscal 2007 using the
investment method which will result in a cumulative change in accounting principle charge of approximately $39,735,000.
In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, ‘‘Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109’’ (FIN 48), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 109 (SFAS 109). FIN 48 clarifies the application of SFAS 109 by defining criteria that an individual tax position must meet
for any part of the benefit of that position to be recognized in the financial statements. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on the
measurement, derecognition, classification and disclosure of tax positions, along with accounting for the related interest and penalties.
The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in
accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings. SYSCO is currently evaluating the impact the adoption of
FIN 48 will have on the company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
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Forward-Looking Statements
Certain statements made herein that look forward in time or express management’s expectations or beliefs with respect to the
occurrence of future events are forward-looking statements under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. They include
statements about SYSCO’s ability to increase its market share and sales, long-term debt to capitalization target ratios, anticipated
capital expenditures, timing and expected benefits of the National Supply Chain project and related regional distribution centers, the
potential outcome of ongoing tax audits and SYSCO’s ability to meet future cash requirements and remain profitable.
These statements are based on management’s current expectations and estimates; actual results may differ materially due in part
to the risk factors discussed above. In addition, SYSCO’s ability to increase its market share and sales, meet future cash requirements
and remain profitable could be affected by conditions in the economy and the industry and internal factors such as the ability to control
expenses, including fuel costs. The ability to meet long-term debt to capitalization target ratios also may be affected by cash flow
including amounts spent on share repurchases and acquisitions and internal growth.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
SYSCO does not utilize financial instruments for trading purposes. SYSCO’s use of debt directly exposes the company to interest
rate risk. Floating rate debt, where the interest rate fluctuates periodically, exposes the company to short-term changes in market
interest rates. Fixed rate debt, where the interest rate is fixed over the life of the instrument, exposes the company to changes in
market interest rates reflected in the fair value of the debt and to the risk that the company may need to refinance maturing debt with
new debt at a higher rate.
SYSCO manages its debt portfolio to achieve an overall desired position of fixed and floating rates and may employ interest rate
swaps as a tool to achieve that goal. The major risks from interest rate derivatives include changes in the interest rates affecting the
fair value of such instruments, potential increases in interest expense due to market increases in floating interest rates and the
creditworthiness of the counterparties in such transactions.
In September 2005, SYSCO issued 5.375% senior notes totaling $500,000,000 due on September 21, 2035. In conjunction with the
issuance of the 5.375% senior notes, SYSCO settled a $350,000,000 notional amount forward-starting interest rate swap which was
designated as a cash flow hedge of the variability in the cash outflows of interest payments on the debt issuance due to changes in the
benchmark interest rate.
At July 1, 2006, the company had outstanding $399,568,000 of commercial paper at variable rates of interest with maturities
through July 3, 2006. The company’s total long-term debt obligations of $1,733,392,000 were primarily at fixed rates of interest. The
company had no interest rate swaps outstanding at July 1, 2006.
In the following table as of July 1, 2006, commercial paper issuances are reflected as floating rate debt and both the U.S. and
Canadian commercial paper issuances outstanding are classified as long-term based on the maturity date of the company’s revolving
loan agreement which supports the company’s U.S. and Canadian commercial paper programs and the company’s intent to continue to
refinance this facility on a long-term basis.
The following table presents the company’s interest rate position as of July 1, 2006. All amounts are stated in U.S. dollar
equivalents.

2007

U.S. $ Denominated:
Fixed Rate Debt ***********************
Average Interest Rate *****************
Floating Rate Debt *********************
Average Interest Rate *****************
Canadian $ Denominated:
Fixed Rate Debt ***********************
Average Interest Rate *****************
Floating Rate Debt *********************
Average Interest Rate *****************
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2008

2009

Interest Rate Position as of July 1, 2006
Principal Amount by Expected Maturity
Average Interest Rate
2010
2011
Thereafter
(In thousands)

Total

Fair Value

$106,230 $4,596 $962 $894 $
897 $1,205,210 $1,318,789 $1,255,398
8.0%
7.4% 6.2% 7.1%
7.9%
5.8%
6.0%
$ 29,300 $ —
$—
$—
$381,945 $
8,000 $ 419,245 $ 419,245
1.5%
—
—
—
5.3%
4.0%
5.0%
$
$

35 $ —
7.4%
—
—
$ —
—
—

$—
—
$—
—

$—
—
$—
—

$

— $
—
$ 24,623 $
4.4%

—
—
—
—

$
$

35 $
7.4%
24,623 $
4.4%

33
24,623

At July 2, 2005, the company had $157,851,000 of commercial paper outstanding at variable rates of interest with maturities
through July 29, 2005. The company’s total long-term debt obligations of $1,367,110,000 were primarily at fixed rates of interest.
At that time, management believed that present market conditions reflected fixed long term rates near historical lows. As such,
management believed that fixed long term rates presented a better opportunity than in the recent past and had the intent to issue
between $350,000,000 and $500,000,000 of long term debt at fixed rates with extended terms in September 2005, the amount to be
issued depending upon market conditions at the time of issuance. In March 2005, SYSCO entered into a forward-starting interest rate
swap with a notional amount of $350,000,000 as a cash flow hedge of the variability in the cash outflows of interest payments on
$350,000,000 of the forecasted debt issuance due to changes in the benchmark interest rate. The issuance of this long-term debt in
fiscal 2006 is discussed above.
During part of fiscal 2005, SYSCO had several fixed to floating interest rate swaps outstanding. These were entered into in fiscal
2004 as management believed that floating interest rates were more advantageous. During fiscal 2005, SYSCO terminated the fixed to
floating interest rate swaps outstanding locking in effective yields on the related debt.
In the following tables as of July 2, 2005, commercial paper issuances are reflected as floating rate debt and the U.S. commercial
paper is classified as long-term based on the maturity date of the company’s revolving loan agreement which supports the company’s
U.S. commercial paper program and the company’s intent to continue to refinance this facility on a long-term basis.
The following tables present the company’s interest rate position as of July 2, 2005. All amounts are stated in U.S. dollar
equivalents.

2006

U.S. $ Denominated:
Fixed Rate Debt ***********************
Average Interest Rate*****************
Floating Rate Debt *********************
Average Interest Rate*****************
Canadian $ Denominated:
Fixed Rate Debt ***********************
Average Interest Rate*****************
Floating Rate Debt *********************
Average Interest Rate*****************

2007

Total

Fair Value

$410,724 $104,725 $ 3,918 $360 $350 $686,267 $1,206,344 $1,280,666
4.7%
8.0%
7.4% 4.3% 4.6%
5.7%
5.5%
$ 31,000 $
—
$124,853 $ —
$—
$ 15,000 $ 170,853 $ 170,853
3.6%
—
3.4% —
—
2.6%
3.3%
$

209 $
9.8%
$ 32,998 $
2.7%

2006

Interest Rate Swaps Related to Debt:
Pay fixed/receive Variable ***************
Fixed rate paid: ***********************
Average variable rate received:************

Interest Rate Position as of July 2, 2005
Principal Amount by Expected Maturity
Average Interest Rate
2008
2009
2010
Thereafter
(In thousands)

$350,000 $
5.345%
Rate A

306 $
9.8%
—
$
—

338 $372 $411 $ 19,277 $
9.8% 9.8% 9.8%
9.8%
—
$—
$—
$
—
$
—
—
—
—
Interest Rate Position as of July 2, 2005
Notional Amount by Expected Maturity
Average Interest Swap Rate
2008
2009
2010
Thereafter
(In thousands)

2007

—

$

—

$—

$—

$

—

20,913 $
9.8%
32,998 $
2.7%

Total

22,201
32,998

Fair Value

$ 350,000 $ (32,584)
5.345%
Rate A

Rate A — six-month LIBOR (in advance)
The company has Canadian subsidiaries, all of which use the Canadian dollar as their functional currency with the exception of a
financing subsidiary. To the extent that business transactions are not denominated in Canadian dollars, the company is exposed to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. SYSCO will also incur gains and losses within shareholders’ equity due to translation of the
financial statements from Canadian dollars to U.S. dollars. The Canadian financing subsidiary has notes denominated in U.S. dollars,
which has the potential to create taxable income in Canada when the debt is paid due to changes in the exchange rate from the
inception of the debt through the payment date. A 10% unfavorable change in the fiscal 2006 year end exchange rate would not
materially increase the tax liability associated with these notes. The company does not routinely enter into material agreements to
hedge foreign currency risks.
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The price and availability of diesel fuel fluctuates due to changes in production, seasonality and other market factors generally
outside of our control. Increased fuel costs may have a negative impact on the company’s results of operations in three areas. First, the
high cost of fuel can negatively impact consumer confidence and discretionary spending and thus reduce the frequency and amount
spent by consumers for food prepared away from home. Second, the high cost of fuel can increase the price paid by SYSCO for product
purchases for which SYSCO may not be able to pass these costs fully to its customers. Third, increased fuel costs impact the costs
incurred by SYSCO to deliver product to its customers. During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, fuel costs represented approximately 0.5%,
0.4% and 0.3% of sales, respectively. Fuel costs incurred by SYSCO in fiscal 2006 increased by approximately $48,600,000 over fiscal
2005.
In order to partially manage the volatility and uncertainty of fuel costs, SYSCO from time to time will enter into forward purchase
commitments for a portion of SYSCO’s projected monthly diesel fuel requirements. Forward diesel fuel purchase commitments
outstanding as of July 1, 2006 were not material.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
The management of SYSCO Corporation (‘‘SYSCO’’) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting for the company. SYSCO’s internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internal control systems,
no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.
SYSCO’s management assessed the effectiveness of SYSCO’s internal control over financial reporting as of July 1, 2006. In making
this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment, management concluded that, as of July 1, 2006, SYSCO’s internal control
over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.
Ernst & Young LLP has issued an audit report on management’s assessment of SYSCO’s internal control over financial reporting as
of July 1, 2006.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
SYSCO Corporation
We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that SYSCO Corporation and its subsidiaries (‘‘SYSCO’’ or ‘‘the Company’’) maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of July 1, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). SYSCO’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, management’s assessment that SYSCO maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of July 1,
2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, SYSCO maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of July 1, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
SYSCO’s consolidated balance sheets as of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005 and the related consolidated results of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 1, 2006 and our report dated September 12,
2006 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Houston, Texas
September 12, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
SYSCO Corporation
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SYSCO Corporation (a Delaware Corporation) and subsidiaries
as of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005, and the related consolidated results of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended July 1, 2006. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule at Item 15(a), No. 2. These
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of SYSCO Corporation and subsidiaries at July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 1, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.
As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed the measurement date for its
pension and other postretirement benefit plans. As discussed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, effective July 3,
2005, SYSCO Corporation adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 123(R), ‘‘Share Based Payment.’’
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of SYSCO Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of July 1, 2006, based on criteria established in the
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated September 12, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Houston, Texas
September 12, 2006
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SYSCO
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
July 1, 2006
July 2, 2005
(In thousands except for
share data)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash ********************************************************************************* $ 201,897
Accounts and notes receivable, less allowances of $29,100 and $29,604 ****************************** 2,483,720
Inventories***************************************************************************** 1,608,233
Prepaid expenses************************************************************************
59,154
Prepaid income taxes*********************************************************************
46,690

$ 191,678
2,284,033
1,466,161
59,914
—

Total current assets ********************************************************************
Plant and equipment at cost, less depreciation****************************************************
Other assets
Goodwill ******************************************************************************
Intangibles, less amortization ***************************************************************
Restricted cash *************************************************************************
Prepaid pension cost *********************************************************************
Other*********************************************************************************

4,399,694
2,464,900

4,001,786
2,268,301

1,302,591
95,651
102,274
388,650
238,265

1,212,603
72,581
101,731
389,766
221,134

Total other assets *********************************************************************

2,127,431

1,997,815

Total assets******************************************************************************

$8,992,025

$8,267,902

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Notes payable ************************************************************************** $ 29,300
Accounts payable *********************************************************************** 1,891,357
Accrued expenses ***********************************************************************
745,781
Income taxes ***************************************************************************
—
Deferred taxes**************************************************************************
453,700
Current maturities of long-term debt *********************************************************
106,265
Total current liabilities ******************************************************************
Other liabilities
Long-term debt *************************************************************************
Deferred taxes**************************************************************************
Other long-term liabilities *****************************************************************

$

63,998
1,795,824
742,282
10,195
434,338
410,933

3,226,403

3,457,570

1,627,127
723,349
362,862

956,177
724,929
370,387

2,713,338

2,051,493

—

—

765,175
525,684
4,999,440
84,618

765,175
389,053
4,552,379
(13,677)

Less cost of treasury stock, 146,279,320 and 136,607,370 shares ************************************

6,374,917
3,322,633

5,692,930
2,934,091

Total shareholders’ equity ***************************************************************

3,052,284

2,758,839

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity********************************************************* $8,992,025

$8,267,902

Total other liabilities *******************************************************************
Contingencies
Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock, par value $1 per share
Authorized 1,500,000 shares, issued none ***************************************************
Common stock, par value $1 per share
Authorized shares 2,000,000,000; issued 765,174,900 shares *************************************
Paid-in capital **************************************************************************
Retained earnings ***********************************************************************
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income*************************************************

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SYSCO
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended
July 1, 2006

July 3, 2004
July 2, 2005
(53 Weeks)
(In thousands except for share data)

Sales **********************************************************
Costs and expenses
Cost of sales **************************************************
Operating expenses *********************************************
Interest expense ************************************************
Other, net*****************************************************

$32,628,438

$30,281,914

$29,335,403

26,337,107
4,796,301
109,100
(9,016)

24,498,200
4,194,184
75,000
(10,906)

23,661,514
4,141,230
69,880
(12,365)

Total costs and expenses ***************************************

31,233,492

28,756,478

27,860,259

Earnings before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change ******
Income taxes ****************************************************

1,394,946
548,906

1,525,436
563,979

1,475,144
567,930

Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change ********************
Cumulative effect of accounting change ********************************

846,040
9,285

961,457
—

907,214
—

Net earnings ****************************************************
Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change:
Basic earnings per share******************************************
Diluted earnings per share ****************************************
Net earnings:
Basic earnings per share******************************************
Diluted earnings per share ****************************************

$

855,325

$

961,457

$

907,214

$

1.36
1.35

$

1.51
1.47

$

1.41
1.37

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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1.38
1.36

1.51
1.47

1.41
1.37

SYSCO
CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common Stock

Shares

Balance at June 28, 2003**********
Net earnings *******************
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Foreign currency translation adjustment

765,174,900

Amount

Treasury Stock
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Other
Retained
Comprehensive
Earnings
Income (Loss)
(In thousands except for share data)

$765,175 $249,235 $3,373,853
907,214

Shares

$(152,381) 121,517,325
164,385
5,636

Comprehensive income ************
Dividends declared ***************
Treasury stock purchases **********
Treasury stock issued for acquisitions
Benefits from disqualifying dispositions
Issuances of shares pursuant to sharebased awards*****************

Amount

$2,038,351 $2,197,531
907,214
164,385
5,636

(321,353)
21,582
26,763
34,461

Balance at July 3, 2004 *********** 765,174,900
Net earnings *******************
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Change in fair value of interest rate
swap ***********************
Comprehensive income ************
Dividends declared ***************
Treasury stock purchases **********
Treasury stock issued for acquisitions
Benefits from disqualifying dispositions
Issuances of shares pursuant to sharebased awards*****************

$765,175 $332,041 $3,959,714
961,457

$ 17,640

16,884,300
(2,007,089)

623,653
(20,411)

(7,754,667)

(131,529)

128,639,869

(20,121)

(20,121)

31,557

Comprehensive income ************
Dividends declared ***************
Treasury stock purchases **********
Treasury stock issued for acquisitions
Benefits from disqualifying dispositions
Share-based compensation expense **
Issuances of shares pursuant to sharebased awards*****************

16,735,200
(152,591)

596,080
(1,537)

(8,615,108)

(170,516)

$ (13,677) 136,607,370

202,073

43,180
47,718
7,064
333

7,064
333

1,750
11,195
116,305
7,381
$765,175 $525,684 $4,999,440

930,140
(368,792)
(596,080)
4,197
22,795

$2,934,091 $2,758,839
855,325
43,180
47,718

16,104,800
(126,027)

530,563
(1,305)

953,620
(408,264)
(530,563)
3,055
11,195
116,305

(6,306,823)

(140,716)

148,097

(408,264)

Balance at July 1, 2006 *********** 765,174,900

165,990

(33,553)
22,357

2,660
22,795

$765,175 $389,053 $4,552,379
855,325

1,077,235
(321,353)
(623,653)
41,993
26,763

$2,510,064 $2,564,506
961,457
(33,553)
22,357

(368,792)

Balance at July 2, 2005 *********** 765,174,900
Net earnings *******************
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Change in fair value of interest rate
swap ***********************
Amortization of cash flow hedge*****

Total

$ 84,618

146,279,320

$3,322,633 $3,052,284

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SYSCO
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
Year Ended
July 1, 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings****************************************************** $ 855,325
Add non-cash items:
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax ***********************
(9,285)
Share-based compensation expense***********************************
126,837
Depreciation and amortization ***************************************
345,062
Deferred tax provision *********************************************
482,111
Provision for losses on receivables ***********************************
19,841
Additional investment in certain assets and liabilities, net of effect of businesses
acquired:
(Increase) in receivables *******************************************
(162,586)
(Increase) in inventories********************************************
(119,392)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses *******************************
1,741
Increase in accounts payable****************************************
49,775
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses *******************************
29,161
(Decrease) in accrued income taxes***********************************
(545,634)
(Increase) in other assets ******************************************
(17,937)
Increase (decrease) in other long-term liabilities and prepaid pension cost, net **
75,382
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation arrangements ************
(6,569)
Net cash provided by operating activities ******************************** 1,123,832
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to plant and equipment **************************************
(514,751)
Proceeds from sales of plant and equipment ******************************
22,701
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired ****************************
(114,378)
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash ***********************************
(2,243)
Net cash used for investing activities ***********************************
(608,671)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Bank and commercial paper borrowings (repayments), net ********************
240,017
Other debt borrowings***********************************************
500,987
Other debt repayments **********************************************
(413,383)
Debt issuance costs ************************************************
(3,998)
Cash (paid for) received from termination of interest rate swap ****************
(21,196)
Common stock reissued from treasury ***********************************
128,055
Treasury stock purchases*********************************************
(544,131)
Dividends paid ****************************************************
(397,537)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation arrangements **************
6,569
Net cash used for financing activities ***********************************
(504,617)
(325)
Effect of exchange rates on cash ****************************************
Net increase (decrease) in cash******************************************
10,219
Cash at beginning of year **********************************************
191,678
Cash at end of year ************************************************** $ 201,897
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest ******************************************************
Income taxes *************************************************
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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$ 107,242
619,442

July 2, 2005
(In thousands)

July 3, 2004
(53 Weeks)

$ 961,457

$ 907,214

—
19,749
316,743
554,850
18,587

—
34,857
283,595
608,152
27,377

(72,829)
(35,014)
(4,058)
28,080
(52,423)
(438,779)
(17,865)
(86,338)
—
1,192,160

(177,058)
(162,502)
(2,183)
95,874
26,687
(392,197)
(23,744)
(35,056)
—
1,191,016

(390,203)
25,482
(115,637)
66,918
(413,440)

(530,086)
15,851
(79,247)
(90,329)
(683,811)

115,017
9,357
(167,006)
(320)
5,316
208,004
(597,660)
(357,298)
—
(784,590)
(2,158)
(8,028)
199,706
$ 191,678

(77,849)
211,606
(26,519)
(1,494)
1,305
167,652
(608,506)
(309,540)
—
(643,345)
(1,601)
(137,741)
337,447
$ 199,706

$

$

73,939
436,378

68,481
344,414

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business and Consolidation

Sysco Corporation (SYSCO or the company) is engaged in the marketing and distribution of a wide range of food and related
products primarily to the foodservice or ‘‘food-prepared-away-from-home’’ industry. These services are performed for approximately
394,000 customers from 171 principal distribution facilities located throughout the United States and Canada.
The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of SYSCO and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
transactions and account balances have been eliminated. Certain amounts in the prior years have been reclassified to conform to the
fiscal 2006 presentation.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, sales and expenses. Actual results could differ from the estimates
used.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For cash flow purposes, cash includes cash equivalents such as time deposits, certificates of deposit, short-term investments and
all highly liquid instruments with original maturities of three months or less.
Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of trade receivables from customers and receivables from suppliers for marketing or incentive
programs. SYSCO determines the past due status of trade receivables based on contractual terms with each customer. SYSCO
evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable and determines the appropriate reserve for doubtful accounts based on a combination
of factors. In circumstances where the company is aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its financial obligation to SYSCO, a
specific allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded to reduce the receivable to the net amount reasonably expected to be collected. In
addition, allowances are recorded for all other receivables based on an analysis of historical trends of write-offs and recoveries. The
company utilizes specific criteria to determine uncollectible receivables to be written off including bankruptcy, accounts referred to
outside parties for collection and accounts past due over specified periods. The allowance for doubtful accounts receivable was
$29,100,000 as of July 1, 2006 and $29,604,000 as of July 2, 2005. Customer accounts written off, net of recoveries, were $21,128,000
or 0.06% of sales, $20,840,000 or 0.07% of sales, and $28,485,000 or 0.10% of sales for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Inventories

Inventories consisting primarily of finished goods include food and related products held for resale and are valued at the lower of
cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. Elements of costs include the purchase price of the product and freight charges to deliver the
product to the company’s warehouses and are net of certain cash or non-cash consideration received from vendors (see ‘‘Vendor
Consideration’’).
Plant and Equipment

Capital additions, improvements and major replacements are classified as plant and equipment and are carried at cost.
Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method, which reduces the book value of each asset in equal amounts over its
estimated useful life. Maintenance, repairs and minor replacements are charged to earnings when they are incurred. Upon the
disposition of an asset, its accumulated depreciation is deducted from the original cost, and any gain or loss is reflected in current
earnings.
Applicable interest charges incurred during the construction of new facilities and development of software for internal use are
capitalized as one of the elements of cost and are amortized over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Interest capitalized for the past
three years was $2,853,000 in 2006, $4,316,000 in 2005 and $7,495,000 in 2004.
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Long-Lived Assets

Management reviews long-lived assets for indicators of impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may not be recoverable. Cash flows expected to be generated by the related assets are estimated over the asset’s
useful life based on updated projections. If the evaluation indicates that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable, the
potential impairment is measured based on a projected discounted cash flow model.
Goodwill and Intangibles

Goodwill and intangibles represent the excess of cost over the fair value of tangible net assets acquired. Goodwill and intangibles
with indefinite lives are not amortized. Intangibles with definite lives are amortized over their useful lives, generally ranging from three
to ten years.
Goodwill is assigned to the reporting units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. The recoverability of
goodwill and intangibles is assessed annually, or more frequently as needed when events or changes have occurred that would suggest
an impairment of carrying value, by determining whether the fair values of the applicable reporting units exceed their carrying values.
The evaluation of fair value requires the use of projections, estimates and assumptions as to the future performance of the operations
in performing a discounted cash flow analysis, as well as assumptions regarding sales and earnings multiples that would be applied in
comparable acquisitions.
Derivative Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 133, ‘‘Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,’’ requires the recognition of all derivatives as assets
or liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Gains or losses on derivative financial instruments designated as fair
value hedges are recognized immediately in the Consolidated Results of Operations, along with the offsetting gain or loss related to the
underlying hedged item.
Gains or losses on derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges are recorded as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity until settlement (or until hedge ineffectiveness is determined), whereby gains or losses are reclassified to the
Consolidated Results of Operations in conjunction with the recognition of the underlying hedged item. To the extent that the periodic
changes in the fair value of the derivatives are not effective, or if the hedge ceases to qualify for hedge accounting, the ineffective
portion of the periodic non-cash changes are recorded in Operating expenses in the Consolidated Results of Operations in the period of
the change.
Treasury Stock

The company records treasury stock purchases at cost. Shares removed from treasury are valued at cost using the average cost
method.
Foreign Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of all Canadian subsidiaries are translated at current exchange rates. Related translation adjustments are
recorded as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income.
Revenue Recognition

The company recognizes revenue from the sale of a product when it is considered to be realized or realizable and earned. The
company determines these requirements to be met at the point at which the product is delivered to the customer. The company grants
certain customers sales incentives such as rebates or discounts and treats these as a reduction of sales at the time the sale is
recognized. Purchases and sales of inventory with the same counterparty that are entered into in contemplation of one another are
considered to be a single nonmonetary transaction. Beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the company recorded the net effect
of such transactions in the Consolidated Results of Operations within ‘‘Sales’’ as a result of a new accounting standard. See further
discussion in Note 3.
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Vendor Consideration

SYSCO recognizes consideration received from vendors when the services performed in connection with the monies received are
completed and when the related product has been sold by SYSCO. There are several types of cash consideration received from vendors.
In many instances, the vendor consideration is in the form of a specified amount per case or per pound. In these instances, SYSCO will
recognize the vendor consideration as a reduction of cost of sales when the product is sold. In the situations where the vendor
consideration is not related directly to specific product purchases, SYSCO will recognize these as a reduction of cost of sales when the
earnings process is complete, the related service is performed and the amounts realized. In certain of these latter instances, the vendor
consideration represents a reimbursement of a specific incremental identifiable cost incurred by SYSCO. In these cases, SYSCO
classifies the consideration as a reduction of those costs with any excess funds classified as a reduction of cost of sales and recognizes
these in the period in which the costs are incurred and related services performed.
Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs include costs associated with the selection of products and delivery to customers. Included in
operating expenses are shipping and handling costs of approximately $1,857,093,000 in fiscal 2006, $1,718,485,000 in fiscal 2005, and
$1,624,552,000 in fiscal 2004.
Insurance Program

SYSCO maintains a self-insurance program covering portions of workers’ compensation, group medical, general and vehicle liability
costs. The amounts in excess of the self-insured levels are fully insured by third party insurers. Liabilities associated with these risks
are estimated in part by considering historical claims experience, medical cost trends, demographic factors, severity factors and other
actuarial assumptions. Amounts accrued for self-insurance were $91,356,000 and $87,029,000 as of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005,
respectively.
Share-Based Compensation

SYSCO recognizes expense for its share-based compensation based on the fair value of the awards that are granted. The fair value
of the stock options is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Option pricing methods require the
input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. Measured compensation cost is recognized ratably
over the vesting period of the related share-based compensation award.
Acquisitions

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and the financial statements include the
results of the acquired operations from the respective dates they joined SYSCO.
The purchase price of the acquired entities is allocated to the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on the estimated
fair value at the dates of acquisition, with any excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired, including intangibles,
recognized as goodwill. The balances included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets related to recent acquisitions are based upon
preliminary information and are subject to change when final asset and liability valuations are obtained. Material changes to the
preliminary allocations are not anticipated by management.
2. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Staff Position No. FTB 85-4-1, ‘‘Accounting for Life Settlement
Contracts by Third-Party Investors’’ (FSP FTB 85-4-1), in March 2006 which allows an investor to account for its investments in a life
settlement contract using either the investment method or the fair value method. The investment method requires the initial investment
to be recognized at the transaction price, while the fair value method requires the initial investment to be recognized at its transaction
price and remeasured to fair value each subsequent reporting period. This standard was adopted by the FASB to address volatility
concerns when underlying investments are maintained in the stock market. The election of the investment method or fair value method
is irrevocable and should be made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Previously, only the fair value method was available. FSP FTB
85-4-1 is effective for SYSCO in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. Prospective application is required for all new investments in life
settlement contracts, and a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings should be made at the date of adoption to recognize the
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impact on existing life settlement contract investments. SYSCO will adopt FSP FTB 85-4-1 in the first quarter of fiscal 2007 using the
investment method which will result in a cumulative change in accounting principle charge of approximately $39,735,000.
In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, ‘‘Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109’’ (FIN 48), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 109 (SFAS 109). FIN 48 clarifies the application of SFAS 109 by defining criteria that an individual tax position must meet
for any part of the benefit of that position to be recognized in the financial statements. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on the
measurement, derecognition, classification and disclosure of tax positions, along with accounting for the related interest and penalties.
The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in
accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings. SYSCO is currently evaluating the impact the adoption of
FIN 48 will have on the company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
Beginning in fiscal 2006, SYSCO changed the measurement date for the pension and other postretirement benefit plans from fiscal
year-end to May 31st, which represents a change in accounting. Management believes this accounting change was preferable, as the
one-month acceleration of the measurement date allows additional time for management to evaluate and report the actuarial pension
measurements in the year-end financial statements and disclosures within the accelerated filing deadlines of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The cumulative effect of this change in accounting resulted in an increase to earnings in the first quarter of
fiscal 2006 of $9,285,000, net of tax.
Pro forma net earnings and earnings per share adjusted for the effect of retroactive application of the change in measurement date
on net pension costs, net of tax, are as follows:
2005

2004
(53 Weeks)

Reported net earnings******************************************************
Retroactive effect, net of tax ************************************************

$961,457,000
5,781,000

$907,214,000
(1,254,000)

Pro forma net earnings *****************************************************

$967,238,000

$905,960,000

Basic earnings per share:
Reported net earnings******************************************************
Retroactive effect, net of tax ************************************************

$

1.51
0.01

$

1.41
—

Pro forma net earnings *****************************************************

$

1.52

$

1.41

Diluted earnings per share:
Reported net earnings******************************************************
Retroactive effect, net of tax ************************************************

$

1.47
0.01

$

1.37
—

Pro forma net earnings *****************************************************

$

1.48

$

1.37

In September 2005, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus of Issue No. 04-13, ‘‘Accounting for Purchases and
Sales of Inventory With the Same Counterparty,’’ which requires that two or more inventory transactions with the same counterparty (as
defined) should be viewed as a single nonmonetary transaction, if the transactions were entered into in contemplation of one another.
Exchanges of inventory between entities in the same line of business should be accounted for at fair value or recorded at carrying
amounts, depending on the classification of such inventory. This guidance was effective for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 for SYSCO.
SYSCO has certain transactions where finished goods are purchased from a customer for warehousing and distribution and resold to the
same customer. These are evidenced by title transfer and are separately invoiced. Historically, the company has recorded such
transactions in the Consolidated Results of Operations for purchases within ‘‘Cost of Sales’’ and sales within ‘‘Sales.’’ Beginning in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the company recorded the net effect of such transactions in the Consolidated Results of Operations within
‘‘Sales’’ by reducing sales and cost of sales in the amount of $99,803,000. The amount included in the Consolidated Results of
Operations within ‘‘Cost of Sales’’ for the 39 week period ended April 1, 2006 and fiscal 2005 and 2004 which were recorded on a gross
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basis prior to the adoption of EITF 04-13 were $279,746,000, $347,018,000 and $276,041,000, respectively. Such amounts were not
restated when the new standard was adopted because prospective treatment is required.
4. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
A summary of plant and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation, appears below:
July 1, 2006

Estimated Useful
Lives

July 2, 2005

Plant and equipment, at cost:
Land************************************************** $ 220,542,000
Buildings and improvements ********************************
2,140,786,000
Fleet, equipment and software ******************************
2,277,612,000
4,638,940,000
Accumulated depreciation ************************************
(2,174,040,000)
Net plant and equipment ************************************ $ 2,464,900,000

$

208,189,000
1,916,454,000
2,121,307,000
4,245,950,000
(1,977,649,000)
$ 2,268,301,000

10-40 years
3-20 years

Depreciation expense, including capital leases,for the past three years was $320,669,000 in 2006, $298,111,000 in 2005 and
$273,030,000 in 2004.
5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill and the amount allocated by reportable segment for the years presented are as
follows:
Broadline

Carrying amount at July 3, 2004 ************** $660,098,000
Goodwill acquired during year ****************
3,589,000
Currency translation/Other *******************
12,659,000
Carrying amount at July 2, 2005 ************** 676,346,000
Goodwill acquired during year ****************
11,488,000
Currency translation/Other *******************
21,580,000
Carrying amount at July 1, 2006 ************** $709,414,000

SYGMA

Other

Total

$43,875,000
606,000
—
44,481,000
2,449,000
—
$46,930,000

$470,818,000
21,198,000
(240,000)
491,776,000
54,173,000
298,000
$546,247,000

$1,174,791,000
25,393,000
12,419,000
1,212,603,000
68,110,000
21,878,000
$1,302,591,000

The following table presents details of the company’s other intangible assets:
July 1, 2006
Accumulated
Amortization

Amortized Intangible Assets:
Customer Relationships *********** $109,201,000
Non-compete Agreements *********
8,099,000
Total ************************* $117,300,000
Unamortized intangible assets:
Trademarks ********************

Gross Carrying
Amount

$ 5,408,000

Net

Gross Carrying
Amount

July 2, 2005
Accumulated
Amortization

Net

$21,056,000
6,001,000
$27,057,000

$88,145,000
2,098,000
$90,243,000

$75,412,000
7,929,000
$83,341,000

$10,954,000
4,868,000
$15,822,000

$64,458,000
3,061,000
$67,519,000

$

$ 5,408,000

$ 5,062,000

$

$ 5,062,000

—

—

Amortization expense for the past three years was $10,773,000 in 2006, $7,569,000 in 2005 and $4,244,000 in 2004. The
estimated future amortization expense on intangible assets for the next five fiscal years is shown below:
Amount

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

************************************************************************** $12,304,000
************************************************************************** 11,725,000
************************************************************************** 11,567,000
************************************************************************** 11,315,000
************************************************************************** 11,116,000
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6. RESTRICTED CASH
SYSCO is required by its insurers to collateralize a part of the self-insured portion of its workers’ compensation and liability claims.
SYSCO has chosen to satisfy these collateral requirements by depositing funds in insurance trusts or by issuing letters of credit.
In addition, for certain acquisitions, SYSCO has placed funds into escrow to be disbursed to the sellers in the event that specified
operating results are attained or contingencies are resolved. Escrowed funds related to certain acquisitions in the amount of $1,700,000
were released during fiscal 2006, which included $800,000 that was disbursed to sellers.
A summary of restricted cash balances appears below:
July 1, 2006

Funds deposited in insurance trusts************************************** $ 82,653,000
Escrow funds related to acquisitions *************************************
19,621,000
Total************************************************************* $102,274,000

July 2, 2005

$ 80,410,000
21,321,000
$101,731,000

7. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
SYSCO manages its debt portfolio by targeting an overall desired position of fixed and floating rates and may employ interest rate
swaps from time to time to achieve this goal. The company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes.
During fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005, the company entered into various interest rate swap agreements designated as fair value
hedges of the related debt. The terms of these swap agreements and the hedged items were such that the hedges were considered
perfectly effective against changes in the fair value of the debt due to changes in the benchmark interest rates over their terms. As a
result, the shortcut method provided by SFAS No. 133, ‘‘Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,’’ was applied and
there was no need to periodically reassess the effectiveness of the hedges during the terms of the swaps. Interest expense on the debt
was adjusted to include payments made or received under the hedge agreements. The fair value of the swaps was carried as an asset
or a liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the carrying value of the hedged debt was adjusted accordingly. There were no fair
value hedges outstanding as of July 1, 2006 or July 2, 2005.
The amount received upon termination of fair value hedge swap agreements was $5,316,000 and $1,305,000 in fiscal years 2005
and 2004, respectively. There were no terminations of fair value hedge swap agreements in fiscal 2006. The amount received upon
termination of swap agreements is reflected as an increase in the carrying value of the related debt to reflect its fair value at
termination. This increase in the carrying value of the debt is amortized as a reduction of interest expense over the remaining term of
the debt.
In March 2005, SYSCO entered into a forward-starting interest rate swap with a notional amount of $350,000,000. In accordance
with SFAS No. 133, the company designated this derivative as a cash flow hedge of the variability in the cash outflows of interest
payments on $350,000,000 of the September 2005 forecasted debt issuance due to changes in the benchmark interest rate. The fair
value of the swap as of July 2, 2005 was ($32,584,000), which is reflected in Accrued expenses on the Consolidated Balance Sheet,
with the corresponding amount reflected as a loss, net of tax, in Other comprehensive income (loss).
In September 2005, in conjunction with the issuance of the 5.375% senior notes, SYSCO settled the $350,000,000 notional amount
forward-starting interest rate swap. Upon settlement, SYSCO paid cash of $21,196,000, which represented the fair value of the swap
agreement at the time of settlement. This amount is being amortized as interest expense over the 30-year term of the debt, and the
unamortized balance is reflected as a loss, net of tax, in Other comprehensive income (loss).
In the normal course of business, SYSCO enters into forward purchase agreements for the procurement of fuel, electricity and
product commodities related to SYSCO’s business. Certain of these agreements meet the definition of a derivative and qualify for the
normal purchase and sale exemption under relevant accounting literature. The company has elected to use this exemption for these
agreements and thus they are not recorded at fair value.
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8. DEBT AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
SYSCO’s debt consists of the following:
July 1, 2006

Short-term borrowings, interest at 5.4% as of July 1, 2006 and 3.6% as of
July 2, 2005 ************************************************** $ 29,300,000
Commercial paper, interest averaging 5.3% as of July 1, 2006 and 3.2% as of
July 2, 2005 **************************************************
399,568,000
Senior notes, interest at 7.0%, maturing in fiscal 2006 ********************
—
Senior notes, interest at 4.75%, maturing in fiscal 2006 *******************
—
Senior notes, interest at 7.25%, maturing in fiscal 2007 *******************
99,295,000
Senior notes, interest at 6.1%, maturing in fiscal 2012 ********************
200,561,000
Senior notes, interest at 4.6%, maturing in fiscal 2014 ********************
208,540,000
Debentures, interest at 7.16%, maturing in fiscal 2027*********************
50,000,000
Debentures, interest at 6.5%, maturing in fiscal 2029 *********************
224,474,000
Senior notes, interest at 5.375%, maturing in fiscal 2036*******************
499,566,000
Industrial Revenue Bonds, mortgages and other debt, interest averaging 6.9% as
of July 1, 2006 and 5.7% as of July 2, 2005, maturing at various dates to
fiscal 2026 ***************************************************
51,388,000
Total debt ****************************************************** 1,762,692,000
Less current maturities and short-term debt *****************************
(135,565,000)
Net long-term debt *********************************************** $1,627,127,000

July 2, 2005

$

31,000,000
157,851,000
198,011,000
200,551,000
98,335,000
200,655,000
209,644,000
50,000,000
224,453,000
—

60,608,000
1,431,108,000
(474,931,000)
$ 956,177,000

The principal payments required to be made on debt during the next five fiscal years are shown below:
Amount

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

************************************************************************* $135,565,000
*************************************************************************
4,596,000
*************************************************************************
962,000
*************************************************************************
894,000
************************************************************************* 407,465,000

Short-term Borrowings

As of July 2, 2005, SYSCO has uncommitted bank lines of credit, which provided for unsecured borrowings for working capital of
up to $95,000,000. Borrowings outstanding under these lines of credit were $31,000,000 as of July 2, 2005.
As of July 1, 2006, SYSCO has uncommitted bank lines of credit, which provided for unsecured borrowings for working capital of
up to $145,000,000. Borrowings outstanding under these lines of credit were $29,300,000 as of July 1, 2006.
Commercial Paper

As of July 2, 2005, SYSCO had a revolving loan agreement in the amount of $450,000,000, maturing in fiscal 2008, which
supported the company’s United States commercial paper program. The company had intent to refinance this facility on a long-term
basis and did so in the fall of 2005. As a result, the commercial paper issuances supported by this agreement have been classified as
long-term debt. The United States commercial paper issuances outstanding at July 2, 2005 were $124,853,000.
At July 2, 2005, SYSCO also had a revolving loan agreement in the amount of $100,000,000 in Canadian dollars (CAD), maturing in
fiscal 2006, which supported the company’s Canadian commercial paper program. The Canadian commercial paper issuances
outstanding at July 2, 2005 were CAD $40,996,000 ($32,998,000 in U.S. dollars).
In November 2005, SYSCO and one of its subsidiaries, SYSCO International, Co., entered into a new revolving credit facility to
support the company’s U.S. and Canadian commercial paper programs. The facility, which was increased to $750,000,000 in March
2006, may be increased up to $1,000,000,000 at the option of the company, and terminates on November 4, 2010, subject to extension.
The facility replaced the previous $450,000,000 (U.S. dollar) and $100,000,000 (Canadian dollar) revolving credit agreements in the U.S.
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and Canada, respectively, both of which were terminated. Since this long-term facility supports the company’s commercial paper
programs, the $399,568,000 of commercial paper issuances outstanding at July 1, 2006 were classified as long-term debt.
In April 2006, SYSCO initiated a new commercial paper program allowing the company to issue short-term unsecured notes in an
aggregate not to exceed $1.3 billion. This new commercial paper program replaced notes that were issued under SYSCO’s existing
commercial paper program as they matured and became due and payable.
During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, aggregate outstanding commercial paper issuances and short-term bank borrowings ranged
from approximately $126,846,000 to $774,530,000, $28,560,000 to $253,384,000, and $73,102,000 to $478,114,000, respectively.
Outstanding commercial paper issuances were $399,568,000 as of July 1, 2006.
Fixed Rate Debt

In April 2005, SYSCO filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a shelf registration statement covering $1,500,000,000 in
debt securities. The registration statement was declared effective in May 2005.
In June 2005, SYSCO repaid the 6.5% senior notes totaling $150,000,000 at maturity utilizing a combination of cash flow from
operations and commercial paper issuances. In July 2005, SYSCO repaid the 4.75% senior notes totaling $200,000,000 at maturity also
utilizing a combination of cash flow from operations and commercial paper issuances.
In September 2005, SYSCO issued 5.375% senior notes totaling $500,000,000 due on September 21, 2035, under its April 2005
shelf registration. These notes, which were priced at 99.911% of par, are unsecured, are not subject to any sinking fund requirement
and include a redemption provision which allows SYSCO to retire the notes at any time prior to maturity at the greater of par plus
accrued interest or an amount designed to ensure that the noteholders are not penalized by the early redemption. Proceeds from the
notes were utilized to retire commercial paper issuances outstanding as of September 2005.
In September 2005, in conjunction with the issuance of the 5.375% senior notes, SYSCO settled a $350,000,000 notional amount
forward-starting interest rate swap which was designated as a cash flow hedge of the variability in the cash outflows of interest
payments on the debt issuance due to changes in the benchmark interest rate. See Note 7, Derivative Financial Instruments, for further
discussion.
In May 2006, SYSCO repaid the 7.0% senior notes totaling $200,000,000 at maturity utilizing a combination of cash flow from
operations and commercial paper issuances.
The 6.5% debentures due August 1, 2028 and the 4.60% senior notes due March 15, 2014 are unsecured, are not subject to any
sinking fund requirement and include a redemption provision which allows SYSCO to retire the debentures and notes at any time prior
to maturity at the greater of par plus accrued interest or an amount designed to ensure that the debenture and note holders are not
penalized by the early redemption.
The 7.25% senior notes due April 15, 2007 are unsecured, are not redeemable prior to maturity and are not subject to any sinking
fund requirement.
The 7.16% debentures due April 15, 2027 are unsecured, are not subject to any sinking fund requirement and are redeemable at
the option of the holder on April 15, 2007, but otherwise are not redeemable prior to maturity.
The 6.10% senior notes due June 1, 2012 , issued by SYSCO International, Co., a wholly-owned subsidiary of SYSCO, are fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by Sysco Corporation, are not subject to any sinking fund requirement, and include a redemption provision
which allow SYSCO International, Co. to retire the notes at any time prior to maturity at the greater of par plus accrued interest or an
amount designed to ensure that the note holders are not penalized by the early redemption.
SYSCO’s Industrial Revenue Bonds have varying structures. Final maturities range from five to 20 years and certain of the bonds
provide SYSCO the right to redeem (or call) the bonds at various dates. These call provisions generally provide the bondholder a
premium in the early call years, declining to par value as the bonds approach maturity.
Included in current maturities of long-term debt at July 1, 2006 are the 7.25% senior notes due April 2007 totaling $100,000,000. It
is the company’s intention to fund the repayment of these notes at maturity through issuances of commercial paper, senior notes or a
combination thereof.
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Total Debt

Total debt at July 1, 2006 was $1,762,692,000, of which approximately 75% was at fixed rates averaging 6.0% with an average
life of 19 years, and the remainder was at floating rates averaging 5.2%. Certain loan agreements contain typical debt covenants to
protect noteholders, including provisions to maintain the company’s long-term debt to total capital ratio below a specified level. SYSCO
was in compliance with all debt covenants at July 1, 2006.
The fair value of SYSCO’s total long-term debt is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on
the current rates offered to the company for debt of the same remaining maturities. The fair value of total long-term debt approximated
$1,669,999,000 at July 1, 2006 and $1,442,721,000 at July 2, 2005, respectively.
Other

As of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005, letters of credit outstanding were $60,000,000 and $76,817,000, respectively.
9. LEASES
Although SYSCO normally purchases assets, it has obligations under capital and operating leases for certain distribution facilities,
vehicles and computers. Total rental expense under operating leases was $100,690,000, $92,710,000, and $86,842,000 in fiscal 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Contingent rentals, subleases and assets and obligations under capital leases are not significant.
Aggregate minimum lease payments by fiscal year under existing non-capitalized long-term leases are as follows:
Amount

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
Later

*************************************************************************
*************************************************************************
*************************************************************************
*************************************************************************
*************************************************************************
years*********************************************************************

$ 56,499,000
46,899,000
39,904,000
33,329,000
25,666,000
128,981,000

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
SYSCO has defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans for its employees. Also, the company contributes to various
multi-employer plans under collective bargaining agreements and provides certain health care benefits to eligible retirees and their
dependents.
SYSCO maintains a qualified retirement plan (Retirement Plan) that pays benefits to employees at retirement, using formulas
based on a participant’s years of service and compensation.
The defined contribution 401(k) plan provides that under certain circumstances the company may make matching contributions of
up to 50% of the first 6% of a participant’s compensation. SYSCO’s contributions to this plan were $21,898,000 in 2006, $28,109,000 in
2005, and $27,390,000 in 2004.
In addition to receiving benefits upon retirement under the company’s defined benefit plan, participants in the Management
Incentive Plan (see ‘‘Management Incentive Compensation’’ under ‘‘Stock Based Compensation Plans’’) will receive benefits under a
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP). This plan is a nonqualified, unfunded supplementary retirement plan. In order to meet
its obligations under the SERP, SYSCO maintains life insurance policies on the lives of the participants with carrying values of
$153,659,000 at July 1, 2006 and $138,931,000 at July 2, 2005. These policies are not included as plan assets or in the funded status
amounts in the table below. SYSCO is the sole owner and beneficiary of such policies. Projected benefit obligations and accumulated
benefit obligations for the SERP were $327,450,000 and $238,599,000, respectively, as of July 1, 2006 and $375,491,000 and
$264,010,000, respectively, as of July 2, 2005.
The company made cash contributions to its pension plans of $73,764,000 and $220,361,000 in fiscal years 2006 and 2005,
respectively, including $66,000,000 and $214,000,000 in voluntary contributions to the Retirement Plan in fiscal 2006 and 2005,
respectively. In fiscal 2006, the company’s voluntary contribution to the Retirement Plan represented the maximum tax-deductible
amount. In fiscal 2005, the company made a voluntary contribution of $134,000,000 in the fourth quarter in addition to the $80,000,000
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which was contributed during the year. The decision to increase the contributions to the Retirement Plan in fiscal 2005 was primarily
due to the decrease in the discount rate used to measure the year-end obligation, which increased the pension obligation and
negatively impacted the fiscal 2005 year-end pension funded status prior to the additional $134,000,000 contribution. In fiscal 2007, as
in previous years, contributions to the Retirement Plan will not be required to meet ERISA minimum funding requirements, yet the
company anticipates it will make voluntary contributions of approximately $80,000,000. The company’s contributions to the SERP and
other post-retirement plans are made in the amounts needed to fund current year benefit payments. The estimated fiscal 2007
contributions to fund benefit payments for the SERP and other post-retirement plans are $9,041,000 and $315,000, respectively.
Estimated future benefit payments are as follows:

2007 **************************************************************
2008 **************************************************************
2009 **************************************************************
2010 **************************************************************
2011 **************************************************************
Subsequent five years *************************************************

Pension Benefits

Other
Postretirement
Plans

$ 29,446,000
34,043,000
40,230,000
47,685,000
55,205,000
408,689,000

$ 315,000
396,000
500,000
594,000
714,000
4,581,000

The funded status of the defined benefit plans is as follows (including the SERP benefit obligations but excluding from plan assets
the cash surrender values of life insurance policies):
Pension Benefits
July 1, 2006

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year********** $1,574,718,000
Service cost******************************
100,028,000
Interest cost *****************************
83,600,000
Amendments *****************************
7,800,000
Actuarial (gain) loss ************************
(284,307,000)
Actual expenses **************************
(7,906,000)
Total disbursements ************************
(24,331,000)
Settlements /Adjustments (Measurement date
change) *******************************
(68,193,000)
Benefit obligation at end of year ************** 1,381,409,000
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year **** 1,141,638,000
Actual return on plan assets *****************
106,584,000
Employer contribution***********************
207,645,000
Actual expenses **************************
(7,906,000)
Total disbursements ************************
(24,331,000)
Settlements /Adjustments (Measurement date
change) *******************************
(141,328,000)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year********* 1,282,302,000
Funded status ****************************
(99,107,000)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain)***********
264,855,000
Unrecognized net obligation due to initial
application of SFAS No. 87/106 *************
—
Unrecognized prior service cost ***************
47,953,000
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost at measurement date
213,701,000
Contributions after measurement date, before end
of year *******************************
666,000
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost at end of year ***** $ 214,367,000
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July 2, 2005

Other Postretirement Plans
July 1, 2006
July 2, 2005

$1,192,357,000
81,282,000
73,824,000
25,617,000
230,052,000
(6,815,000)
(21,599,000)

$ 8,818,000
510,000
472,000
—
(1,473,000)
—
(57,000)

$ 7,996,000
477,000
488,000
—
(65,000)
—
(78,000)

—
1,574,718,000

(225,000)
8,045,000

—
8,818,000

859,279,000
90,412,000
220,361,000
(6,815,000)
(21,599,000)

—
—
57,000
—
(57,000)

—
—
78,000
—
(78,000)

—
1,141,638,000
(433,080,000)
644,116,000

—
—
(8,045,000)
(2,515,000)

—
—
(8,818,000)
(773,000)

—
45,087,000
256,123,000

1,074,000
793,000
(8,693,000)

1,227,000
994,000
(7,370,000)

—
$ 256,123,000

—
$(8,693,000)

—
$(7,370,000)

Additional information related to SYSCO’s defined benefit plans is as follows:
July 1, 2006

July 2, 2005

Amount recognized in consolidated balance sheet:
Prepaid pension cost ********************************************** $ 388,651,000
Accrued benefit liability ********************************************
(238,599,000)
Intangible asset**************************************************
45,619,000
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ********************************
18,030,000
Net amount recognized ******************************************** $ 213,701,000
Plans with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of fair value of plan assets:
Projected benefit obligation *****************************************
Accumulated benefit obligation **************************************
Fair value of plan assets at end of year *******************************
Additional information:
Accumulated benefit obligation **************************************
Increase (decrease) in minimum liability included in other comprehensive income

$ 389,766,000
(264,010,000)
42,240,000
88,127,000
$ 256,123,000

$ 327,450,000
238,599,000
—

$ 375,491,000
264,010,000
—

$1,187,185,000
(70,097,000)

$1,329,725,000
54,414,000

Minimum pension liability adjustments result when the accumulated benefit obligation exceeds the fair value of plan assets and
are recorded so that the recorded pension liability is at a minimum equal to the unfunded accumulated benefit obligation. Minimum
pension liability adjustments are non-cash adjustments that are reflected as an increase (or decrease) in the pension liability and an
offsetting charge (or benefit) to shareholders’ equity, net of tax, through comprehensive loss (or income) rather than net income.
Amounts reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss related to minimum pension liability, were charges, net of
tax, of $11,106,000 as of July 1, 2006, and $54,286,000 as of July 2, 2005.
As a result of changes in assumptions, including the decrease in the discount rate to 5.60% for fiscal 2006, which is based on the
new measurement date of May 31st discussed below, from 6.25% in fiscal 2005, together with the normal growth of the plan, the
impact of losses from prior periods and the amount and timing of contributions, net pension costs increased $23,734,000 in fiscal 2006.
Net pension costs in fiscal 2007 are expected to decrease by approximately $53,900,000 due primarily to an increase in the discount
rate to 6.73% for fiscal 2007. The components of net pension costs for each fiscal year are as follows:
Pension Benefits
2005

2004
(53 Weeks)

$ 81,282,000
73,824,000
(82,613,000)
1,760,000
32,605,000
—
$106,858,000

$ 74,934,000
61,162,000
(61,148,000)
1,308,000
37,697,000
279,000
$114,232,000

2006

Service cost ****************************************** $ 100,028,000
Interest cost******************************************
83,600,000
Expected return on plan assets **************************** (104,174,000)
Amortization of prior service cost **************************
4,934,000
Recognized net actuarial loss *****************************
46,204,000
Amortization of net transition obligation *********************
—
Net pension costs ************************************* $ 130,592,000
The components of other postretirement benefit costs for each fiscal year are as follows:

Other Postretirement Plans
2006

Service cost************************************************ $ 510,000
Interest cost ***********************************************
472,000
Expected return on plan assets *********************************
—
Amortization of prior service cost ********************************
202,000
Recognized net actuarial gain***********************************
(15,000)
Amortization of net transition obligation ***************************
153,000
Net other postretirement benefit costs **************************** $1,322,000

2005

2004
(53 Weeks)

$ 477,000
488,000
—
202,000
—
154,000
$1,321,000

$ 422,000
402,000
—
202,000
(40,000)
153,000
$1,139,000

Multi-employer pension costs were $29,796,000, $28,822,000, and $29,479,000 in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at year end were:
Pension Benefits
July 1, 2006
July 2, 2005

Discount rate *******************************************
Rate of compensation increase — Retirement Plan ***************

6.73%
6.17

5.40%
5.89

Other Postretirement Plans
July 1, 2006
July 2, 2005

6.73%
—

5.40%
—

For determining the benefit obligations at year end, the SERP calculations assume annual salary increases of 10% through fiscal
2007 and 7% thereafter as of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005.
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net pension costs and other postretirement benefit costs for each fiscal year
were:
2006

Discount rate *******************************************
Expected rate of return ************************************
Rate of compensation increase — Retirement Plan ***************

Pension Benefits
2005
2004

Other Postretirement Plans
2006
2005
2004

5.60% 6.25% 6.00% 5.60% 6.25% 6.00%
9.00
9.00
9.00
—
—
—
5.89
5.89
5.89
—
—
—

For determining net pension costs related to the SERP for each fiscal year, the calculations for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 assume
annual salary increases of 10% through fiscal 2007 and 7% thereafter, and for fiscal 2004, the calculations assume annual salary
increases of 8% through fiscal 2005 and 7% thereafter.
The measurement date for the pension and other postretirement benefit plans is fiscal year end for fiscal years 2005 and prior.
Beginning in fiscal 2006, the measurement date is May 31st which represents a change in accounting. The one-month acceleration of
the measurement date allows additional time for management to evaluate and report the actuarial pension measurements in the yearend financial statements and disclosures within the accelerated filing deadlines of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
cumulative effect of this change in accounting resulted in an increase to earnings in the first quarter of fiscal 2006 of $9,285,000, net of
tax.
A healthcare cost trend rate is not used in the calculations of post-retirement benefits obligations because SYSCO subsidizes the
cost of postretirement medical coverage by a fixed dollar amount with the retiree responsible for the cost of coverage in excess of the
subsidy, including all future cost increases.
For guidance in determining the discount rate, SYSCO calculates the implied rate of return on a hypothetical portfolio of highquality fixed-income investments for which the timing and amount of cash outflows approximates the estimated payouts of the pension
plans. The discount rate assumption is reviewed annually and revised as deemed appropriate.
The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is derived from a mathematical asset model that incorporates assumptions as
to the various asset class returns, reflecting a combination of rigorous historical performance analysis and the forward-looking views of
the financial markets regarding the yield on long-term bonds and the historical returns of the major stock markets. The rate of return
assumption is reviewed annually and revised as deemed appropriate.
SYSCO’s investment objectives target a mix of investments that can potentially achieve an above-average rate of return. SYSCO
has determined that this strategy is appropriate due to the relatively low ratio of retirees as a percentage of participants, low average
years of participant service and low average age of participants and is willing to accept the above-average level of short-term risk and
variability in returns to attempt to achieve a higher level of long-term returns. As a result, the company’s strategy targets a mix of
investments which include 70% stocks (including a mix of large capitalization U.S. stocks, small- to mid-capitalization U.S. stocks and
international stocks) and 30% fixed income investments and cash equivalents.
The percentage of the fair value of plan assets by asset category is as follows:
Equity securities ***********************************************************
Debt securities ************************************************************
Total ********************************************************************
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July 1, 2006

July 2, 2005

70.9%
29.1
100.0%

71.2%
28.8
100.0%

11. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Basic earnings per share have been computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding for each respective year. Diluted earnings per share have been computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding during those respective years adjusted for the dilutive effect of stock options
outstanding using the treasury stock method.
A reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic and diluted per share computations for the periods presented
follows:
2005

2004
(53 Weeks)

$961,457,000
—
$961,457,000

$907,214,000
—
$907,214,000

636,068,266
17,088,851
653,157,117

642,688,614
19,230,620
661,919,234

2006

Numerator:
Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change********** $846,040,000
Cumulative effect of accounting change **********************
9,285,000
Net earnings ****************************************** $855,325,000
Denominator:
Weighted-average basic shares outstanding *****************
Dilutive effect of share-based awards *********************
Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding****************

621,382,766
7,417,881
628,800,647

Basic earnings per share:
Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change********** $
Cumulative effect of accounting change **********************
Net earnings ****************************************** $

1.36
0.02
1.38

$

Diluted earnings per share:
Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change**********
Cumulative effect of accounting change **********************
Net earnings ******************************************

1.35
0.01
1.36

$

$
$

$

$

1.51
—
1.51

$

1.47
—
1.47

$

$

$

1.41
—
1.41
1.37
—
1.37

The number of options which were not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation because the effect would have been
anti-dilutive was approximately 28,500,000, 68,000 and zero for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Dividends declared were $408,264,000, $368,792,000 and $321,353,000 in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Included in
dividends declared for each year were dividends declared but not yet paid at year end of approximately $105,000,000, $95,000,000 and
$83,000,000 in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
In May 1986, the Board of Directors adopted a Warrant Dividend Plan designed to protect against those unsolicited attempts to
acquire control of SYSCO that the Board believes are not in the best interests of the shareholders. This plan was amended and replaced
by the Amended and Restated Rights Agreement (the Plan) in May 1996. The Board adopted further amendments in May 1999. By its
terms, the Plan expired on May 31, 2006.
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12. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Comprehensive income is net earnings plus certain other items that are recorded directly to shareholders’ equity.
The following table provides a summary of the changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the years presented:
Minimum Pension
Liability

Balance at June 28, 2003 ******************* $(185,118,000)
Minimum pension liability adjustment **********
164,385,000
Foreign currency translation adjustment *********
—
Balance at July 3, 2004 ********************
(20,733,000)
Minimum pension liability adjustment **********
(33,553,000)
Foreign currency translation adjustment *********
—
Change in fair value of interest rate swap ******
—
Balance at July 2, 2005 ********************
(54,286,000)
Minimum pension liability adjustment **********
43,180,000
Foreign currency translation adjustment *********
—
Change in fair value of interest rate swap ******
—
Amortization of cash flow hedge **************
—
Balance at July 1, 2006 ******************** $ (11,106,000)

Foreign Currency
Translation

$ 32,737,000
—
5,636,000
38,373,000
—
22,357,000
—
60,730,000
—
47,718,000
—
—
$108,448,000

Interest Rate Swap

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
(20,121,000)
(20,121,000)
—
—
7,064,000
333,000
$(12,724,000)

Total

$(152,381,000)
164,385,000
5,636,000
17,640,000
(33,553,000)
22,357,000
(20,121,000)
(13,677,000)
43,180,000
47,718,000
7,064,000
333,000
$ 84,618,000

A summary of the components of other comprehensive income (loss) and the related tax effects for each of the years presented is
as follows:
2006
Before-Tax
Amount

Minimum pension liability adjustment ************************* $ 70,097,000
Foreign currency translation adjustment ************************
47,718,000
Change in fair value of interest rate swap *********************
11,388,000
Amortization of cash flow hedge *****************************
540,000
Other comprehensive income******************************** $129,743,000

Income Tax

After-Tax
Amount

$26,917,000
—
4,324,000
207,000
$31,448,000

$43,180,000
47,718,000
7,064,000
333,000
$98,295,000

2005

Minimum pension liability adjustment*************************
Foreign currency translation adjustment ***********************
Change in fair value of interest rate swap *********************
Other comprehensive income *******************************

Before-Tax
Amount

Income Tax

After-Tax
Amount

$(54,414,000)
22,357,000
(32,584,000)
$(64,641,000)

$(20,861,000)
—
(12,463,000)
$(33,324,000)

$(33,553,000)
22,357,000
(20,121,000)
$(31,317,000)

2004

Minimum pension liability adjustment ***********************
Foreign currency translation adjustment **********************
Other comprehensive income ******************************

Before-Tax
Amount

Income Tax

After-Tax
Amount

$266,074,000
5,636,000
$271,710,000

$101,689,000
—
$101,689,000

$164,385,000
5,636,000
$170,021,000

13. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
Prior to July 3, 2005, SYSCO accounted for its stock option plans and its Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan using the intrinsic value
method of accounting provided under APB Opinion No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,’’ (APB 25) and related
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interpretations, as permitted by FASB Statement No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ (SFAS 123) under which no
compensation expense was recognized for stock option grants and issuances of stock pursuant to the Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan.
However, share-based compensation expense was recognized in periods prior to fiscal 2006 (and continues to be recognized) for stock
issuances pursuant to the Management Incentive Plans and stock grants to non-employee directors. Share-based compensation was a
pro forma disclosure in the financial statement footnotes and continues to be provided for periods prior to fiscal 2006.
Effective July 3, 2005, SYSCO adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123(R), ‘‘Share-Based
Payment,’’ (SFAS 123(R)) using the modified-prospective transition method. Under this transition method, compensation cost recognized
in fiscal 2006 includes: a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted through July 2, 2005, but for which the requisite
service period had not been completed as of July 2, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original
provisions of SFAS 123, and b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to July 2, 2005, based on the grant
date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). Results for prior periods have not been restated.
As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R) on July 3, 2005, SYSCO’s earnings before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting
change and net earnings for fiscal 2006 were $118,038,000 and $105,810,000 lower, respectively, than if the company had continued to
account for share-based compensation under APB 25. Basic and diluted earnings per share before the cumulative effect of the
accounting change for fiscal 2006 were both $0.17 lower than if the company had continued to account for share-based compensation
under APB 25.
The adoption of SFAS 123(R) results in lower diluted shares outstanding than would have been calculated had compensation cost
not been recorded for stock options and stock issuances under the Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan. This is due to a modification
required by SFAS 123(R) of the treasury stock method calculation utilized to compute the dilutive effect of stock options.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of options
as operating cash flows in the Consolidated Cash Flow statement. SFAS 123(R) requires the cash flows resulting from tax deductions in
excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. The
$6,569,000 excess tax benefit classified as a financing cash inflow for fiscal 2006 would have been classified as an operating cash
inflow if the company had not adopted SFAS 123(R).
SYSCO provides compensation benefits to employees and non-employee directors under several share-based payment
arrangements including various employee stock option plans, the Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan, the Management Incentive Plans and
the 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan.
Stock Option Plans

SYSCO’s 2004 Stock Option Plan was adopted in fiscal 2005 and reserves 23,500,000 shares of SYSCO common stock for grants of
options and dividend equivalents to directors, officers and other employees of the company and its subsidiaries at the market price at
the date of grant. This plan provides for the issuance of options qualified as incentive stock options under the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, options which are non-qualified, and dividend equivalents. To date, SYSCO has only issued options under this plan. Vesting
requirements for awards under this plan will vary by individual grant and may include either time-based vesting or time-based vesting
subject to acceleration based on performance criteria. The contractual life of all options granted under this plan will be no greater than
seven years. As of July 1, 2006, there were 18,656,450 remaining shares authorized and available for grant under the 2004 Stock Option
Plan.
SYSCO has also granted employee options under several previous employee stock option plans for which previously granted
options remain outstanding at July 1, 2006. No new options will be issued under any of the prior plans, as future grants to employees
will be made through the 2004 Stock Option Plan or subsequently adopted plans. Vesting requirements for awards under these plans
vary by individual grant and include either time-based vesting or time-based vesting subject to acceleration based on performance
criteria. The contractual life of all options granted under these plans through July 3, 2004 is 10 years; options granted after July 3, 2004
have a contractual life of seven years.
SYSCO’s 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan was adopted in fiscal 2006 and reserves 550,000 shares of common stock for
grants to non-employee directors in the form of options, stock grants, restricted stock units and dividend equivalents. In addition,
options and unvested common shares also remained outstanding as of July 1, 2006 under previous non-employee director stock plans.
No further grants will be made under these previous plans, as all future grants to non-employee directors will be made through the
2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan or subsequently adopted plans. Vesting requirements for awards under these plans vary by
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individual grant and include either time-based vesting or time-based vesting subject to acceleration based on performance criteria. The
contractual life of all options granted under these plans through July 3, 2004 is 10 years; options granted after July 3, 2004 have a
contractual life of seven years. As of July 1, 2006, there were 478,593 remaining shares authorized and available for grant under the
2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan.
Certain of SYSCO’s option awards are generally subject to graded vesting over a service period. In those cases, SYSCO recognizes
compensation cost on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. In other cases, certain of SYSCO’s
option awards provide for graded vesting over a service period but include a performance-based provision allowing for accelerated
vesting. In these cases, if it is probable that the performance condition will be met, SYSCO recognizes compensation cost on a straightline basis over the shorter performance period; otherwise, it will recognize compensation cost over the longer service period.
In addition, certain of SYSCO’s options provide that the options continue to vest as if the optionee continued to be an employee if
the optionee meets certain age and years of service thresholds upon retirement. In these cases, for awards granted through July 2,
2005, SYSCO will recognize the compensation cost for such awards over the service period and accelerate any remaining unrecognized
compensation cost when the employee retires. Due to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), for awards granted subsequent to July 2, 2005,
SYSCO will recognize compensation cost for such awards over the period from the grant date to the date the employee first becomes
eligible to retire with the options continuing to vest after retirement. If SYSCO had recognized compensation cost for such awards over
the period from the grant date to the date the employee first became eligible to retire with the options continuing to vest after
retirement for all periods presented, recognized compensation cost would have been $23,907,000 lower for fiscal 2006. There would be
no impact to recognized compensation cost for fiscal 2005 and 2004, as the company was accounting for stock compensation under
APB 25, under which no compensation expense was recognized for stock option grants.
The fair value of each option award is estimated as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. The weighted
average assumptions for the periods indicated are noted in the following table. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of
SYSCO’s stock, implied volatilities from traded options on SYSCO’s stock and other factors. SYSCO utilizes historical data to estimate
option exercise and employee termination behavior within the valuation model; separate groups of employees that have similar
historical exercise behavior are considered separately for valuation purposes. The risk-free rate for the expected term of the option is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The following weighted-average assumptions were used for each
fiscal year presented:
2006

Dividend yield ****************************************************** 1.40%
Expected volatility ***************************************************
23%
Risk-free interest rate ************************************************
3.9%
Expected life******************************************************* 5 years

2005

2004

1.45%
22%
3.4%
5 years

1.49%
22%
3.2%
5 years

The following summary presents information regarding outstanding options as of July 1, 2006 and changes during the fiscal year
then ended with regard to options under all stock option plans:
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price Per Share

Weighted Average
Remaining
Contractual Term
(in years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding at July 2, 2005 *********************** 65,963,380
Granted ************************************** 4,859,000
Exercised ************************************* (4,004,355)
Forfeited ************************************** (1,009,865)
Expired ***************************************
(291,491)
Outstanding at July 1, 2006 *********************** 65,516,669

$27.82
32.99
20.73
29.42
30.10
$28.60

5.56

$168,690,000

Vested or expected to vest at July 1, 2006 ************

63,468,460

$28.49

5.54

$168,550,000

Exercisable at July 1, 2006 ************************

45,316,732

$27.23

5.35

$162,057,000

Shares
Under
Option

The total number of employee options granted was 4,826,500, 8,515,000 and 13,344,746 in fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. During fiscal 2006, 876,000 options were granted to 17 executive officers and 3,950,500 options were granted to
approximately 1,200 other key employees. During fiscal 2005, 2,763,000 options were granted to approximately 2,700 non-executive
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employees based on tenure,
approximately 1,700 other key
employees based on tenure,
approximately 2,000 other key

557,000 options were granted to 18 executive officers and 5,195,000 options were granted to
employees. During fiscal 2004, 2,482,000 options were granted to approximately 2,400 non-executive
821,000 options were granted to 17 executive officers and 10,041,746 options were granted to
employees.

The weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $7.83, $7.12 and $6.74,
respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, was $48,928,000, $81,220,000 and
$100,385,000, respectively.
Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan

SYSCO has an Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan which permits employees to invest in SYSCO common stock by means of periodic
payroll deductions at 85% of the closing price on the last business day of each calendar quarter. The total number of shares which may
be sold pursuant to the plan may not exceed 68,000,000 shares, of which 4,894,348 remained available at July 1, 2006.
During fiscal 2006, 1,840,764 shares of SYSCO common stock were purchased by the participants as compared to 1,712,244 shares
purchased in fiscal 2005 and 1,620,535 shares purchased in fiscal 2004. In July 2006, 475,488 shares were purchased by participants.
The weighted average fair value of employee stock purchase rights issued pursuant to the Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan was
$4.88, $5.19 and $5.17 per share during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The fair value of the stock purchase rights was
calculated as the difference between the stock price at date of issuance and the employee purchase price.
Management Incentive Compensation

In November 2005, SYSCO adopted the 2005 Management Incentive Plan. The first bonus under the 2005 Plan will be earned
during fiscal 2007 (at which time no further bonuses will be earned under the 2000 Management Incentive Plan) and paid in the
following fiscal year.
SYSCO’s Management Incentive Plans compensate key management personnel for specific performance achievements. The
bonuses earned and expensed under these plans were $23,235,000 in fiscal 2006, $50,505,000 in fiscal 2005 and $77,494,000 in fiscal
2004; these amounts were paid in the following fiscal year in both cash and stock or deferred for payment in future years at the
election of each participant. The stock awards under these plans immediately vest upon issuance; however, participants are restricted
from selling, transferring, giving or otherwise conveying the shares for a period of two years from the date of issuance of such shares.
The fair value of the stock issued under the Management Incentive Plans is based on the stock price less a 12% discount for postvesting restrictions. The discount for post-vesting restrictions is estimated based on restricted stock studies and by calculating the cost
of a hypothetical protective put option over the restriction period. There were 180, 174 and 174 participants in the plan in fiscal 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Participants in the Management Incentive Plan also have the option to defer portions of their salary and
bonuses pursuant to the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan.
A total of 617,637 shares, 1,001,624 shares and 940,843 shares at a fair value of $36.25, $34.80 and $29.55 were issued pursuant
to this plan in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, for bonuses earned in the preceding fiscal years. As of July 1, 2006, there were
4,000,000 remaining shares that may be issued under the Management Incentive Plans. In August 2006, 323,822 shares were issued in
payment of the portion of the bonuses earned in fiscal 2006 elected to be received in stock.
Non-Employee Director Stock Grants

Each newly elected director is granted a one-time retainer award of 6,000 shares of SYSCO common stock under the 2005 NonEmployee Directors Stock Plan. These shares vest one-third every year over a three-year period. In addition, there are one-time retainer
awards outstanding under the Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan, which was replaced by the 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan.
The total amount of unvested shares related to the one-time retainer awards as of July 1, 2006, July 2, 2005 and July 3, 2004 was not
significant.
The 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan provides for the issuance of restricted stock. During fiscal 2006, 27,000 shares of
restricted stock were granted to non-employee directors. These shares will vest ratably over a three-year period.
Non-employee directors may also elect to receive up to 50% of their annual directors’ fees in SYSCO common stock. As a result of
such elections, a total of 12,907, 11,836 and 11,640 shares with a weighted-average grant date fair value of $33.63, $35.38 and
$30.82 per share were issued in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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All Share-Based Payment Arrangements

The total share-based compensation cost that has been recognized in results of operations was $126,837,000, $19,749,000 and
$34,857,000 for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and is included within the line item ‘‘Operating expenses’’ within the
Consolidated Results of Operations. The total income tax benefit recognized in results of operations for share-based compensation
arrangements was $15,607,000, $8,597,000 and $13,385,000 for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
As of July 1, 2006, there was $112,111,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to share-based compensation
arrangements. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.72 years.
Cash received from option exercises was $93,337,000, $124,701,000 and $104,791,000 during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option exercises totaled $12,507,000, $20,887,000 and
$20,551,000 during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Pro Forma Net Earnings

The following table provides pro forma net earnings and earnings per share had SYSCO applied the fair value method of SFAS 123
for fiscal 2005 and 2004:
2004
(53 Weeks)

2005

Net earnings:
Reported net earnings********************************************** $961,457,000
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported earnings,
net of related tax effects(1) ***************************************
11,152,000
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair
value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects **************
(98,815,000)
Pro forma net earnings ********************************************* $873,794,000
Basic earnings per share:
Reported basic earnings per share ************************************
Pro forma basic earnings per share ************************************
Diluted earnings per share:
Reported diluted earnings per share ***********************************
Pro forma diluted earnings per share***********************************
(1)

$907,214,000
21,472,000
(106,747,000)
$821,939,000

$

1.51
1.37

$

1.41
1.28

$

1.47
1.36

$

1.37
1.26

Amounts represent the after-tax compensation costs for stock grants.

The pro forma presentation includes only options granted after 1995. The pro forma effects for the periods presented are not
necessarily indicative of the pro forma effects in future years.
14. INCOME TAXES
The income tax provision for each fiscal year consists of the following:
2006

United States federal income taxes ************************* $486,642,000
State, local and foreign income taxes ***********************
62,264,000
Total ************************************************ $548,906,000

2005

2004
(53 Weeks)

$485,499,000
78,480,000
$563,979,000

$473,757,000
94,173,000
$567,930,000

Included in the income taxes charged to earnings are net deferred tax provisions of $533,108,000, $554,850,000, and $608,152,000
in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The deferred tax provisions result from the effects of net changes during the year in
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. In addition to the deferred tax provision, changes in the deferred tax
liability balances in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 were also impacted by the reclassification of deferred supply chain distributions from
current deferred tax liabilities to accrued income taxes based on the timing of when payments related to these items become payable.
These reclassifications were $497,830,000 and $473,970,000 in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. Deferred supply chain distributions
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are classified as current or deferred tax liabilities based on when the related income tax payments will become payable. The net cash
flow impact of supply chain distribution deferrals in fiscal 2006 was incrementally positive when compared to what would have been
paid on an annual basis without the deferral, due to increased volume through the Baugh Supply Chain Cooperative.
Significant components of SYSCO’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
July 1, 2006

Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred supply chain distributions********************************** $ 924,902,000
Excess tax depreciation and basis differences of assets ******************
383,636,000
Pension ******************************************************
58,406,000
Other********************************************************
7,987,000
Total deferred tax liabilities ************************************* 1,374,931,000
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating tax loss carryforwards ********************************
112,593,000
Deferred compensation ******************************************
45,878,000
Casualty insurance**********************************************
35,254,000
Receivables ***************************************************
25,208,000
Inventory *****************************************************
22,549,000
Other********************************************************
37,251,000
Total deferred tax assets ***************************************
278,733,000
Valuation allowances ********************************************
80,851,000
Total net deferred tax liabilities ************************************** $1,177,049,000

July 2, 2005

$ 856,741,000
398,690,000
59,836,000
13,864,000
1,329,131,000
83,609,000
40,640,000
33,246,000
25,081,000
32,856,000
31,766,000
247,198,000
77,334,000
$1,159,267,000

The amount of taxes paid in fiscal 2004 was reduced by $70,615,000 as the result of the utilization of a U.S. federal net operating
loss carryforward. This net operating loss carryforward was generated in fiscal 2003 primarily as a result of the deferral of supply chain
distributions.
Also impacting the amount of taxes paid in each year is the amount of deductible pension contributions made in each year.
Pension contributions were substantially lower in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 and 2004. The company expects that its
pension contributions in fiscal 2007 will be approximately $90,000,000.
The company had state and Canadian net operating losses at July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005, respectively. The net operating losses
outstanding at July 1, 2006 expire in fiscal years 2007 through 2026. A valuation allowance of $80,851,000 and $77,334,000 was
recorded as of July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005, respectively, as management believes that it is more likely than not that a portion of the
benefits of these state and Canadian tax loss carryforwards will not be realized.
Reconciliations of the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective income tax rates for each fiscal year are as follows:
2006

United States statutory federal income tax rate *********************************
State and local income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit *********************
Other *****************************************************************

2005

2004

35.00% 35.00% 35.00%
2.17
2.74
3.21
2.18
(0.77)
0.29
39.35% 36.97% 38.50%

SYSCO recorded a tax benefit of $12,228,000, or 10.4% of the $118,038,000, in incremental share-based compensation expense
recorded in fiscal 2006 as a result of the adoption of SFAS 123(R), causing an increase in the fiscal 2006 effective tax rate compared to
fiscal 2005. In addition, the comparison of the effective rate for fiscal 2006 with fiscal 2005 is affected by the adjustments to fiscal
2005 income tax expense. The income tax provision in fiscal 2005 included a tax benefit of $19,500,000 primarily related to the reversal
of a tax contingency accrual and to the reversal of valuation allowances previously recorded on certain state net operating loss
carryforwards.
SYSCO’s option grants include options which qualify as incentive stock options for income tax purposes. The treatment of the
potential tax deduction, if any, related to incentive stock options is the primary reason for the company’s increased effective tax rate in
fiscal 2006 and may cause variability in the company’s effective tax rate in future periods. In the period the compensation cost related
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to incentive stock options is recorded, a corresponding tax benefit is not recorded as it is assumed that the company will not receive a
tax deduction related to such incentive stock options. The company may be eligible for tax deductions in subsequent periods to the
extent that there is a disqualifying disposition of the incentive stock option. In such cases, the company would record a tax benefit
related to the tax deduction in an amount not to exceed the corresponding cumulative compensation cost recorded in the financial
statements on the particular options multiplied by the statutory tax rate.
In evaluating the exposures connected with the various tax filing positions, the company establishes an accrual when, despite
management’s belief that the company’s tax return positions are supportable, management believes that certain positions may be
successfully challenged and a loss is probable. When facts and circumstances change, these accruals are adjusted.
The company intends to permanently reinvest the undistributed earnings of its Canadian subsidiaries in those businesses outside
of the United States and, therefore, has not provided for U.S. deferred income taxes on such undistributed foreign earnings. The
determination of the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liability related to the undistributed earnings is not practicable.
The determination of the company’s provision for income taxes requires significant judgment, the use of estimates and the
interpretation and application of complex tax laws. The company’s provision for income taxes reflects a combination of income earned
and taxed in the various U.S. federal and state, as well as Canadian federal and provincial jurisdictions. Jurisdictional tax law changes,
increases or decreases in permanent differences between book and tax items, accruals or adjustments of accruals for tax contingencies
or valuation allowances, and the company’s change in the mix of earnings from these taxing jurisdictions all affect the overall effective
tax rate.
As of July 1, 2006, the company’s 2003 and 2004 federal income tax returns were under audit by the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS). The company believes that it has appropriate support for the positions taken on these tax returns and has recorded a liability of
approximately $10,000,000 for its best estimate of the probable loss on certain of these positions. However, if the IRS disagrees with
the positions taken by the company on its tax returns, SYSCO could have additional tax liability, including interest and penalties.
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15. ACQUISITIONS
During fiscal 2006, SYSCO acquired for cash one broadline foodservice operation, one custom meat-cutting operation and five
specialty produce distributors. During fiscal 2005, SYSCO acquired for cash one broadline foodservice operation, four custom meatcutting operations, and two specialty produce distributors. During fiscal 2004, SYSCO acquired for cash certain assets of two broadline
foodservice operations, a specialty produce distributor, and one quickservice operation. The acquisitions were immaterial, individually
and in the aggregate, to the consolidated financial statements.
During fiscal 2006, in the aggregate, the company paid cash of $114,378,000 and issued 161,549 shares with a value of
$3,055,000 for acquisitions during fiscal 2006 and for contingent consideration related to operations acquired in previous fiscal years. In
addition, escrowed funds related to certain acquisitions in the amount of $800,000 were released to sellers during fiscal 2006.
Certain acquisitions involve contingent consideration typically payable only in the event that certain operating results are attained
or certain outstanding contingencies are resolved. Aggregate contingent consideration amounts outstanding as of July 1, 2006 included
$147,572,000 in cash, which, if distributed, could result in the recording of additional goodwill. Such amounts typically are to be paid
out over periods of up to five years from the date of acquisition.
16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SYSCO has committed with a third party service provider to provide hardware and hardware hosting services. The services are to
be provided over a ten year period beginning in fiscal 2005 and ending in fiscal 2015. The total cost of the services over that period is
expected to be approximately $300,000,000. This amount may be reduced by SYSCO utilizing less than estimated resources and can be
increased by SYSCO utilizing more than estimated resources and the adjustments for inflation provided for in the agreements. SYSCO
may also cancel a portion or all of the services provided beginning in fiscal 2007 subject to termination fees which decrease over time.
Although it does not expect to, if SYSCO were to terminate all of the services in fiscal 2007, the estimated termination fee incurred in
fiscal 2007 would be approximately $8,300,000. SYSCO believes that these agreements will provide a more secure and reliable
environment for its data processing as well as reduce overall operating costs over the ten year period.
SYSCO is engaged in various legal proceedings which have arisen but have not been fully adjudicated. These proceedings, in the
opinion of management, will not have a material adverse effect upon the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the
company when ultimately concluded.
17. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION
The company has aggregated its operating companies into a number of segments, of which only Broadline and SYGMA are
reportable segments as defined in SFAS No. 131. Broadline operating companies distribute a full line of food products and a wide
variety of non-food products to both traditional and chain restaurant customers. SYGMA operating companies distribute a full line of
food products and a wide variety of non-food products to certain chain restaurant customer locations. ‘‘Other’’ financial information is
attributable to the company’s other segments, including the company’s specialty produce, custom-cut meat and lodging industry
products segments.
The accounting policies for the segments are the same as those disclosed by SYSCO. Intersegment sales represent specialty
produce and meat company products distributed by the Broadline and SYGMA operating companies. The segment results include
allocation of centrally incurred costs for shared services that eliminate upon consolidation. Centrally incurred costs are allocated based
upon the relative level of service used by each operating company.
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The following table sets forth the financial information for SYSCO’s business segments:
Fiscal Year
2006

2004
(53 Weeks)

2005
(In thousands)

Sales:
Broadline ********************************************* $25,678,728
SYGMA **********************************************
4,338,877
Other ************************************************
3,011,984
Intersegment sales **************************************
(401,151)
Total************************************************* $32,628,438

$24,266,978
3,916,255
2,440,088
(341,407)
$30,281,914

$23,852,420
3,548,693
2,250,227
(315,937)
$29,335,403

Earnings before income taxes:
Broadline ********************************************* $ 1,545,269
SYGMA **********************************************
8,097
Other ************************************************
110,613
Total segments *****************************************
1,663,979
Unallocated corporate expenses ****************************
(269,033)
Total************************************************* $ 1,394,946

$ 1,516,017
18,143
86,028
1,620,188
(94,752)
$ 1,525,436

$ 1,443,640
25,231
76,996
1,545,867
(70,723)
$ 1,475,144

237,970
20,836
20,394
279,200
37,543
316,743

$

270,995
51,840
23,919
346,754
43,449
390,203

$

Depreciation and amortization:
Broadline ********************************************* $
SYGMA **********************************************
Other ************************************************
Total segments *****************************************
Corporate *********************************************
Total************************************************* $

237,271
26,955
26,334
290,560
54,502
345,062

$

Capital expenditures:
Broadline *********************************************
SYGMA **********************************************
Other ************************************************
Total segments *****************************************
Corporate *********************************************
Total*************************************************

336,008
63,213
55,600
454,821
59,930
514,751

$

$

$

Assets:
Broadline ********************************************* $ 5,242,561
SYGMA **********************************************
389,771
Other ************************************************
807,230
Total segments *****************************************
6,439,562
Corporate *********************************************
2,552,463
Total************************************************* $ 8,992,025

$

$

$ 4,885,175
301,729
636,549
5,823,453
2,444,449
$ 8,267,902

$

$

222,695
18,684
17,702
259,081
24,514
283,595
353,362
24,475
22,794
400,631
129,455
530,086

$ 4,826,535
240,418
554,335
5,621,288
2,226,344
$ 7,847,632

The company does not allocate share-based compensation related to stock option grants, issuances of stock pursuant to the
Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan and stock grants to non-employee directors and corporate officers. The increase in unallocated
corporate expenses in fiscal 2006 over fiscal 2005 is primarily attributable to these items. See further discussion of Share-Based
Compensation in Note 13.
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The sales mix for the principal product categories for each fiscal year is as follows:
2004
(53 Weeks)

2006

2005
(In thousands)

Fresh and frozen meats*************************************
Canned and dry products ***********************************
Frozen fruits, vegetables, bakery and other **********************
Poultry *************************************************
Dairy products *******************************************
Fresh produce********************************************
Paper and disposables *************************************
Seafood ************************************************
Beverage products ****************************************
Equipment and smallwares **********************************
Janitorial products ****************************************
Medical supplies *****************************************

$ 6,153,468
5,849,082
4,405,908
3,283,174
3,014,104
2,769,805
2,595,358
1,751,062
1,078,030
782,523
740,601
205,323

$ 5,732,834
5,417,418
4,104,170
3,222,927
2,878,904
2,459,295
2,353,104
1,591,022
962,039
681,653
670,105
208,443

$ 5,533,217
5,370,859
3,946,468
3,166,806
2,766,425
2,329,638
2,225,532
1,559,133
928,073
625,801
655,305
228,146

Total***************************************************

$32,628,438

$30,281,914

$29,335,403

Information concerning geographic areas is as follows:
Fiscal Year
2006

Sales:(1)
United States ****************************************** $29,866,956
Canada***********************************************
2,761,482

2004
(53 Weeks)

2005
(In thousands)

$27,850,921
2,430,993

$27,144,352
2,191,051

$32,628,438

$30,281,914

$29,335,403

Long-lived assets:(2)
United States ****************************************** $ 2,328,609
Canada***********************************************
136,291

$ 2,156,588
111,713

$ 2,073,404
93,405

$ 2,268,301

$ 2,166,809

Total*************************************************

Total*************************************************

$ 2,464,900

(1)

Represents sales from external customers from businesses operating in these countries.

(2)

Long-lived assets represents net property, plant and equipment reported in the country in which they are held.

18. SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION
SYSCO International, Co. is an unlimited liability company organized under the laws of the Province of Nova Scotia, Canada and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of SYSCO. In May 2002, SYSCO International, Co. issued, in a private offering, $200,000,000 of 6.10% notes
due in 2012 (see Note 8, Debt). In December 2002, these notes were exchanged for substantially identical notes in an exchange offer
registered under the Securities Act of 1933. These notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by SYSCO. SYSCO International, Co.
is a holding company with no significant sources of income or assets, other than its equity interests in its subsidiaries and interest
income from loans made to its subsidiaries. The proceeds from the issuance of the 6.10% notes were used to repay commercial paper
issued to fund the fiscal 2002 acquisition of a Canadian broadline foodservice operation.
The following condensed consolidating financial statements present separately the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the parent guarantor (SYSCO), the subsidiary issuer (SYSCO International) and all other non-guarantor subsidiaries of
SYSCO (Other Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries) on a combined basis and eliminating entries.
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SYSCO

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
July 1, 2006
SYSCO
Other Non-Guarantor
International
Subsidiaries
Eliminations
(In thousands)

Consolidated
Totals

Current assets ****************************** $ 162,177
Investment in subsidiaries ********************* 11,282,232
Plant and equipment, net**********************
174,020
Other assets *******************************
711,056
Total assets******************************** $12,329,485

$

35
317,812
—
—
$317,847

$ 4,237,482
125,433
2,290,880
1,416,375
$ 8,070,170

$
—
(11,725,477)
—
—
$(11,725,477)

$4,399,694
—
2,464,900
2,127,431
$8,992,025

Current liabilities **************************** $ 331,417
Intercompany payables (receivables)**************
7,207,923
Long-term debt *****************************
1,358,452
Other liabilities *****************************
487,858
Shareholders’ equity *************************
2,943,835
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity*********** $12,329,485

$ 1,022
38,308
224,247
—
54,270
$317,847

$ 2,893,964
(7,246,231)
44,428
598,353
11,779,656
$ 8,070,170

$

$3,226,403
—
1,627,127
1,086,211
3,052,284
$8,992,025

SYSCO

—
—
—
—
(11,725,477)
$(11,725,477)

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
July 2, 2005
SYSCO
Other Non-Guarantor
International
Subsidiaries
Eliminations
(In thousands)

Consolidated
Totals

Current assets ******************************
Investment in subsidiaries *********************
Plant and equipment, net**********************
Other assets *******************************
Total assets********************************

$

156,812
9,979,188
120,800
698,283
$10,955,083

$

32
283,033
—
—
$283,065

$ 3,844,942
164,218
2,147,501
1,299,532
$ 7,456,193

$
—
(10,426,439)
—
—
$(10,426,439)

$4,001,786
—
2,268,301
1,997,815
$8,267,902

Current liabilities ****************************
Intercompany payables (receivables)**************
Long-term debt *****************************
Other liabilities *****************************
Shareholders’ equity *************************
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity***********

$

$ 34,330
10,546
199,560
—
38,629
$283,065

$ 2,726,245
(6,352,852)
47,165
587,095
10,448,540
$ 7,456,193

$

$3,457,570
—
956,177
1,095,316
2,758,839
$8,267,902
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696,995
6,342,306
709,452
508,221
2,698,109
$10,955,083

—
—
—
—
(10,426,439)
$(10,426,439)

SYSCO

Sales ************************************** $
—
Cost of sales ********************************
—
Operating expenses ***************************
256,351
Interest expense (income)***********************
374,838
Other, net **********************************
(2,919)
Total costs and expenses ***********************
628,270
Earnings (losses) before income taxes and cumulative
effect of accounting change *******************
(628,270)
Income tax (benefit) provision********************
(181,070)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ***************** 1,293,240
Net earnings before cumulative effect of accounting
change***********************************
846,040
Cumulative effect of accounting change ************
9,285
Net earnings ******************************** $ 855,325

SYSCO

Sales ************************************** $
—
Cost of sales ********************************
—
Operating expenses ***************************
100,595
Interest expense (income)***********************
312,901
Other, net **********************************
(747)
Total costs and expenses ***********************
412,749
Earnings (loss) before income taxes ***************
(412,749)
Income tax (benefit) provision********************
(157,876)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ***************** 1,216,330
Net earnings (loss)**************************** $ 961,457

SYSCO

Sales ************************************** $
—
Cost of sales ********************************
—
Operating expenses ***************************
118,937
Interest expense (income)***********************
255,708
Other, net **********************************
(372)
Total costs and expenses ***********************
374,273
Earnings (loss) before income taxes ***************
(374,273)
Income tax (benefit) provision********************
(144,095)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries ***************** 1,137,392
Net earnings (loss)**************************** $ 907,214

Condensed Consolidating Results of Operations
Year Ended July 1, 2006
SYSCO
Other Non-Guarantor
International
Subsidiaries
Eliminations
(In thousands)

$

—
—
130
11,108
—
11,238

$32,628,438
26,337,107
4,539,820
(276,846)
(6,097)
30,593,984

(11,238)
(4,055)
6,063
(1,120)
—
$ (1,120)

$

—
—
—
—
—
—

$32,628,438
26,337,107
4,796,301
109,100
(9,016)
31,233,492

2,034,454
734,031
—

—
—
(1,299,303)

1,394,946
548,906
—

1,300,423
—
$ 1,300,423

(1,299,303)
—
$(1,299,303)

846,040
9,285
855,325

Condensed Consolidating Results of Operations
Year Ended July 2, 2005
SYSCO
Other Non-Guarantor
International
Subsidiaries
Eliminations
(In thousands)

$

—
—
115
11,510
—
11,625
(11,625)
(4,447)
6,500
$ (678)

$30,281,914
24,498,200
4,093,474
(249,411)
(10,159)
28,332,104
1,949,810
726,302
—
$ 1,223,508

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(1,222,830)
$(1,222,830)

Condensed Consolidating Results of Operations
Year Ended July 3, 2004
(53 Weeks)
SYSCO
Other Non-Guarantor
International
Subsidiaries
Eliminations
(In thousands)

$

—
—
109
13,923
(1,028)
13,004
(13,004)
(5,007)
5,267
$ (2,730)

Consolidated Totals

$29,335,403
23,661,514
4,022,184
(199,751)
(10,965)
27,472,982
1,862,421
717,032
—
$ 1,145,389

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(1,142,659)
$(1,142,659)

$

Consolidated Totals

$30,281,914
24,498,200
4,194,184
75,000
(10,906)
28,756,478
1,525,436
563,979
—
$ 961,457

Consolidated Totals

$29,335,403
23,661,514
4,141,230
69,880
(12,365)
27,860,259
1,475,144
567,930
—
$ 907,214
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SYSCO

Net cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities *****************************************
Investing activities ******************************************
Financing activities******************************************
Exchange rate on cash***************************************
Intercompany activity ****************************************
Net increase in cash ****************************************
Cash at the beginning of the period*****************************
Cash at the end of the period *********************************

$(285,100)
(72,197)
(490,457)
—
853,281
5,527
125,748
$ 131,275

SYSCO

Net cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities***************************************** $(223,358)
Investing activities *****************************************
36,865
Financing activities ***************************************** (739,429)
Exchange rate on cash **************************************
—
Intercompany activity ***************************************
964,163
Net increase (decrease) in cash *******************************
38,241
Cash at the beginning of the period ****************************
87,507
Cash at the end of the period ******************************** $ 125,748

SYSCO

Net cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities*****************************************
Investing activities *****************************************
Financing activities *****************************************
Exchange rate on cash **************************************
Intercompany activity ***************************************
Net (decrease) in cash **************************************
Cash at the beginning of the period ****************************
Cash at the end of the period ********************************
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$(170,238)
(193,274)
(598,631)
—
843,607
(118,536)
206,043
$ 87,507

Condensed Consolidating Cash Flows
Year Ended July 1, 2006
SYSCO
Other Non-Guarantor
International
Subsidiaries
(In thousands)

$(7,496)
—
(8,311)
—
15,807
—
—
$ —

$1,416,428
(536,474)
(5,849)
(325)
(869,088)
4,692
65,930
$ 70,622

Condensed Consolidating Cash Flows
Year Ended July 2, 2005
SYSCO
Other Non-Guarantor
International
Subsidiaries
(In thousands)

$ (6,958)
—
(40,772)
—
47,730
—
—
$
—

$ 1,422,476
(450,305)
(4,389)
(2,158)
(1,011,893)
(46,269)
112,199
$ 65,930

Condensed Consolidating Cash Flows
Year Ended July 3, 2004
(53 Weeks)
SYSCO
Other Non-Guarantor
International
Subsidiaries
(In thousands)

$ 24,676
—
(27,923)
—
2,733
(514)
514
$
—

$1,336,578
(490,537)
(16,791)
(1,601)
(846,340)
(18,691)
130,890
$ 112,199

Consolidated
Totals

$1,123,832
(608,671)
(504,617)
(325)
—
10,219
191,678
$ 201,897

Consolidated
Totals

$1,192,160
(413,440)
(784,590)
(2,158)
—
(8,028)
199,706
$ 191,678

Consolidated
Totals

$1,191,016
(683,811)
(643,345)
(1,601)
—
(137,741)
337,447
$ 199,706

19. QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)
Financial information for each quarter in the years ended July 1, 2006 and July 2, 2005 is set forth below:
Fiscal 2006 Quarter Ended
December 31
April 1
July 1
(In thousands except for share data)

October 1

Sales(1) ************************************ $8,010,484
Cost of sales(1) ****************************** 6,480,793
Operating expenses *************************** 1,176,656
Interest expense******************************
22,246
Other, net **********************************
(3,115)
Total costs and expenses *********************** 7,676,580
Earnings before income taxes and cumulative effect of
accounting change **************************
333,904
Income taxes ********************************
134,694
Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change
199,210
Cumulative effect of accounting change ************
9,285
Net earnings ******************************** $ 208,495
Per share:
Basic earnings before accounting change *********
Diluted earnings before accounting change ********
Basic net earnings **************************
Diluted net earnings*************************
Dividends declared **************************
Market price — high/low *********************

$

0.32
0.31
0.33
0.33
0.15
37-31

$7,971,061
6,434,753
1,171,469
29,227
(2,220)
7,633,229

$8,137,816
6,602,102
1,193,270
29,441
(819)
7,823,994

$8,509,077
6,819,459
1,254,906
28,186
(2,862)
8,099,689

$32,628,438
26,337,107
4,796,301
109,100
(9,016)
31,233,492

337,832
133,650
204,182
—
$ 204,182

313,822
125,283
188,839
—
$ 188,539

409,388
155,279
254,109
—
$ 254,109

1,394,946
548,906
846,040
9,285
$ 855,325

$

$

$

$

Sales ************************************** $7,531,925
Cost of sales ******************************** 6,094,931
Operating expenses *************************** 1,055,412
Interest expense******************************
17,699
Other, net **********************************
(1,969)
Total costs and expenses *********************** 7,166,073
Earnings before income taxes ********************
365,852
Income taxes ********************************
139,938
Net earnings ******************************** $ 225,914

(1)

$

0.33
0.33
0.33
0.33
0.17
34-30

0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.17
33-29

0.41
0.41
0.41
0.41
0.17
32-29

Fiscal 2005 Quarter Ended
January 1
April 2
July 2
(In thousands except for share data)

October 2

Per share:
Basic net earnings **************************
Diluted net earnings*************************
Dividends declared **************************
Market price — high/low *********************
Percentage increases (decreases) — 2006 vs. 2005:
Sales **************************************
Earnings before income taxes and cumulative effect of
accounting change **************************
Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change
Net earnings ********************************
Basic earnings before accounting change per share ***
Diluted earnings before accounting change per share **
Basic net earnings per share ********************
Diluted net earnings per share *******************

Fiscal Year

0.35
0.35
0.13
36-29
6%
(9)
(12)
(8)
(9)
(11)
(6)
(6)

1.36
1.35
1.38
1.36
0.66
37-29
Fiscal Year

$7,331,257
5,933,515
1,004,919
17,766
(1,693)
6,954,507
376,750
144,107
$ 232,643

$7,437,453
6,032,165
1,052,477
20,151
(2,919)
7,101,874
335,579
117,359
$ 218,220

$7,981,279
6,437,589
1,081,376
19,384
(4,325)
7,534,024
447,255
162,575
$ 284,680

$30,281,914
24,498,200
4,194,184
75,000
(10,906)
28,756,478
1,525,436
563,979
$ 961,457

$

$

$

$

0.36
0.36
0.15
38-30
9%
(10)
(12)
(12)
(8)
(8)
(8)
(8)

0.34
0.34
0.15
38-33
9%
(6)
(14)
(14)
(12)
(12)
(12)
(12)

0.45
0.44
0.15
38-34
7%
(8)
(11)
(11)
(9)
(7)
(9)
(7)

1.51
1.47
0.58
38-29
8%
(9)
(12)
(11)
(10)
(8)
(9)
(7)

Includes adoption of EITF 04-13 as of the beginning of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. See Note 3, Changes in Accounting.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
The company’s management, with the participation of the company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated
the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of July 1, 2006. The term ‘‘disclosure controls and
procedures,’’ as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means controls and other procedures of a company
that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the
company’s management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding the required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of the company’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of July 1, 2006, the company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of such
date, the company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
No change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended July 1, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting. See Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
included under Item 8.
Item 9B. Other Information
In a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 15, 2006, the company reported that
the Compensation Committee of its Board of Directors had approved forms of the (1) Fiscal Year 2007 Supplemental Bonus Agreement
under the 2006 Supplemental Performance Based Bonus Plan and (2) Fiscal Year 2007 Bonus Award under the 2005 Management
Incentive Plan to be entered into by the company and each of the Named Executive Officers, which agreements were expected to be
entered into no later than June 30, 2006. The forms of agreements are filed as exhibits with this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
agreements were actually entered into by the company and each of the Named Executive Officers effective June 30, 2006.

PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
The information required by this item is included in our proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the
following captions, and is incorporated herein by reference thereto: ‘‘Election of Directors,’’ ‘‘Executive Officers,’’ ‘‘Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,’’ ‘‘Report of the Audit Committee’’ and ‘‘Corporate Governance.’’
Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item is included in our proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the
following captions, and is incorporated herein by reference thereto: ‘‘Director Compensation’’ and ‘‘Executive Compensation.’’
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this item is included in our proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the
following captions, and is incorporated herein by reference thereto: ‘‘Stock Ownership’’ and ‘‘Equity Compensation Plan Information.’’
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The information required by this item is included in our proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the
following caption, and is incorporated herein by reference thereto: ‘‘Certain Relationships.’’
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information required by this item is included in our proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the
following caption, and is incorporated herein by reference thereto: ‘‘Fees Paid to Independent Public Accountants.’’

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed, or incorporated by reference, as part of this Form 10-K:
1. All financial statements. See index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 31 of this Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedule. See page S-1 of this Form 10-K.
Exhibits.
3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5
4.6

4.7

— Restated Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(a) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 28,
1997 (File No. 1-6544).
— Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation increasing authorized shares, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3(d) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 1, 2000 (File No. 1-6544).
— Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation increasing authorized shares, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3(e) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 27, 2003 (File No. 1-6544).
— Form of Amended Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(c) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 29, 1996 (File No. 1-6544).
— Amended and Restated Bylaws of Sysco Corporation dated February 8, 2002, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(b) to
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 29, 2001 (File No. 1-6544).
— Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of June 15, 1995, between Sysco Corporation and First Union National Bank of North
Carolina, Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed June 6, 1995 (File
No. 33-60023).
— Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 1996, between Sysco Corporation and First Union National Bank of
North Carolina, Trustee as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(f) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 29,
1996 (File No. 1-6544).
— Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 25, 1997, between Sysco Corporation and First Union National Bank of
North Carolina, Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(g) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 28, 1997 (File
No. 1-6544).
— Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 25, 1997, between Sysco Corporation and First Union National Bank of
North Carolina, Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(h) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 28,1997 (File
No. 1-6544).
— Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 27, 1998 between Sysco Corporation and First Union National Bank,
Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(h) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 27, 1998 (File No. 1-6544).
— Sixth Supplemental Indenture, including form of Note, dated April 5, 2002 between Sysco Corporation and Wachovia
Bank, National Association (formerly First Union National Bank of North Carolina), as Trustee, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K dated April 5, 2002 (File No. 1-6544).
— Seventh Supplemental Indenture, including form of Note, dated March 5, 2004 between Sysco Corporation, as Issuer,
and Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly First Union National Bank of North Carolina), as Trustee, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4(j) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 27, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
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4.8

4.9

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4
10.5
10.6†
10.7†

10.8†

10.9†
10.10†
10.11†
10.12†

10.13†

10.14†

10.15†

10.16†
10.17†
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— Eighth Supplemental Indenture, including form of Note, dated September 22, 2005 between Sysco Corporation, as Issuer,
and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 and 4.2 to Form 8-K filed
on September 20, 2005 (File No. 1-6544).
— Indenture dated May 23, 2002 between Sysco International, Co., Sysco Corporation and Wachovia Bank, National
Association, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed August 21, 2002 (File
No. 333-98489).
— Credit Agreement dated November 4, 2005 between Sysco Corporation, Sysco International, Co., JP Morgan Chase Bank,
N.A., and certain Lenders party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on November 10, 2005
(File No. 1-6544).
— Commitment Increase Agreement dated March 31, 2006 by and among Sysco Corporation, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
individually and as Administrative Agent, the Co-Syndication Agents named therein and the other financial institutions
party thereto relating to the Credit Agreement dated September 13, 2002, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to
Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
— Amended and Restated Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement, dated as of April 13, 2006, between Sysco Corporation
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on April 19,
2006 (File No. 1-6544).
— Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement, dated as of April 13, 2006, between Sysco Corporation and J.P. Morgan Securities
Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on April 19, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
— Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement, dated as of April 13, 2006, between Sysco Corporation and Goldman, Sachs & Co.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed on April 19, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
— Second Amended and Restated Executive Deferred Compensation Plan dated April 1, 2002, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(cc) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 29, 2002 filed on September 25, 2002 (File No. 1-6544).
— First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Executive Deferred Compensation Plan dated July 12, 2002,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(dd) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 29, 2002 filed on September 25, 2002
(File No. 1-6544).
— Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Executive Deferred Compensation Plan effective July 9, 2004,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(gg) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16, 2004
(File No. 1-6544).
— Third Amended and Restated Sysco Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(d) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 filed on February 9, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
— First Amendment to the Third Amended and Restated Sysco Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on September 13, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
— Fifth Amended and Restated Sysco Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(b) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 28, 1997 (File No. 1-6544).
— First Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Sysco Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated
effective June 29, 1997, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(p) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 1, 2000
(File No. 1-6544).
— Second Amendment dated as of May 10, 2000, to the Fifth Amended and Restated Sysco Corporation Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2000 filed on November 13, 2000 (File No. 1-6544).
— Third Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated July 12, 2002,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(ee) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 29, 2002 filed on September 25, 2002
(File No. 1-6544).
— Fourth Amendment to Fifth Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan effective July 9, 2004,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(hh) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16, 2004
(File No. 1-6544).
— Sixth Amended and Restated Sysco Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(c) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 filed on February 9, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
— First Amendment to the Sixth Amended and Restated Sysco Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 1, 2006 filed on May 11, 2006 (File
No. 1-6544).

10.18† — Second Amendment to the Sixth Amended and Restated Sysco Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on September 13, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
10.19† — Sysco Corporation 1991 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(e) to Form 10-K for the year ended
July 3, 1999 (File No. 1-6544).
10.20† — Amendments to Sysco Corporation 1991 Stock Option Plan dated effective September 4, 1997, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10(f) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 28, 1997 (File No. 1-6544).
10.21† — Amendments to Sysco Corporation 1991 Stock Option Plan dated effective November 5, 1998, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10(g) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 1999 (File No. 1-6544).
10.22† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on August 31, 1995 under the 1991 Stock Option
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(pp) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16,
2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.23† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 5, 1996 under the 1991 Stock Option
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(qq) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16,
2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.24† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 4, 1997 under the 1991 Stock Option
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(rr) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16, 2004
(File No. 1-6544).
10.25† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 3, 1998 under the 1991 Stock Option
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(ss) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16,
2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.26† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 2, 1999 under the 1991 Stock Option
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(tt) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16, 2004
(File No. 1-6544).
10.27† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 7, 2000 under the 1991 Stock Option
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(uu) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16,
2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.28† — 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Appendix B to Proxy Statement filed on September 25, 2000 (File
No. 1-6544).
10.29† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 11, 2001 under the 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(vv) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on
September 16, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.30† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 11, 2001 under the 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(ww) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on
September 16, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.31† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 12, 2002 under the 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(xx) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on
September 16, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.32† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 11, 2003 under the 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(yy) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on
September 16, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.33† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Form 8-K filed on September 9, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.34† — 2004 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Sysco Corporation Proxy Statement filed
September 24, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.35† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to executive officers on September 8, 2005 under the 2004 Stock Option
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on September 14, 2005 (File No. 1-6544).
10.36† — 2004 Long-Term Incentive Cash Plan dated September 3, 2004, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Form 8-K
filed on September 10, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.37† — Form of Performance Unit Grant Agreement issued to executive officers effective September 3, 2004 under the Long-Term
Incentive Cash Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to Form 8-K filed on September 10, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
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10.38†# — Form of Performance Unit Grant Agreement issued to executive officers effective September 8, 2005 under the Long-Term
Incentive Cash Plan.
10.39† — Form of Performance Unit Grant Agreement issued to executive officers effective September 7, 2006 under the Long-Term
Incentive Cash Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed on September 13, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
10.40† — 2000 Management Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Appendix A to Proxy Statement filed September 25, 2000
(File No. 1-6544).
10.41† — Form of 2006 Management Incentive Bonus Agreement issued to Richard J. Schnieders, John K. Stubblefield, Jr., Larry J.
Accardi, Kenneth F. Spitler, Kenneth J. Carrig and Larry G. Pulliam under the 2000 Management Incentive Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(vv) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 2, 2005 filed on September 15, 2005 (File
No. 1-6544).
10.42† — Form of 2006 Management Incentive Bonus Grant Agreement issued to Senior Vice Presidents of Operations under the
2000 Management Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(yy) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 2,
2005 filed on September 15, 2005 (File No. 1-6544).
10.43† — 2005 Management Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex B to the Sysco Corporation Proxy Statement for
the November 11, 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (File No. 1-6544).
10.44†# — Form of Fiscal Year 2007 Bonus Award for the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice Presidents
and Senior Vice Presidents under the 2005 Management Incentive Plan.
10.45†# — Form of Fiscal Year 2007 Bonus Award for Senior Vice Presidents of Operations under the 2005 Management Incentive
Plan.
10.46† — Supplemental Performance Based Bonus Plan dated November 11, 2004, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 1, 2005 filed on February 10, 2005 (File No. 1-6544).
10.47† — Form of CEO Supplemental Performance-Based Bonus Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended April 2, 2005 filed on May 12, 2005 (File No. 1-6544).
10.48† — Form of Chief Executive Officer 2006 Supplemental Performance-Based Bonus Agreement, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(h) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 filed on February 9, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
10.49†# — 2006 Supplemental Performance Bonus plan dated June 9, 2006.
10.50†# — Form of Fiscal Year 2007 Chief Executive Officer Supplemental Bonus Agreement under the 2006 Supplemental
Performance Based Bonus Plan.
10.51†# — Form of Fiscal Year 2007 Supplemental Bonus Agreement for Executive Vice Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents and
Senior Vice Presidents of Operations under the 2006 Supplemental Performance Based Bonus Plan.
10.52† — Executive Severance Agreement dated July 6, 2004 between Sysco Corporation and Richard J. Schnieders, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10(ii) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.53† — Form of Executive Severance Agreement between Sysco Corporation and each of John K. Stubblefield, Jr. (dated July 6,
2004), Kenneth F. Spitler (dated July 14, 2004) and Larry J. Accardi (dated August 18, 2004), incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(jj) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.54† — Form of First Amendment dated September 3, 2004 to Executive Severance Agreement between Sysco Corporation and
each of Richard J. Schnieders, John K Stubblefield, Jr., Kenneth F. Spitler and Larry J. Accardi, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10(kk) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 2004 filed on September 16, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
10.55†# — Description of Compensation Arrangements with Named Executive Officers.
10.56† — Sysco Corporation Amended and Restated Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(g) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 28, 1997 (File No. 1-6544).
10.57† — Amendment to the Amended and Restated Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan dated effective November 5, 1998,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(i) to Form 10-K for the year ended July 3, 1999 (File No. 1-6544).
10.58† — Sysco Corporation Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan, incorporated by reference to Appendix A of the 1998 Proxy
Statement (File No. 1-6544).
10.59† — Amended and Restated Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan, incorporated by reference to Appendix B to Proxy Statement
filed on September 24, 2001 (File No. 1-6544).
10.60† — Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement issued to non-employee directors on September 3, 2004 under the Non-Employee
Directors Stock Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to Form 8-K field on September 9, 2004 (File No. 1-6544).
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10.61† — Form of Retainer Stock Agreement for issuance to Non-Employee Directors under the Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 1, 2005 filed on February 10, 2005
(File No. 1-6544).
10.62† — 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex C to the Sysco Corporation Proxy
Statement for the November 11, 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (File No. 1-6544).
10.63† — Form of Option Grant Agreement under the 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(i) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 filed on February 9, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
10.64† — Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement under the 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10(j) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 filed on February 9, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
10.65† — Second Amended and Restated Board of Directors Deferred Compensation Plan dated April 1, 2002, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(aa) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 29, 2002 filed on September 25, 2002 (File No. 1-6544).
10.66† — First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Board of Directors Deferred Compensation Plan dated July 12, 2002,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(bb) to Form 10-K for the year ended June 29, 2002 filed on September 25, 2002
(File No. 1-6544).
10.67† — Second Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Sysco Corporation Board of Directors Deferred Compensation
Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(k) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 filed on
February 9, 2006 (File No. 1-6544).
10.68† — 2005 Sysco Corporation Board of Directors Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(e) to
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 filed on February 9, 2006 (File No. 1-6544) .
10.69†# — Description of Compensation Arrangements with Non-Employee Directors.
21.1#

— Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1#
31.1#
31.2#
32.1#
32.2#

— Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
— CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
— CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
— CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
— CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

† Executive Compensation Arrangement pursuant to 601(b)(10)(iii)(A) of Regulation S-K
# Filed Herewith
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Sysco Corporation has duly caused this
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 14th day of September, 2006.

SYSCO CORPORATION

By

/s/

RICHARD J. SCHNIEDERS
Richard J. Schnieders
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities indicated and on the date indicated above.
PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE, FINANCIAL & ACCOUNTING OFFICERS:
/s/

/s/

RICHARD J. SCHNIEDERS
Richard J. Schnieders

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President
(principal executive officer)

JOHN K. STUBBLEFIELD, JR.
John K. Stubblefield, Jr.

Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

/s/

G. MITCHELL ELMER
G. Mitchell Elmer

Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
(principal accounting officer)

DIRECTORS:
/s/

/s/

JUDITH B. CRAVEN
Judith B. Craven

/s/

JONATHAN GOLDEN
Jonathan Golden

/s/
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JOHN M. CASSADAY
John M. Cassaday

JOSEPH A. HAFNER, JR.
Joseph A. Hafner, Jr.

/s/

RICHARD G. MERRILL
Richard G. Merrill

/s/

NANCY S. NEWCOMB
Nancy S. Newcomb

/s/

RICHARD J. SCHNIEDERS
Richard J. Schnieders

/s/

/s/

PHYLLIS S. SEWELL
Phyllis S. Sewell

JOHN K. STUBBLEFIELD, JR.
John K. Stubblefield, Jr.

/s/

RICHARD G. TILGHMAN
Richard G. Tilghman

/s/

JACKIE M. WARD
Jackie M. Ward

SYSCO CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Description

For year ended July 3, 2004 ********** Allowance
for doubtful
accounts
For year ended July 2, 2005 ********** Allowance
for doubtful
accounts
For year ended July 1, 2006 ********** Allowance
for doubtful
accounts

Balance at
Beginning of
Period

Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

Charged to
Other Accounts
Describe(1)

Deductions
Describe(2)

Balance at
End of Period

$35,005,000

$27,392,000

$ 263,000

$28,485,000

$34,175,000

$34,175,000

$17,959,000

$(1,690,000) $20,840,000

$29,604,000

$29,604,000

$19,895,000

$ 729,000

$29,100,000

(1)

Allowance accounts resulting from acquisitions and other adjustments.

(2)

Customer accounts written off, net of recoveries.

S-1

$21,128,000

GENERAL INFORMATION

Cover photo: from top, clockwise:
Renee DuHame, Marketing Associate,
Sysco Food Services of Detroit;
Ernest O’Quin, O’Quin’s Shrimp
House, Detroit, Michigan; and
Jeff Stefani, Culinary Manager,
Sysco Food Services of Detroit.

CORPORATE OFFICES

COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

SYSCO Corporation
1390 Enclave Parkway
Houston, Texas 77077-2099
(281) 584-1390
Internet: http://www.sysco.com

SYSCO’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol “SYY.”

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETING

The Houstonian Hotel
111 North Post Oak Lane
Houston, Texas 77024
November 10, 2006 at 10:00 a.m.
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Ernst & Young LLP
Houston, Texas
TRANSFER AGENT
AND REGISTRAR

SYSCO is the global leader in selling, marketing and distributing food products to restaurants,

American Stock Transfer
& Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane
Plaza Level
New York, NY 10038
1-888-CALLSYY (1-888-225-5799)
Internet: http.//www.amstock.com

healthcare and educational facilities, lodging establishments and other customers who prepare
meals away from home. Its family of products also includes equipment and supplies for the
foodservice and hospitality industries. With industry dynamics constantly changing, SYSCO is
continually reinvesting in its business to nourish customer satisfaction and shareholder value.

INVESTOR CONTACT

Percent Change

July 1, 2006

July 2, 2005

July 3, 2004
(53 Weeks)

2006-05

2005-04

$ 32,628,438

$ 30,281,914

$ 29,335,403

8%

3%

1,394,946

1,525,436

1,475,144

(9)

3

Earnings before cumulative effect
of accounting change (2)

846,040

961,457

907,214

(12)

6

Net earnings (1) (2)

855,325

961,457

907,214

(11)

6

Diluted earnings per share before
cumulative effect of accounting change (2)

1.35

1.47

1.37

(8)

7

Diluted earnings per share (2)

1.36

1.47

1.37

(7)

7

Dividends declared per share

0.66

0.58

0.50

14

16

Shareholders’ equity per share (2)

4.93

4.39

4.03

12

9

530,086

32

(26)

(5)

(4)

(Dollars in thousands, except for share data)

Sales
Earnings before income taxes and
cumulative effect of accounting change (2)

$

Capital expenditures
Return on average shareholders’ equity

(2)

514,751
30%

$

390,203

$

35%

39%

628,800,647

653,157,117

661,919,234

(4)

(1)

16,479,800

16,790,200

16,454,300

(2)

2

Number of employees

49,600

47,500

47,800

4

(1)

Number of shareholders of record

14,282

15,083

15,337

(5)

(2)

Diluted average shares outstanding
Number of shares repurchased

(1)
(2)

Fiscal 2006 net earnings reflect an increase to earnings of $9,285,000 for a change in accounting.
Fiscal 2006 results include $105,810,000, net of tax, in incremental share-based compensation cost as a result
of adopting FASB Statement No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” Prior period results have not been restated.

Designed and produced by Mentus, San Diego, California. www.mentus.com

Fiscal Year Ended

Photography by MarkRobertHalper.com

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Mr. John M. Palizza
Assistant Treasurer
(281) 584-1308
MEDIA CONTACT

Ms. Toni R. Spigelmyer
Director, Media Relations
(281) 584-1458

Certifications: The most recent
certifications by the Company's
chief executive officer and chief
financial officer pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 are filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission as
exhibits to the Company's Form
10-K. The Company has also filed
with the New York Stock Exchange
the most recent Annual CEO
Certification, without qualification,
as required by Section 303A.12(a)
of the New York Stock Exchange
Listed Company Manual.

The company consistently has paid quarterly cash dividends on its common stock and
has increased the dividend 37 times in its 36 years as a public company. The current
quarterly cash dividend is $0.17 per share.
DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN WITH OPTIONAL CASH PURCHASE FEATURE

SYSCO’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan provides a convenient way for shareholders of
record to reinvest quarterly cash dividends in SYSCO shares automatically, with no
service charge or brokerage commissions.
The Plan also permits registered shareholders to invest additional money to purchase
shares. In addition, certificates may be deposited directly into a Plan account for safekeeping and may be sold directly through the Plan for a modest fee.
Shareholders desiring information about the Dividend Reinvestment Plan with Optional
Cash Purchase Feature may obtain a brochure and enrollment form by contacting
the Transfer Agent and Registrar, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company at
1-888-225-5799.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements made herein are forward-looking statements under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. They include statements about anticipated
sales volumes, industry growth and increased market share, SYSCO’s long-term growth
objectives with respect to sales, earnings, return on equity, long-term debt and capitalization, long-term debt to capitalization ratios, anticipated capital expenditures, ability
to meet future cash requirements and remain profitable, timing and expected benefits of
the National Supply Chain project and related regional redistribution centers, and implementation, timing and anticipated benefits of fold-outs and acquisitions.
These statements are based on management’s current expectations and estimates;
actual results may differ materially, due in part to the risk factors discussed above.
Decisions to pursue fold-outs and acquisitions or to construct redistribution facilities and
expenditures for such could vary depending upon construction schedules and the timing
of other purchases, such as fleet and equipment, while redistribution facility, fold-out
and acquisition timing and results could be impacted by competitive conditions, labor
issues and other matters. The ability to pursue acquisitions also depends upon the availability and suitability of potential candidates and management’s allocation of capital.
Industry growth may be affected by general economic conditions. SYSCO’s ability to
achieve anticipated sales volumes and its long-term growth objectives, increase market
share, meet future cash requirements and remain profitable could be affected by competitive price pressures, availability of supplies, work stoppages, success or failure of
consolidated buying plan initiatives, successful integration of acquired companies, conditions in the economy and the industry and internal factors such as the ability to control
expenses. The ability to meet long-term debt to capitalization target ratios also may be
affected by cash flow, including amounts spent on share repurchases and acquisitions
and internal growth.
For a discussion of additional risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
to differ from those contained in the forward-looking statements, see the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 1, 2006.
FORM 10-K AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A copy of the fiscal 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the financial statements and financial statement schedules, as well as copies of other financial reports
and company literature, may be obtained without charge upon written request to the
Investor Relations Department, SYSCO Corporation, at the corporate offices listed
above, or by calling 1-800-337-9726. This information also may be found on our web
site at http://www.sysco.com.
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